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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Delhi International Airport Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

4. We have audited-the-accompanying standalone financial statements of Delhi International Airport Limited

--(‘the Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss

..-(including Other ComprehensiverIngome), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity

- = for the.year then ended, and .a.summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information. ' :

2. :In our.opinion.and.to the best of our.information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalon financial- statements-give:the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) in the
manner. so required and. give. a. true-and fair view .in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India including Indian Accounting Standards (‘ind AS’) specified under section 133 of the Act, of
---the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2021, and its loss (including other comprehensive income),
.. its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date. ’

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the

.-~ Act. Our responsibilittes under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the

- .. Audit of the Financial Statements. section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance

- with the Gode of Ethics-issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAT’) together with the

ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act

- oeiens and thesrules thereunder,-and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these

- == o requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. : E ‘

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attehtjon to Note 2(B) of the accompanyin§ standalone financial statements, which describes the
uncertainties due to the outbreak of Covid-19 pandemic and the management’s evaluation of the impact on
the standalone financial statements of the Company as at the balance sheet date. Our opinion is not modified

in respect of this matter.
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Key Audit Matters

"a separate opinion on these matters,

~ report.
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onanaii 4o Key audit matters are those matters that:in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
L e standalone financial statement of.the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
financial-statements.as:a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide

e m e R 6. We have determined the. matters:described below fo be the key audit matters to be communicated in our

o 7 [Keyaudit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

=% ' [Valuation of Derivative Financial Instruments

s i | ‘Refer-to Note 3(q) for the accounting policy and
note 8, 37, 38 and 39 for the financial disclosures
.. iR The -.accompanying - standalone. : financial

 statements .. T oo oo

~--The company has entered into derivative financial
| instruments i.e., call spread options, coupon only
. .| hedge, .to hedge _its foreign .currency: risks in
| relation to the long-term bonds issued in foreign
1 currengy.” . .’ T T

.Management has designated these derivative
financial instruments and” the aforesaid debt at
..{ Initial recognition as _cash flow hedge relationship

“{-as per Ind AS 109, Financial Instru ents.

The valuation of hedging instrument is: complex
-and necessitates.a sophisticated system to record
AN h cor nd calculate the related
i “date. Since

| assumptions ‘and judgements such

© 7 "|'obsérvable” inputs and involvement of | |

management' s valuation specialist, and therefore,
is subject fo an inherent risk of error.

We have identified valuation of hedging
instruments as a key audit matter in view the
aforesaid significant judgements, estimates and
compiexity involved.

Our audit procedures to test the valuation of the
derivative financial instruments included but were not
fimited to the following:

e Assessed and tested the design and operating

- effectiveness of Company's key internal controls
over derivative financial instruments and the related
hedge accounting;

» Reviewed the management's documentation for
. the designated hedge instrument which defines the
nature of hedge relationship;

» Considered the consistent application of the

. accounting policies and assessed the hedge
accounting methodologies applied; and compared
these to the requirements of Ind AS 109, Financial
Instruments;

o Evaluated the management's valuation specialist's
professional competence, expertise and objectivity;

» Tested the accuracy of input data provided by the
management to the external valuation specialist
| and assessed the reasonability of the assumptions
+  used, while valuing the hedging instruments;

» Involved our valuation specialists to test the fair
values of derivative financial instruments and
compared the results to the management's results:

» Assessed the appropriateness and adequacy of the
related disclosures in the standalone financial
statements in accordance with the applicable
accounting standards
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Capital work in progress for airport expansion

- : te'3(d) for the'éccoum‘mg po/lcy and
Note 41(3) for the frnanc;/al disclosures in the

the process of expansron of the
lan _to. incur an amount of INR
March 2021, the
IR..3,525.12 _crores as
- towards  such capital

ether .expenditure meets the
‘'specifically with regard to
ational or_capital in nature,
rcan management judgement in
*_| assessing whethér capitalization is ini liné with Ind
AS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment and the
Company S accountmg pohcy

1

Further “the tariff determination” by AERA for
control~periods “for “the aérofautical services is
1 linked to the Regulated Asset Base, which is based
on the fixed asset balance and considering these
additions are significant to the asset base of the
Company, we have assessed inappropriate
capitalization as a significant risk as part of our
audit strategy.

Such, the aforementioned capital expenditure has
been funded from the specific borrowings raised for
such purpose. Accordingly, the borrowing cost
incurred on such borrowings have been: included
as a capital expenditure in accordance’ with the
provisions of Ind AS 23, Borrowing Costs:

Owing to the above factors, we have identified this
as a key audit matter for current year audit due fo
the significance of the capital expenditure incurred
during the year.

Our audit procedures to assess appropriate
capitalization of such expenditure included, but were
not limited to the following:

¢ Assessed the design and implementation and
tested the operating effectiveness of key controls
surrounding the capitalization of costs.

* Reviewed management’s capitalization policy,
including application of the aforesaid policy, to
assess consistency with the requirements set out
by Ind AS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment.

» Compared the additions with the budgets and the
orders given to the vendors.

« - Ensured that the borrowing cost capitalized is as

per Ind AS 23 Borrowing Gosts

+ Tested the additions on a sample basis for their

nature and purpose to ensure -that the
capitalization is as per company’s accounting
policy.

¢ Assessed the appropriateness and adequacy of
the related disclosures in the standalone financial
statements in accordance with the applicable
accounting standards.

Monthly Annual Fee to Airport Authority of
India (AAl)

Refer to Note 34(1)(h) for the financial disclosures
in the accompanying standalone financial

Our audit procedures in relation to the assessment of
ongoing litigation / arbitration proceedings in relation
to MAF fee included but were not limited to the
following:
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U e FTIN T e T * Obtained an understanding of management's
-|-The Company has ongoing litigation./:arbitration | process and evaluated design, implementation and
| proceedings with"Airport. Authority of India (AAl) in | operating effectiveness of management's key
-|-respectof Manthly Annual Fee(MAF) for the period | internal controls over assessment of litigations/
| 1 April. 2020 to-31 March..2021 for. w arbitration proceedings and determination of
.|.Company has. sought-to be excused-from making appropriate accounting treatment in accardance
-payment 1o AAl as triggered from a force majeure | with the requirements of Ind AS 37, Provisions,
-| event; which could have a significant impact on the | Contingent liabilities and Contingent Assets. '

- 7| accompanying standalone financial statements, if __
- the potential exposure-were to materialize. Further, |« Obtained and read the summary of litigation involved
-| the - application of accounting. standards to |, in respect of MAF payable, the supporting
~ - - determine the amount, if any, to be provided as a | documentation including communications
-~ | liability-or disclosed as a contingent liability, is | exchanged between the parties, and held
inherently.subjective. .. -:.. ...... ! : discussions with the management of the Company
R T to understand management's assessment of the
e of such litigation /arbitration | matter: '
proceedings is currently uncertain and the |:
aforesaid.; .assessment ....requires:...significant | '+ Evaluated the legal opinions obtained by the
-.{-judgement by the . management . including |’ management from its internal and external legal
{ interpretation of legal rights and obligations arising experts on the likelihood of the outcome of the said
out of the underlying Operation, Management and | contingencies and potential impact of ongoing
Development Agreement dated "4 April 2006 |: litigation/ arbitration proceedings and amount paid
_entered with_ AAl, Which required involvement of . under protest, basis our understanding of the matter
- |-both  management's. and auditors experts. | obtained as above, and held further discussions, as
| Accordingly, this matter has been determined as a . Tequired, with such experts to seek clarity of their
key audit matter for current year audit. . legal assessments.

- The above matter is also considered fundamental | « Involved independent auditor's experts to validate
- |-to-the --understanding - of the users of the |  the assessment of the likelihood of the outcome of
- | accompanying standalone financial statements on . contingencies and potential .impact of ongoing
s account of the uncertainties relating to the future | litigation/ arbitration proceedings and amount paid
e .. -|-0utcome, of the proceedings/iitigation. . - - - under protest in order to assess the basis used for
) : . determination of appropriateness of the accounting
: treatment and resulting disclosures in  the
* standalone financial statements in accordance with
the requirements of applicable accounting

- standards;

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

6. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Annual Report but does not include the standalone financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this

auditor's report,
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- - Qur opinion- on.-the standalone-financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

==:IN connection. with-our audit-of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other

information identified .above: :wi
. information is materially inconsistent-with the standalone fi nanc:lal statements or our knowledge obtained in

hen -it-becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other

the. audit.or-otherwise appears to be materially misstated. When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude

:that there is a material misstatement therein, we aré required to communicate the matter to those charged

with governance.

- Responsibilities of Management.and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial

Statements

=7~ The -accompanying ~standalonesfinancial statements have been approved by the Gompany's Board of
.. Directors. The-Gompany’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
" ~'Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of
.-.the financial position,-financial-performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equlty and
- cash flows of the. Company-in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,

including the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accountmg records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of

- appropriate accounting. policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

2.9

10.

11.

~ design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating

effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation
and presentation .of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

:--In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company'’s ability to

continue as a going-congern; dlsclosmg, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the-going
concern -basis- of accounting .unless-management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease

operatlons or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

~Those-Board of Directors Is also.responsible for ove;seeing the Company'’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the

basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional Judgme
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: p '
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—~~ldentify. and assess the risks-of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or.error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that

, e fo. prowde a basis for our opinion. The nsk of not detecting a material
mlsstatement resultmg from .fraud_is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
ollusion, forgery; intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

»:- -QObtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that

-~ -are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for

-..:..expressing our opinjon.on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference
- to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls;

- Evaluate. the appropriatenessof accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management;

—e.-Conelude on-the appropriateness. of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
_-based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or

conditions that- may cast significant-doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If

. we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report

to-the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify

~..our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
--report. However, future events-or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going

concern;

... Evaluate the_overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
_disclosures,-and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in

~ amanner that achieves fair presentation.

-:12. We communicate with those charged-with governance regardmg, among other matters, the planned scope
" and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal controf

e

" that we identify during our audit.

We also.provide those charged with. governance with:a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical

- requirements -regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
--that-may-reasonably be theught to bear on our mdependence and where applicable, related safeguards.

.- From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were

of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
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5,- As required-by- section-197(16) of the-Act, based on our audit, we report that the Company has paid
- - remuneration to its directors during the:year in accordance with the provisions of and limits laid down under
section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

16, Asrequired-by the Companies.(Auditoris. Report) Order, 2016 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central Government
_ of India in terms of section.1

43(11).0f the Act, we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

.-Further to.our.comments -in- Annexure. A, as required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we

report, to the extent applicable, that:

-a) -we-have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge

- - and belief were necessary- for-the. purpose of our audit of the accompanying standalone financial
statements '

... b): .In ouropinion, proper.books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it

appears from our examination of those books; -

-...¢) -the standalone financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

- d) - in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone flnanmal statements comply with Ind AS specified under section

133 of the Aci;

e) - on the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the Board
of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2021 from being appointed as a director
in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

f) ..we have also audited-the .internal. financial controls with reference to financial statements of the

- Company as on.31 March 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of

., .the Company for the year ended on that date and our report dated 24 May 2021 as per Annexure B
expressed unmodified opinion; and

.- ..g)=-with respect to the other matters to.be included f’in the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 11 of the

- Companies (Audit and Auditors).Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

-i.-— .-the-Company; as detailed in note 34 (I} tofthe standalone financial statements, has disclosed the
impact of pending litigations on its financial position as at 31 March 2021;

iil the Company has made provision as at 31 March 2021, as required under the applicable law or
Ind AS, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts;

iii. ~ there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2021; and
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..the-disclosure requirements relating to holdings as well as dealings in specified bank notes were
applicable for the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016, which are not relevant to
these standalone financial statements. Hence, reporting under this clause is not applicable.

~-- :For Walker Ghandiok & Co LLP For K. S. Rao & Co,,
- - Chartered-Accountants Chartered Accountants

- Eirm,RegistratignaN,Q.: 001076N/N500013 Firm Registration Number; 003108S

Hitesh Kumar P

Partner
= 2=»--Membership-No::-062191 : Membership No: 233734
... UDIN;:21062191AAAAIDS834 UDIN: 21233734AAAAIS8584
.. Place: Gurugram Place: Bengaluru
-..Date: 24 May:2021 Date: 24 May 2021

. Chartered \

+\Accountants) * Jj
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---_Annexure A to the Independent-Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Delhi International
-+ . Airport Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

- =~-Based on.the audit procedures. performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the financial
~-gtatements of the Company. and- taking:into consideration the information and explanations given to us and
-~-the books.of account-and other.records. examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our

knowledge and belief, we report that:

(1) (a) The CGompany -has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
- details and situation of property, plant and equipment (‘PPE’}.

(b) All- fixed: assets have not been physically verified by the management during the year,

----however, there is a-regular program of verification once in three years, which, in our opinion,

-..is -reasonable_having .regard.to the size, of the Company and the nature of its assets. No
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

== 1 (¢) The:title-deeds of-all the-immovable propérties (which are included under the head ‘Property,
plant and equipment’) are held in the name of the Company.

(i)Y Inour opinjon, the management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable
intervals during the year and no material discrepancies between physical inventory and book
records were noticed on physical verification.

L (ili) . The Company has not granted any loan, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited
LT o v Liability Partnerships {LLPs) or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section
189 of the Act.Accordingly, the provisions of clauses 3(iii)(a), 3(iii)(b) and 3(iii)(c) of the Order
are not applicable.

- (iv)-- - - In-our apinion, the: Company:has not enteréd into any transaction covered under Sections 185 and
-~ 186 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iv) of the Order are not applicable.

- »-In our opinion, the Company has not ac:ce'pted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73
- ;;—:to 76 .of the Act and-the Gompanies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended).
rriAccordmgly, the provisions of clause 3(v ) of the Order are not applicable.

(vi)We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the Rules made
by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under sub-section Annexure A to the
Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Delhi International
Airport Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

(1) of Section 148 of the Act in respect of Company’s services and are of the opinion that, prima facie,
the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. However, we have not
made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are

accurate or complete.
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__Annexure A to-the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Delhi International
_Airport Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

- -(vii)(@) The Company is regular in-depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident fund,
". employees’- state-insurance, .income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of
-excise, value added tax cess and other material statutory dues as appllcable to the

: outstandmg at the year—end for a period of more than six months from the date they become
payable.

~ {b)The dues-outstanding in respect of mcome—tax sales-tax, service-tax, duty of customs, duty

. of excise and value added tax on account of any dispute, are as follows:

Statement of Dlsputed Dues

- ‘Name of the Nature of Dues Amount Period to Forum where
Statue .. : in which the dispute is
Lt e Crores | amount relates pending
: : &)
Income ... Tax | Taxability of Passenger Service Fee | 21.39 Assessment | Income  Tax
Act, 1961 {Security Component), Taxability of year 2007-08 | Appeliate
Upfront fee, capital work in progress Tribunal
disallowance on account of capital
expenditure under section 14A of the
Act, Disallowance under section
40(a)(ia) of the Act_
"""" “TIncome - Tax | Taxability of Passenger Service Fee | 42.90 Assessment | Delhi High
Act, 1961 .. | (Security Component), Disallowance . year 2008-09 | Court
' on account of capital expendlture
Disallowance of payment of gratuity,
Disallowance under section 40{a)(ia)
of the Act, Disallowance of club
expenses, Disallowance  under
: Section 14A of the Act, Issue of SFIS
B ; Duty Credit Scrips. |
ST == [*Finance’ Act.| Non-payment-..of iService tax on 1.68 Financial year | Commissioner
1994 license fees/lease rentals 2006-07 to of Service fax,
- 2009-10 New Delhi
Finance Act | Non-payment of Service tax on 0.07 Financial year | Commissioner
1994 license fees/lease rentals 2011-12 (April- | of Service tax,
June 2010) New Delhi
Finance Act | Wrong availement of service tax on 0.22 Financial year | Commissioner
1994 the payment made towards 2011-12 (Appeals) of
employee's medical insurance Service Tax,
New Delhi
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T = .0 | Finance ““Act | Service tax on the supply of electricity 2.35 Financial year | Commissioner
""""" h 1994 |andwater . 2009-10to | of Service tax,
- - - ) 2012-13 New Delhi
... .= Fina ‘Qe - Act- :_Servrce tax ogn{ the Development fees | 131.89 | March 2009 to | Supreme Court
T 04 e | (DF') collected ™ . September
2013
S Frnance Act - Service .~ fax ~on the Advance | 54.31 Financial year | Supreme Court
S 1994 ' Development Costs (ADGC’) 2010-11

T s ik Dlspuz‘ed under.Income-Tax Act 1961, wherein disallowances resulfing in reduction in ‘returned loss’ as per the refum
- -0f income..have. not. been.. consrdered for.above disclosure. Tax impact of the reduction in loss amounts to Rs. 54.02

' crores.

. The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to any financial institution

:,(.V"i,)

5. OF. a bank or government or any dues to debenture-hoiders during the year.

- .The Company did not raise moneys by way of Initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments). In our-opinion, the Company has applied moneys raised by way of debt instruments
for the purposes for which these were raised, though idle/surplus funds which were not required for
- - .immediate utrhsatron have been invested in liquid investments, payable on demand.
o Annexure A to the. Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Delhi International
-~ Airport Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

(X} No fraud by the Company or on the company by its officers or employees has been noticed or
reported during the period covered by our audrt

(xi) .. . Managerial remuneration .has been paid and provided by the company in accordance with the
requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 of the Act read with Schedule V to

T e At

s.-(xi). .- Inour.opinion, the.Companyis not a Nidhi Company Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(xii) of the
" Order are not applicable.

..~ _ (xiii) —In our opinion all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188
o " of Act, where- appllcable and the requisite details have been disclosed in the financial statements
etc., as required by the applicable Ind AS.

(xiv)  During the year, the company has not made any preferential aliotment or private placement of shares
or fully or partly convertible debentures. ,
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.. - Annexure A to the Independent-Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Delhi International
- - _Airport Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

< - (ev) .- Inm-our-opinjom;: the.company-has not entered into any non-cash transactions with the directors or

o P ~zpersons connected with them covered under Section 192 of the Act.

seme—- o-ane Se-se{XVi) £ The company is not-required to-be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,

934.
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP ‘ For K. 8. Rao & Co,,
- Chartered Accouptants Chartered Accountants
s =-FipgR 7 Firm Registration Number: 003109S

)M@}Q"’Wﬂ

Hitesh Kumar P
Partner

... ..Anamitra Das
_ -~ Partner
.. Membership No.: 062191 Membership No: 233734
- UDIN: 21062191AAAAID8834 ‘ UDIN: 21233734AAAAIS8584
- . .Place: New Delhi Place: Bengaluru
Date: 24 May 2021 Date:24 May 2021
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Annexure B

- Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Delhi International Airport
- Limited on- the standalone financial stafements for the year ended 31 March-2021 i

-Independent_Auditor’s-Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the standalone
der Clause (i). of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

“the Act)

- In.conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of Delhi International Airport Limited (‘the
Company 'y as at and for the year ended 31 March 2021, we have audited the internal financial controls with
" reference to financial statements of the Company as at that date.

onsibilities.of Management and Those Charged with Governance for !nternal Financial Controls

3. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and mamtammg internal financial controls
. based.on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
. Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Interna!l Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
.. These responsibifities. include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the Company'’s
business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely

_ preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

_Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controils with Reference to Financial
Statements

.- 4. Our responsibility is to express.an. opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
© 7. . financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on

"~ statements, and- the Guidance Note on Audlt of lntemal Fmanmal Controls over Financial Reporting (‘the
_ Guidance Note’) issued.by the ICAl. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were established and maintained and if such

controls operated effectively in all material respects.

5. Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an understanding of such internal
financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design

and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
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..on the: auditor’s judgement; including.the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements whether due to fraud or error.

.--B:-: We believe that the.audit evidence:we-have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
. .-.audit opinion-on the-Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

- ----Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Refefence to Financial Statements

7.~ Acompany's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
-....reasonable -assurance-- reégarding -the..reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial

_statements for external purposes in-accordance with:generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s

_internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that

. (1) pertain. to-.the maintenance: of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the

- transactions and. dlsposmons of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that

. ... .. transactions are_recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with

i generallyaccepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made

only in accordance: with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide

- reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
.. .disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

_Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

.-8- -.Because . of-the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
e “including the possibility of eollusion or improper management override of controls, material mlsstatements
o - due to error or fraud may -occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
- financial controls with reference -to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes
_'in-conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.




Walker Chandiok & Co LLP K. S. Rao & Co.

Chartered-Accountants =, . Chartered Accountants
21st Floor, DLF Square;: . 2nd Flooar, 10/2 Khivraj
Jacaranda Marg,: DL.F- Phase I, Mansion, Kasturba Road
Gurugram 122002 - : : Bengaluru — 560001, india
India

Opinion

9. - In our opinion, the Company has; in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference
- - to-financial statements:and-such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2021, based on the
- --internal financial- controls with_reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company

considering the "essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
- Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

~-.- For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For K. 8. Rao & Co,,
. .~=Chartered-Accountants Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 001076N/N500013 Firm Registration Number: 0031088

Hitesh Kumar P

~=~=Partner : Partner
iz Membership No.: 062191 Membership No: 233734
--UDIN: 21062181AAAAID8E34 i - UDIN: 21233734AAAAIS8584
Place: New Delhi Place: Bengaluru

Date: 24 May 2021 Date: 24 May 2021
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Delhl Tnternational Alrport Limited
CIN, Us303IDLI0USPLCLE0IS
Standutens Sistement of Profit and Loss for the yeur ended March 31,2021

AN amounts In Rupees Crore; pxcept otherwize staied)

March 31,2020

Nates Maseh 31,2022
REVENUE
Reveiue from operatinns {refer nete 410} b2 241347 390242
Other income E 28 98.40 33420
"Tatal revenus 150,07 4243.61
EXPENSES .
Adtensal fee to Airports Authoriy of India {AAD) frcfier vote 34(T)(h) & 436)] 33833 134867
Employte benefils. expense % 21332 238
Depreciation and amertization expense 27 25885 62625
Finases gosts 28 626,09 473.65
Other expenses bi) 1,18881 £79.30
Total expenset 300521 424326
(Lossy profit before fax {43344} 136
Currend tax L - -
Defervdtag foredity . - 18 (18873 {(11.79)
Totat cax (eredit). - {133.73) {11,793
{Loss) # proflt for the year (31741} 13.15
Outigs com preticanive ngame kig
A Tiems that witl not be rectassified to profit or fosa in subsequent periods
Re-measuresmeént gain/{loss) on defined benefit plans @9t {t.97)
Income tax cifect {63 0.69
B Stema that will be reclassified to profit orloss ln subsequent perlods
Netmovement of cash flow hedges 13372 1939
Tntnhe tax effect 6958 .75}
Total viker comprrhiensive lﬁcan\e for the yesr (netof tax) (A+H) $29.77 127
Total comprehensive (loss)  Tncome for the year (net of tax) {187.69) 2542
Earnings per equity share: [nominaf vafue of shars Ra, 0 (Mareh 31, 2020 5 Rs. 10)]
{1) Basis ’ a {3m 0.05
(2) Ditsted ki {130 0.05

:_Sumn of significant aceounting policics

The acccmpanying trotes are anintegral pant of these Standalone financial statements and have been taken on recond by the baard of dircctors vide the meeting dated May 24, 2021,

As per ot repoxt of cven date

As per ourreport of even dat¢
Par X.8. Rao. & Co.

Forand on behalf of the Bonrd of Direstora of
Deltil Intarmational Alrport Limited

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP.

per Aramitre Das
Pariner
Membership no: 062191
Place; Gurugeam

Date : May 24, 2021

A

TCAT Firm Reglstration No, ; 0031095
Chartered Accountants P )
¢ .
per Hitesh Kumar P 8.5 Rl K. Xafayana Ras
Pariner ‘Managing Director ole Time Director

Membership not 233734 DIN-QGO6IERE DIN-0015262
Place; Bengelum Plase: Dubai Place: New Dethi
Diate: May 24, 2021 g
\
W\
Videh Rumar Jalpuriar

3hil Kemar Dudefa~;

- Compahy Se¢retary
Place: Gueugram

Date s May 24,2021
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Delttl Internationnl Alrport Limited
CIN. US3033DLIOOSPLCI6926
Stamialene Statement of Changes (e Equily for the year euded March 31, 2024

(Al amouats In Rapees Crove, exrept otierwiss iated)

Raurvisand e o UCT
Equlty thare capita . Satplas Total equl
ety thare ¢ Hetalood eatningd|  Cash flow hedge equlty
Teserve
Ralwace 1 al Aprl} 1, 2013 248000 814 {44y 2H308
Profit for the year : - 1395 . 1318
Ctter comprshiensive (Soa) income (net of tx) . . {8.28) 12558 1127
Halnnce as at March 31, 2028 245600 0435 {1.89) 274245
Balance na wt Aprdl 1, 2020 245000 1935 {139 174246
T.oxs for the year - {1744 - 1741
Other comprehensive Income (net of tax) - 0.39. 129.18 12977
Ralunce a3 at Mareh 31, 2031 23000, 22470, 127,39 2,55433

Eaplsnatory noles sonexed (refer pote 3

banks For hiedging the repayment of 6,125% Senios secured notes (2022) of USD 28875 million, 6.125% Senior sreyred
notes {2026) of LISD 522,60 million and 6:45% Senior secured notes (2029) of USD 500 million which are repayable in February'2022, Qctober 2026 pnd June 2009 respectively. The
Company has adopted Cash flow hedge scrounting for Call spread options asper Ind AS 109, Accordingly, the elfective portion of gain ar lows on the hedging instruments is recagnised in
- thes Comgrehinsivg lncome in the Cush flow hedge reserve, white any ineffective portion in tsed Jmmediately in the Statement of profit & foss.

led it spread Options of USD 105.422 miltion (USD 80 million of February 8, 2017 options & USD 25 422 willion out of Jarary 25, 2018 aptiens)
‘milion to UST 288,75 miflion notes hialdes as per tender geceptance:

“ (e Campuy had entered into "call spread option” svith vasious

“sgubaciquestly, the Coiipiany has

and Caﬁ sprzad option on merest liability of USD 105,422 million in April 2021 dueto prepayment of USDr 103.422

The aceompanying notes are anintegral partof these Standalonte financial statements and have been taken on secord by the board of directors vide the meeting dated May 24, 2021.

Aupuraurrcpmul’esﬁdm As per our report of even dite Yar and on kehalf of the Board of Dirsciors of
2 For K8 Reo & Ca. Dalbil International Aleport Limited

ICAY Firm Reghstration No, : 0031098
Chartered Accountants Yv

W@W A -

per Bitesh Kumar P B.8 Rajn

Partzer Managing Dircttor

Membership ae: 233734 DRI-00061636

Place: Bengaluwu Placo: 1

Duté My 26, 2021 Q /
Videh Kumar Jalpuriar

Chisf Executive Officer
Place: Guriigram

‘
C‘ﬁ ; { .'
shil Kemay Budejz -

Compsuy Secretary
Place: Gopugram
Date 1 May 24, 2021




Delhi International Ajrport Limited
CIN. U63033DL2006PLC146936
Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2021

_ !All amounts in Rupees Crore, except otherwise stated)
- o Mareh 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Cash flow from operating activities
(Loss)/ profit before tax (483.14) 136
Adjustiment to reconcile loss/ (profiy) before /ax 10 nel cash flows
Depreciation and amortization expenses 568,85 626.25
Provision for bad debts / bad debts written off - - 0.10
Interest mcame on deposits/current investment (45.54) (125.89)
Exct tised (nef) - 139 251
Gain on sale of current investments-Mutual fund (12.06) (35.64)
(Profit)/ loss o discard of Property; plant and equipments (6.163 225
Dividend income o non current investments carried at cost (27.38) (74.58)
Tnterest on borrowings 466.54 384,99
Call spread option premium 20126 199.25
Qther borrowing costs 0.29 -
Redemption premium ot borrowings. 15.41 -
Rent expenses on financial assets carried at amortised cost 0.12 0.20
Provision against advance to Airports Authotity of India (AAT) [tcfar no!e 34(Iy(h)] 446.21 B
Excess provision written back * : - {41.41)
Interest expenses on financial liability carried at amortised cost 71.13 88.97
Deferred income on financial liabilities carried af amortized cost =2 .= {104.72) (100.76)
Fair value gain on financial mstrumenks at fair value through pmﬁt or Ioss (3.72) {148}
- o PR 1,034.48 926.12
Working capital adjustment:
Increase in current trade payables - ) 37.24 2222
(Decrease) in other non current liabilities s e (0.44) (38.45)
(Decrease)/ increase in other current liabilities {46.00} 66.94
Increase in non current deferred revenue 228 1.00
(Decrease) in current deferred revenue s (5.96) (7.90)
(Decrease) increase in non current financial lizbifities 260.93 25039
Increase/ (decrease) in current financial liabilities .57 (11.22)
) d in teade receivabl 18.32) 41.08
Decrease in inventories 028 0.78
Increase in other non current assats - (1,212,086} (423.76)
Decrease/ (incroase) in other curkent assets 32114 (339.02)
Increase in other current finandial agsets (388.21) (351.95)
(Increasie)/ decrease in other non current financial assets (17.38) 11.29
Decrease/ (increase) in non current loans 179 (6.69)
Increase in current loans s 2.43) 0.00)
Tnerease/ (decrease) in non current provisions 2.81 (0.35)
Y in current provision - 95.17
Cash generated from operations - 48.72 235,65
Direct taxes refund (net) 49,47 10.06
Net cash flow from nperntmg ncnviﬁes (A) 2@ 245,71
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property plant and equipments, including CWIP and capital advances (1,502,97) (1,784.28)
Proceeds from sale of property, pla.nt and equipment 0.59 0.42
Inter corporate deposits refund - - 400,00
Security deposit given for equipment lease {401.20) -
Purchase of cutrent investments (5,572.79) (11,506.68)
Sale/maturity of current investments 5,654.68 11,765.01
Sale of investment in Joint ventures - 1.30
Dividend income 2738 74.58
Interest received 13917 208.31
Investment of margin money deposit {0.02) (0.02)
Red: jon of (I in) fixed deposits with original maturity gf mora than three months (net) 377.29 {428.15)
i 27787 (1,269.51)

Net cash used i in investmg actmﬂe&(B)

(The space has been intentionally left blank)




Delkd Imgernantionsl Alrport Limited
CIN, UR033IDL200PLCI 46936

Standalone Statement of Cush Flons for the yeur eaded March 31, 2024

AN smpints In Rupeer Crore, sxcepiotherise sated)

Mareh 31,2931 Mareh 33,2029
Cash Rowy from financlag sctiyitier
Principal payment of lewse lishabity {4.233} {1.98)
Taterest paymient of Tesse latitity {13 {139
Proceeds from fong term berfowing 32138 3,501 24
Procenls from short term borrowing 2478 2614
Option permitin paid {31033 (24492)
Bostowing cost paid Jail ] {3reh
Interzst paid (44547} {461 o8
Wed exsh Qe Trom Rnanslng sctivites () 14&!‘;’9 2,246 76
Neth in crok and cxvleqpivalens A+ B+ € 028456 182298
Cash and cash-espivalents stthe beginning of the year 204030 22634
Carh and cash cquivalonts st the cod of the year 333430 L308830
Comporeats of cash and cash equlvalents .
Cagh on hand 6oy ad?
Cheques/ dralts on hand - 019 .00
With banks .
~ o0 cumment account 38787 63.60
» on depasit accont 234828 1,586.23
333420 5049.30

Total cash and eash equivelents (vefer note 13}

Explaoatory notzs srasxed

1. The ahove ensh flow statement has been compiled fiom ind.is based on the Standalone balance sheet as at bfarch 31, 2031 and the related Standalone statement of profit and loas for the year,

2, Cash and eash equivaleats inclufe Re 1,77 crave (hareh 1, 2020; Ry, 3.17 etore), pertaining to Marketing Fund; to be used for sales promeotional activities.

3. Changes in Habilities arising From financing astivities:-
Particulsrs Liabiiiiles ariilag from finansing sciivities Astets held ta hedge long
term borrawings
Borrowings Interest accrued om Daerlvative Instraments
Borrowlngs Cash Sow hedge csll
; spread aptisa
Az 2t Mareh 31,2020 9,920.8% 204,87 1.000.04
Caslh flows 347828 (564.47) (310.21)
Non-cnshi changes
Pinmtos vort 23.87) 6391
Foreign exchange fluctuaticn {334.38) - -

L Changa in Fair values - I {13581
As st Barch 31 363¢ " 1384132 084 57241
4.The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Standalone Financials Statements and have besn taken on record by the board of direclors vide the niecting dated May 24, 2021,

As per our report of even date As.per pue report of even datz For and on behaifof the Board of Directors of

For Walker Chandiok & CoLLP For K.5. Rao & Co Dethi International Alrport Limited

: tion New 3 0CHO76N/N5D0013 YCAL Firm Registration No. 1 0031098
4 Chartergd Accountants
hd
{ »

per Angmitra Das per Hitesh Komar P SRaju K. na Rao

Partuer Partner {anaging Director ofe Time Director
Membership ne: 0521 Membership no: 233734 DIN-00061686 DIN-00G16262

Phoe: Gumgram * Place: Benpalury Place: Dubal Place; New Delhi

Date : May 24, 2021 Date: May 24, 2021 AX

\
Videh Knmar Jaipuriar
Chief Exacative Officer
Place: Gorugram
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Seerstary
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Delki International Airport Limited
CIN. U63033DL2006PLC146936
Notes to the standalqne financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

" (All amounts in Rupees erore, except otherwise stated)

1. Corporate information

“ Delhi International Airport Limited (‘DIAL’ or ‘the Company’) is a Public Limited Company domiciled in India.

It was incorporated as. a Private Limited Company on March 1, 2006 under the provisions of the erstwhile
Companies. Act, 1956, (replaced with: Companies Act 2013 with effect from April 1, 2014) and was converted

. into a Public Limited Company w.e.f-April 10, 2017. DIAL is into the business of managing the operations and
- modernization of the Indira Gandhi International Airport (‘Delhi Airport’). GMR Airports Limited (‘GAL’) a

_ subsidiary of GMR- Infrastructure Limited (‘GIL’) holds majority shareholding in the Company. DIAL had
entered into. Operation, Management and Development Agreement ("OMDA’) with Airports Authority of India
(‘AAT’), which gives DIAL an exclusive right to operate, maintain, develop, modernize and manage the Delhi
Airport on a revenue sharing model for an initial term of 30 years, which can be extended by another 30 years

__on satisfaction of certain terms and conditions pursuant to the provisions of the OMDA.

2. (A) Basis of preparatien

- - The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
-accepted-in -India, .including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under section 133 of the
. Companies. Act, 2013,:veadwith the. Companies (Tndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as-amended from
-time. to time and.presentation requirement of division II of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 (Ind AS

L compliant Schedule ITD), as applicable to the financial statements.

.= Accounting Policies have been: consistently applied excépt where a newly issued accounting standard is initially
. adopted or.a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in

use.

- The-financial statements have been:iprepared on historical cost convention on an accrual basis, except for the
_following assets and liabilities, which have been measured at fair value or revalued amount:

¢ Derivative Financial Instruments
‘o Certain financial assets and liabilities (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments) which

have been measured at fair value.

(B) Covid-19 Update:

. Post outbreak of COVID-19 last year in the month of March, 2020, the business of the company got adversely
- impacted due to travel restrictions on international and domestic travel. As a quarantine measure, Government
. - of India had also imposed the countrywide lockdown with effect from March 25, 2020, however, restrictions on
-~ operation of domestic flights were lifted from May 25, 2020. Accordingly, the airport was closed from March
ce e ~. 25,2020 to-May 24,-2020 except for cargo and evacuation / rescue flights for passengers, which in turn has
T e el o materially impacted the business -of the Company. However gradually, the Government of India eased
- . restrictions on domestic travel but restriction on international travel continued except air bubble flights. There
- has been gradual improvement in air travel over last 12 months majorly in domestic travel. Further, the outbreak
... of second wave of COVID-19 pandemic from March 2021 has impacted the air travel. The Company has made
_detailed assessment of its tquidity position for the next one year and of the recoverability and carrying values
— .ofits assets-as.at the balance sheet date and has concluded that there are no material adjustments required in the
financial statements.-For this assessment, Management ‘believes that it has taken into account all the possible

. impact of known events arising from COVID 19 pandemic in these financial statements. Howevet, the impact
of the COVID 19 pandemic on our business will depend on future developments that cannot be reliably predicted.
The impact of the COVID 19 pandemic might be different from that estimated as at the date of approval of these
financial statements and the Company will closely monitor any material changes to future economic conditions.
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.. Delhi International Airport Limited

CIN. U63033DL2006PLC146936

_Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All anijouints in Riipees crore, except otherwise stated) '

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

a. Use of estimates

- The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make estimates,

.-~ judgments and-assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting

"~ - policies and the reported amounts of assets and Habilities, the disclosutes of contingent assets and liabilities at

the date of the-financial statements and reported amounts of revemues and expenses during the period.

... . Application of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates involving complex and subjective

- judgments and the use of assurptions in these financials statements have been disclosed in Note 32. Accounting

_estimates-could change from year to yeat. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes

-in.estimates-are- made as management becomes aware of changes in citcumstances surrounding the estimates.

_Changes :in. estimates. are. reflected in the financial statements in the year in which changes are made and, if
material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. N

b. Current versus non-current classification

_The Company presents: assets and Jiabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.
An asset is treated as current when it is:

e a)Expected to-be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

" b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading

-.¢) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

+-.d)Cash or cash.equivalent:unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve

months after the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other assets as non-current.

A liability is current when: :
a) It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
b) It is held primatily for the purpose of trading
© ¢) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting peried, or ‘
d) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the Hability for at least twelve months after

the reporting period
The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
e s Deferred tax assets and labilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

.- - .- The operating cycle-is-the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash
s i+ -and.cash egnivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

¢. Investments in Associates, Joint Ventures and Subsidiary

e snen s 2eie - oo-The Compatiy-has accounted for its investments in associates, joint ventures and subsidiary at cost.
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(All amounts in Ruipees crore, except otherwise stated)

d. Property, Plant and Equipment

.. Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

_ Assets under installation or under.construction as at the balance sheet date are shown as “Capital work-in-

- progress (CWIP)”. However, CWIP relating to the development fund are being net off from the Development
fee accrued (to the extent not utilized) and are not included in CWIP. Expenditure including finance charges
directly relating to construction activity is capitalised.

Capital work in progress includes leasehold improvements under development as at the balance sheet date.

.- Subsequent costs are inieluded-in-the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
. -only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and

the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The cartying amount of any component accounted for as a separate

asset is‘derecognised when replaced. Further, when each major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in

the carrying amount of the-item. of property, plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All

other’fqpairs and-maintenance are'charged to statement of profit and loss during the reporting period in which
they are incurred. : :

... .~ Af item of property, plant and equipment and any siguificant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
- .. -disposal.or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
- . ~de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
- - amount of the asset).is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

Development fee from any regulatory authority are recognized when there is reasonable assurance that it will be
- received /utilized and the Company wilt comply with the conditions attached to them.

faeereet Development fee related-to an asset, (net of direct amount incurred to earn aforesaid development fee) is
.- -deducted from the gross value of the asset concerned in arriving at the carrying amount of the related asset,

The residual values, useful lives.and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at
each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. :
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e. Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment

i et = = == Depreciation:ion:property, plant and equipment is calculated on @ straight line basis using the useful lives

- __prescribed under Schedule Il-to:the: Companies Act, 2013 except for certain assets class i.e. Internal Approach
Roads, Flectric Panels and Transformers/Sub-station, the Company, based on a technical evaluation, believes
that the useful life of such property, plant and equipment is different from the useful life specified in Schedule
11 to Companies Act:2013. The following is a comparison of the usefu1l lives of these property, plant and
wquipment as adopted by the Company and those prescribed under Schedule IT to the Companies Act, 2013:

TypeofAssets =~

Useful life as estimated by the
Company based on technical
evaluation

Useful life as preseribed in
Schedule II to the Companies
Act, 2013

| R~ Other than RCC 10 years 3 years
Transtormers/Power  Sub-Stations 15 years 10 years
(included in Plant and Machinery)
[ Electric Panels (included in Electrical | 15 years 10 years

Installations and Equipment)

o +- o 2-The useful life-of property; plant and equipment which are not as per schedule I of the Companies Act 2013,
- . .- have been estimated by the management based on internal technical evaluation.

- & °On Juhé 12,2014; the-Airport Economic Regulatory Authority (“the Authority”) has issued a consultation paper
= -viz.05/2014-+15 in-the matter of Normative Approach to Building Blocks in Economic Regulation of major
-+ - Airports-wherein ity interalia, mentioned that the Authority proposes to lay down, to the extent required, the
. i o..depreciation rates.for airport assets, taking into account the provisions of the useful life of assets given in
-+ -~ Schedule 11 of the*Companies Act, 2013, that have not been clearly mentioned in the Schedule II of the
© - - Companies.Act, 2013 or may have a-useful life justifiably different than that indicated in the Companies Act,
--2013 in the specific context to the airport sector. Pursuant to above, the Authority had issued order no. 35/2017-
18 on January 12,2018 which was further amended on April 09, 2018, in the matter of Determination of Usefut

life of Airport Assets, which is effective from April 01,2018.

Accordingly, the management was of the view that useful lives considered by the Company for most of the assets
. except passenget retated Furniture and Fixtures were in line with the useful life proposed by AERA in its order
dated January 12, 2018, which is further amended on April 09, 2018.

- In order to align-the useful life-of passenger related Furniture and Fixtures as per AERA order, the Company has
revised the useful life doring financial year 2018-19.

= oo Leasehold Improvements are improvements, betterments, or modifications of leased property which will benefit
~ ez - the Company-forthe:period of more than one year. The amount of leasehold improvements are capitalised and
- :amortised over the period of lease of five years or useful life whichever is less.
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f. Intangible assets.

st oo i Intangible assets acquired separately-are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recoguition,
. - intangible assets are catried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

.= - Inangible assets include software, upfront fee paid as airport concessionaire rights and other costs (excluding
.operation support costs) paid to the Airports Authority of India (AAI) pursuant to the terms and conditions of

the OMDA.

g. Amortisation of intangible assets -

| zom oo Intangible assets-are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
. -indication that the intangible-asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for
an-intangible-asset- with ‘a-finite-useful life are reviewed at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the
-sexpected-useful life or'the expected: pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset
are-considered to-modify the: amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are freated as changes in
-accounting estimates.~ The -airortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in these
financial statements.

The Company amortises,-upfront-fee paid as airport concession rights and other costs paid to AAT referred to
above are recognized and-amortized over the initial period of 30 years and extended period of 30 years of OMDA
- {.e:60 years. Other intangible assets are amortised over the useful life of asset or six years, whichever is lower.

h. Government Grant and subsidies

‘Grants and subsidies from the government are recognized when there is reasonable assurance that
(i) ‘the Company will comply / have complied with the conditions attached o them, and
(ii) the grant / subsidy will be received.

. s o = When the grant/ subsidy relates to revenue, it is recognized under other income in the Staterent of Profit and
-1,08s in the period of receipts of such grant/ subsidy, at the amount expected to be realized.

i. Borrowing cost
Borrowing costs net of income on surplus investments directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or '
T it it .- production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale
R - are capitalised as part of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed on EIR basis in
the period in which they occur.
-~ Borrowing costs consist of interest, call spread premium and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with
+ “the-borrowing of -funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an
adjustment to the borrowing costs.
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j- Leases

The Comp’an? .aSSesses & contract at.inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as 2 lessee:
_ The Company. applies & single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases

and leases of low-value assets. The: Company recognises lease Liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-
use assets representing the right to. use the underlying assets.

e e e Ll o Right-of-use assets: The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencenient date of the lease (i.e.,
e e - .- the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
-~ depreciation and impaizment losses;-and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-
.. of-use-assets-ineludes the-ampunt of-lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incutred, and lease payments
- ~made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received.

- -“Theright-of-use assets-areidepreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated

. _useful lives of the assets- The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as
- - those of property and-equipment Irraddition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses.
if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

e e - Lease liabilities: At the-commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at
PRI E S the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term.

-+ The leasé payments-included in-the measurement of the fease liability include fixed payments (including in
.. substance fixed payments), variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to
* " _be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option

. reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate.

- L.ease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised in finance costs

in the statement of profit and loss.

In case of a short term lease contract and lease contracis for which the underlying asset is of low valuc, lease
payments are charged to statement of profit and loss on accrual basis.

Company as a lessor:
- ... Leases'in which the Combany does not transfer substantially afl the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset
--:are classified as: operating leases: Income from operating lease is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease.

Sl seesn oo - Initial direct costs incugred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
D L - the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are
recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned, Leases are classified as finance leases when

substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfers from the Company to the lessee. Amounts due

from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the Company’s net investmert in the leases.

Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the

net investment outstanding in respect of the lease.
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k. Inventories

~-Inventories are-valued-at'the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost is determined on a weighted average
- basis. and includes other directly associated costs in bringing the inventories to their present location and
- condition::Net realizable value:is the.estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and estimated costs necessary t0 make the sale. :

1. Impairment of non-financial assets

.-~ The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. H

-any-indication exists,.or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the
sdet’s-recoverable-amount:-An asset’s recoverablé amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash generating units’
(€GVs) fair-value less-cost-of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an
‘individual:asset; unless the-asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets-or group-of asséts: When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the

-asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

T assessing value-fi-use; the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects curfent market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
-asset=Tn determining fair value less cost of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account.

: ‘The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared
+geparately for each of the Company’s ‘CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and
- forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is
- caléulated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond
eriods. covered by the most recent budgets/foreeasts, the Company extrapolates eash flow projections in the
-budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified.

- Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement
of profit and loss. After impaitment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over

its remaining useful 1ife,

- Forassets an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses no longer exist o have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates
the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has

' been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impaitment

T e e w-loSS WS recognised:~The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its
-.° . - recoverable-amount; nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had

- no-impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of

profit and loss.
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Tl 1. Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Commitments.

... Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past

_event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to seftle the

obligation and aeliable estimate canbe made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some

.or all of a provision to be teimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised

- as @ separate asset, but only when-the-reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is
presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

e - - If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
: © .- ... reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of:

=i-e uA present obligation: arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation

fniie wvig- A present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible

"._e.". A possiblé obligationi-arising from past events, unless the probability of outflow of resources is remote

s - :Commitments inchude the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for completion of assets.
- - Provisions; contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each reporting date.

e wo-Provisions for onerots contrécts-are recognized when the expected benefits to be delivered by the Company
-from a contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting the fiture obligations under the contraet. The
- ..o provision is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the
... . .expected niet cost.of continuing with the contract. Before a provision is established the Company recognizes any

_ impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract.

n. Contingent assets

Contingent assets usually arise from unplanned or other unexpected events that give rise to the possibility of an
- inflow’ of economic benefits to the entity. Contingent assets are recognized when the realisation of income is
.= virtually certain, then -the related -asset is not a contingent asset and its recognition is appropriate.

== Contingent assets are -reviewed -at each reporting date. A contingent asset is disclosed where an inflow of
economic benefits is probable. -
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o; Retirement and other Employee Benefits

Defined benefit plan

-+ . Retirement.benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined benefit scheme. DIAL contributes its portion of
contribution to DIAL Employees Provident Fund Trust (‘the Trust’). DIAL has an obligation to make good the
shortfall; if any, between the retuin from the investments of the Trust and the notified interest rate which is
determined by actuary and accounted by the DIAL as provident fund cost.

Retirement benefit-in the form of Superannuation Fund and Employee State Insurance are defined contribution

-+ . - : schemes and-the contributions are charged to the statement of profit and loss of the year when the contributions

- == =to’the respective:finds -are-due.:The Company has no obligation, other than the coniribution payable to the
respective trusts. '

Alk eimployee-benefits-payable/available within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as shorf-
.o - fermemployeebenefits-Benefits such as salaries, wages and bonus etc., are recognised in the statement of profit
© .~ - gnd loss in the period in which the employee renders the related service,

The Company-recognizes-contributioli payable as expenditure, when an employee renders the related service. If
-the contribution-payable-to- the scheme for service received before the reporting date exceeds the contribution
. alreadypaid; the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability afier deducting the contribution already
- o oo paid, If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet

- - -....-date; then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to a reduction in future

payment or a cash refund. _
“en e Gratuity: Liability'is-a definéd: benefit obligation which is funded through policy taken from Life Insurance

" Corporation of India and Liability (net of fair value of investment in LIC) is provided for on the basis of an
" __ dctizarial valuation on projected unit credit method madé at the end of each financial year. Every employee who
has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on separation at 15 days’ salary (based on last drawn

basic salary) for each completed year of service.

- ~=-- -~ - The Company treats accumulated leave including sick leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve
months; as long-term employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences
including sick leave are provided for based on the actnarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at
the year-end. Actuarial gains / losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not
deferred.

The entire amount-of the provision: for leave encashment is pr&sented as current in financial statements, since
the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the obligation.

. Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts

.t i i includedsin net interest-on- the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts

included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with

i 4 corresponding’:debitor credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Re-

. - .‘measurements are-not reclassified to-profit or loss in subsequent periods. Past service costs are recognised in
profit or loss on the earlier of: :

i) The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
ii) The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs.
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- The cost of providing benefits tnder the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit

method.

. Net-interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company
. recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit

and loss:

- &~ Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-

routite settlements; and
»  Net interest expense or income

p- Financial Instruments

= A financial instrutiient is any-Gofitract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or

equity instrument of another entity.

) Finanecial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

" Financial “assétgare classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
“+‘through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow .
haracteristics and the Company’s business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables

that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical

expedient; the Compary initially edsures & Sinancial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a finaneial asset

~ ot ‘at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant

finaneing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient are measured at the

. transaction price determined under Ind AS 115. Refer to the accounting policies in section (1) Revenue from

contracts with customets.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measuted at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it needs
to give rise to cash flows that are ¢solely payments of principal and interest (SPPIY on the principal amount
outstanding.: This assessment is referred to.as. the SPPI test and is performed at an fnstrument level.

* " The Company’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in-
- grder to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting

contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

=+ Pukchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assefs within a time frame established by regulation
- ~ér conventiotin the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.c., the date that the

Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in three broad categories:
a) Financial assets at amortised cost

b) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FV’ TPL)
c) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
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. Financial assets at amortised cost: A ‘Financial asset’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following
conditions are met:
‘a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual

cash flows, and -
b) . Contractual terms of the-asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of

principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
et _interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
- o : ‘acquisition and fees or costs that are.an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amottisation is included in other income
e yE e . -in the statémient of profit-and loss:: The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit
il i e, and loss. This category-generally applies to trade and other receivables. For more information on receivables,

refer to Note 12.

- Financial assets at FVTOCT: A financial asset is measured at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are
met: s

- o The asset is held within:the-business model, whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash

flows and selling the financial assets, and
. :.eThe coftractualterms.of thie financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are SPPI on the

principal amount outstanding.

~=. If the coripary decides-to- classify: an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, éxcluding dividends, are recognized in the OCL There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to
. P&L; even on sale-of investment. However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

.. Financialassets at FVTPL: FEVTPL is a residual category for financial assets. Any Financial asset, which does
‘ot meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as at Fair Value through OCI (FVTOCI), is

classified as at FVTPL.

- In addition, the Company may elect to designate a Financial assets, which otherwise meets amottized cost or
- “FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a
measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). Financial assets included
‘within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the statement of profit and

loss.

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of 2 group of similar financial assets) is

primatily derecognised when:

sy o « The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or

- - «The-Company-has transferred-its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to

~+. pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement;
and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has

transferred control of the asset.
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'~ When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into 2 pass-
- - through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks. and rewards of ownership. When
- it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control
. - ~of the.asset; the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing
- involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

- - - Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of
- the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be

required to repay.
Impairment of financial assets

- - In docordance with-Ind -AS-109; the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and
- .recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

-z Finangial assets measured at amortised cost e.g., deposits, trade receivables and bank balance.

“::4Thé-Cotpany:follows: ‘simplified-approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables
or contract revenue receivables.

ies “emmne < The application of siniplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it
sirecognises impairment-loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial

recognition.

=.- For:recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that

. whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not
increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has
increased significantly; lifetime ECL is used. I, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves
+-guchthat there isno'longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to
recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

- Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that

are possible within 12 months after the reporting date. -

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the
- contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original
. BIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:
. e Al contractual derms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar
-~~~ options)-over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected
.. ... . . life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the
remaining contractual term of the financial instrument

-~Cash flows: from - the sale ‘of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractual terms
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St TR @ practical “expedient; the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on
-~ portfolio of its trade teceivables. The provision matrix is hased on its historicalty observed default rates over the
e e - expected life of the trade teceivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the
st o e i historical obseived - defatlt Fates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

“ .. . For assessing increase in credit tisk'and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on the
basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable
significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

II) Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement
-~ Financial liabilities are classified; atnitial recognition, as financial labilities at fair value through profit or loss,
| gafs arid:borrowings, payables,.or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
apptopriate.
o i e oA ] financial liabilities aré recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of direcily attributable transaction costs. :

L o oihe —os o The Company’s financial Tiabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including and
derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement

© i U Ffnancial liabitities designiated \ipon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such
T af»thé»’ﬁxitial'dat'(:»'ijf‘rééogiiitibh;-:Eii’ldbrﬂy if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as

~- " FVTPL; fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCL These gains/
“loss dre not subsequently transferredto statement of profit and loss. However, the Company may transfer the
curiulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such Hability are recognised in the
= gtatement of profit and loss. The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through

profit and loss.

Loans and horrowings

© After ‘initial recognition, interest-beating loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recoguised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the EIR amortisation process.

ot L Arortised cost ié'éél’dﬁlafé"cl by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs

. - that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit
and loss.

Derecognition :
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired,
... When an existing financial Liability i§ replaced by anotber from the same lender on substantially different terms,

£ o7 the terms of an existing liability-are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in respective carrying
- amounts is recognised in statement of profit and loss.
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Offsetting of financial instruments. :
.- " Fipancial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is
. s groutrently enforceable Tegal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, to realise the assets and setfle the liabilities simultaneously.

q. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Initial Recognition and subsequent measurement

. .- .The Company-uses derivative financial instruments, such as call spread options and interest rate swaps, to hedge
its foreign currency risks and interest rate risks, respectively
Siich detivative: finanicial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative
R contract is entered-into and ar&subsequently re-measured at fair value, Derivatives are carried as financial assets
" whe the-fai value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Aiy-gains or-losses arising from-changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss, except
Tor the-effective-portion-of cash flow-hedges, which is recognised in OCI and later reclassified to profit or loss
when the hedge item affects profit or loss.

s sk i L For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:

o» 2220 1g) ~Fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or
liability or an unrecognised firm commitment; .

~* )y ~Cash ﬂﬁﬁ?hé*dgééf%vﬁéﬁ Teédging the exposure to variability in cash flows that is either attributable to a
" Cparticular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction or
the foreign currency risk in ar unreco gnised firm commitment;

¢) Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation.

7 At'the mception of a hedge relationship, the Company formally designates and documents the hedge relationship

“. = “to which the Company wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk management objective and strategy for

-~ undertaking the hedge. The documentation includes the Company’s risk management objective and strategy for

- undertaking hedge, the hedging / economic relationship, the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk

beinig hedged, hedgeratio and how the entity will assess the effectiveness of changes in the hedging instrument’s

e metoennes s faipyalie T Coffsetting the éxposure to changes in the hedged item’s fair value or cash flows attributable to the

DR T -hedged risk, Sucl hedges are expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash

- - flows and are assessed on an ongaing basis to determine that they actually have been highly effective throughout
the financial reporting periods for which they were designated, .

e 2o Cgghi flow hedges that meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for as described below:

“Thi effectivé portion 6f the gain'or 16ss on the hedging instrument is recognised in OCI in the cash flow hedge
2 “régerve, While any-ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

Amounts Tecognised as OCI are transferred to profit or loss when the hedged transaction affects profit or loss,
such as when the hedged financial income or financial expense is recognised or when a forecast sale ocours.
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el weoefio o If the hedging instrument expires or iS sold, terminated or exercised without replacement or rollover (as part of

S . " the hedging strategy), orif ifs designation as a hedge is revoked, or when the hedge no longer meets the criteria
copesin e for hedge accounting, any- cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI remains separately in equity
: " until the forecast transaction occurs or the foreign currency firm commitment is met.

Presentation of derivative contracts in the financial statement

SR = Derivative assets and liabilities recognized on the balance sheet are presented as current and non-current based
e on the classification of the underlying hedged item.

r. Cash and cash equivalents

~Cashrand cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with

-7 original maturity of threemonths or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

- For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-ferm deposits,
a5 defined sbove, net of outstanding bank overdrafis as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s

cash management.

e

s, Foreign currencies

Functional Carrency
. i~ The financial statements are presented in Indian rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s functional currency.

Transactions and Translations

- Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at their respective functional currency
... gpiot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for tecognition, However, for practical reasons, the Compary
“uses an average rate if the average approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

“Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot
rates of exchange at the reporting date. :

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in statement of profit
and loss. Nop-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated

using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

t. Fair value measurement
. ‘The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date.

- Fait value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
o oo oo betweenmarket participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
.= i+ - ~that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

PoT EmhT v . In the principal market for the asset or Eabiﬁty, or

° Tn the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.”

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their best economic interest.
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‘o The.Company uses.valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data.
- - are available to-measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of

unobservable inputs.

* All'assets dnd Habilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
. withirsthe fair value hicrarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement as a whole:
.t Level 1 — Qiioted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or labilities
- - Level 2 = Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is directly or indirectly observable,

-2 . - Level-3:2+Valuationtechnigues for-which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is unobservable.

- For -assets: and: liabilities’ that-are-recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
-determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based
.. onthelowest levelinput that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting

period.

~-. e 7 The Company determines:the policies and procedures for recurring fair value measturement, such as derivative
sz e e instroments-and-unquoted financial assets measured at fair value. External valuers are involved for valuation of
significant assets or liabilities such as derivative instruments.

- s - At each teporting date; the: Company analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are

- .required to be re-measured.or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies. For this analysis, the

- = =.:Company verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation
computation to contracts and other relevant documents. ‘

-~ - - For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the
. basis. of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as
<., éxplaitied above: This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are
given in the relevant notes as mentioned below. ,
" a) Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (note 37)

ST - by Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (note 38)

¢) Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost)

u. Revenue recognition
-..» - Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Compaty and
. the revenue cafi be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at
the fair value: of-the corisidération: received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of
-payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government.

Revenue from contract with castomer

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the services are transferred to the customer
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those
services. The Company has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements, because it
typically controls the services before transferring them to the customer.
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Revenue from Operations

Significant finanecing component

... Generally, the Company receives shori-term advances from ifs customers. Using the practical expedient in Ind

- . _":AS 115, the Company does not adjust the promised amount of consideration for the effects of a significant
. financing component if it expects, at contract inception, that the period between the transfer of the promised
- service to the customer and when the customer pays for that service will be one year or less.

.- The:Company alsoreceives long-term advances from customers for rendering services. The transaction price for
such contracts are discounted, using the rate that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction between
_ the’ Company’ and its customers at contract inception, to take into consideration the significant financing

component.

Contract balances

Contract assets

A contract asset is-the right to consideration in exchange for services transferred to the customer {which consist
- _of unbilled revenue). If the Company performs by transferring services to a customer before the customer pays
.- consideration-or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the eamed considerstion that is

conditional.

Trade receivables

. A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the
~passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting pelicies of financial
© - z-assets in financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

Contract labilities

-+ A contract liability is the obligation to transfer services to a customer for which the Company has received
- consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before

- the Company transfers services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or
the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company

performs under the contract.

Income from services

< - - Revenue from airport operations i.e."Aeronautical and Non Aeronautical operations. are recognised on accrual

- T basis, net of Goods and Service Tax (GST), and applicable discounts wher services are rendered. Aeronautical

.= . <. - .. operationsinclude user development fees (UDF), Passenger Service Fee (Facilitation Component) [PSF FOL,

.- == % o -Baggage X-ray Charges, Landing and Parking of aircraft, fuel farm and CUTE counter charges. The main

i ghreamiis of Homr=acronautical revenue includes duty free, retail, advertisement, food & beverages, eargo, ground
handling, car parking and land & space-~ rentals. :

e wmsmo oo = Land & Space=rentals pertains to granting right to use jand and space primarily for catering to the need of
passengers, air traffic services and air transport services.

Revenue from commercial property development rights granted to concessionaires is recognized on accrual
basis, as per the terms of the agreement entered into with the customers.
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Interest income

. Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate
- applicable except the interest income received from customers for delayed payments which is accounted on the

basis of reasonable certainty / realisation.

For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the effective interest
rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected

“life of the financial instrument or a-shorter petiod, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the
- financial asset or to-the amortised cost of a financial lability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the

Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument
(for example, prepayment, extension; call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses.

- Interest income is included in other income in the statement of profit and loss.

Dividends

- 2. Dividend.income-is recognised-whet the Company’é right to receive dividend is established, which is generally

when the shareholders approve the dividend.

Claims

.- Claims on.contractors:/-concessionaires are accounted on the basis of reasonable certainty / realization.

v. Taxes

Tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax,

Current income tax

- Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with

Income Tax Act, 1961.

_ Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to
* the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or

substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either

.+ in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in.correlation to the underlying -
__transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax
- returns with respect to situations in'which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes

provisions where appropriate.
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" Deferred tax
-Deferred tax:is:ptovided using the lability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and

liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.
. Deferred tax labilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

eirind pac o mmizinef) < = When the deferred tax Jiability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability
. - - inatransaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

--~fiy - -Inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiary, associates and
.. .-—interests in-joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
_controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax- assets-are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax
-credits and-any unussd-tax Tosses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be-ayailable against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax
credits and unnsed tax losses can be utilised, except:

When-the deferred tax-asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
ecognition.of an: asset or-liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
: of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or 1oss.

Tn:respéct of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiary, associates and
interests in joint ventures; deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the
- temporaty différences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is
no_longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be utilised. Unrecognised defetred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the
- asset isrealised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively

enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to-items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
- comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

o= ine o Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
- - assets-against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the sams taxable entity and the same taxation

authority.

I Minimunt Alternate Tax (‘MAT”) paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax. The
:Company recognises MAT credit available as an asset only to the extent that there is convincing evidence that
the Company will-pay normal-income tax during the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is
- atlowed to-be carried forward. In the year in which the Company recognises MAT credit as an asset in accordance
with the Guidance Note on *Accounting for Credit Available in respect of Minimum Alternative Tax” under IT
Act, the said assetis created by way of credit to the statement of profit and loss and shown as ‘MAT credit
entitlement’. The Company reviews the “MAT credit entitlement’ asset at each repotting date and writes down
the asset to the extent the Company does not have convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the

specified period.

?%
24
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:. - Taxes, cess,-duties. such--as. sales-tax/ value added tax/ service tax/goods and service tax ete. paid on
acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

- Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of taxes paid, except:
.. e When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets, goods or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority,
- in-which case, the tax paid is-recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense
item, as applicable
e-When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

' The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables
or payables in the balance sheet.

w. Operating segments

. The-Comipany: has.ohly: one reportable operating segment, which is operation of airport and providing allied
.-services. Accordingly, the amounts appearing in the financial statements relate to the Company’s single
operating segment.

x. Proposed dividend

.. 2As.perTnd AS =10, ‘Events after the Reporting period’, the Company disclose the dividend proposed by board
- of directors after the balance sheet date in the notes to these financial statements. The liability to pay dividend is
- recognised when the declaration of dividend is approved by the sharcholders.

y- Earnings per share

- Basic ‘earnings-per=share is-caleulated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
- shateholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

- “For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit ot loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of

all dilutive potential equity shares.

z. Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows. are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit. for the period is adjusted for the effects of

transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or fiture operating cash receipts or payments

and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from
- operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

~

T el
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4 Property, plant and equipment

Buildi Leasehold | Bridges, Culverts, | Elecirical Installations | Roads-Othier than { Runways, Taxiways| Plant and Office Computer and data| Furnitore and Vehides Total i
125 improvement Bunders,etc, and Equipment RCC & Apron ete. Machinery | Equi ing naits Fittings o ;
Gross block (at cost) ) j
As at April 1, 2019 4,465.76 TO1581 396,94 1,054.55 23627 2,234.18 2456.18 13.07 10154 272.37 1771 | 11,264.38
 Additions 106.08 372 - 3270 0.80 2037 25.16 0.63 14,56 18.79 3.80 226.66
Dispasals (2.93) - - (0.08) - - 2.7 (0.81) (10.33) @283 (29 {21.99) i
| Adjustments [refer note (a) below] (622) 0.01; 0.72 _ 210 1 (6.00). 2.64) . (0.02)} (2:10)
As at March 31, 2020 4,562.69 19.52 397.66 1,089.27 236.05 2,248.55 2,475,935 12.91 105.75 286.23 13, 453,81 H
Additions 8.29 : 1.27 2.06 19.4% 9.57 6119 31,17 8,53 9.12 47.56 1.49 19166 ;
Disposals (6.69) - - - - - - ©.01) - @06 (127 (203
Adjustments [vefer note (a) below] -~ h - - - = = | - - - - -
As at March 31, 2021 m.s.uw mM._.G 399.72 1,108.68 245.62 2,309.74 Wmaqhu 13.43 :;.'3 mm-whqu _.whumﬂ :&wha
Accamulated depreciation ‘ ’
As at Agril 1, 2019 1,278.55 7.40 127.18 776.81 181,42 837.63 1,314.13 10.71 59.98 175.06 10,00 4,779.87 “
Charge for the year T 15295 525 13.39 82.99 25.53 100.80 196.08 0.78 12,81 21.89 1.38 613,85 .
Dispasals (1.30) 000 (0.0 (027) (0.06) (0.0 (1.07) .30 (10.32)f @56 __2.21) (19.32)f :
| As at March 31, 2020 1,431.20 12.65 140.57 858.93 206.89 938.41 1,509.14 10.68 62,47 194.29 9.17 u.w.k.&%l
Charge for the year 183.21 3.88 13.39 51.89 150 102.68 15199 0.81 14.47 20.01 1.38 55568 | _
Disposals 0 - - - - - - 0.00) - 086 (@27} 1 :
As at March 31, 2021 1,584.15 16.50 153.96 910,82 218.39 ~_1,040.09 1,691,313 11.48 76.94 214,24 9.78 592848 !
Net block: ' i
As at March 31, 2020 3,131.49 6.87 | 257.09 230.34 28.16 1,310.14 966.81 2.23 . 4328 91.84 10.06 6,079.41 N
As at March 31, 2021 2,986.14 429 245.76 197.86 2723 1,268.65 81599 n.mm 3793 E.mw 9.67 5,714.96

Includes reduction of cost due to input eredit of GST amountingto Nil (March 31, 2020: Rs, 14.78 crore) and reduction of liability of vendors on final settlement amonnting to Nil (March $1, 2020: Rs. 0.46 crare) pertaining to construction pf various capital assets.

Buildings inchude space given on operating lease:
. Gross block Rs. 190.87 croge (March 31, 2020: Rs. 235.47 crore),
Ummnnnsnonnrnﬁnmc:wn year Rs. 6.35 crore (March 31, 2020: Rs. 7.84 orore ),
Accurmiated m«u—oﬁugu wm 67.66 crore (March 31, 2020 Nm 75,54, ﬂa_.&,
. ox,ﬁanw.m Ew 21 naa (March 31, 2020 ; wm. 159, mu aoau

X Wm,nn :Bmuaacs mc_, disclosure of i T for the isition of property, plant and equiproent.
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5 Intangible assets

Gross block (atcost)
Asat Apsil 1, 2019
Additions

Asat Mareh 31, 2020

Additions :
i Asat Murch 31,202

Accumulated amortlsation
As at April 1, 2018
Charge for the year

Charge for the year
TAs at March 31, 2021

Net Block
T As

Airport Computer Total
concessionaire vights software o
490,52 42,49 533.01
- 3.28 3.28
490.52 45.77 536.29
- 1.13 1.13
490.52 46.20 537.42
105.15 40.57 145.72
8.21 1.01 922
113.36 4158 154.94
821 123 9.44
121,57 42.81 164,38
B8 S
37716 4.19 381.35
= oy
368.95 4.09 373.04

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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R 61T i subsidiary; associates and joint ventures N corrent
- - - March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Investments carried at cost o
Unguoted eguity shares fully paid up

Tuvestment in subsidlary
Delhi Aerotropolis Private Limited*
100,000 shares of Rs 10 each (March 31, 2020 : 100,000 shares of Ra 10 each): - 939 019

Investment in associates
Celebi Delhi Cargo Terminal Management India Private Limited 29.12 2912
29,120,000 shares of Rs, 10 each (March 31, 2020 : 29,120,000 shares of Rs. 10 each)

) Delhi Airport Parking Services Private Limited 40.64 40.64
40,638,560 shares of Rs 10 each (March 31, 2020 : 40,638, 560 shares of Rs 10 each)
Travel Food services (Delhi Torminal 3) Private Limited .- . 5.60 5.60
5,600,000 shares of Rs. 10 each (March. 31, 2020 15,600,000 shares of Rs. 10 ea:zh,)
TIM Dethi Airport Advertising Private Limited - 9,22 9.22
e 9,222,505 shares of Bs. 10 each (March 31, 2020 9,222,505 shares of Rs. 10 each)
DIGE Yatra Foundation 5 s . X4 0.00
222 shares of Rs, 10 each (March 31, 2020 ; 222 shares ofRs 10 each)
Investment in joint ventures
Delhi Aviation Services Private Limited 12.50 1250
o 12,500,000 shares of Rs, 10 each {March 31,2020 : 12, 500 000 shares ufRs 10 each)
Delhi Aviation Fuel Facility Private Limited 5 42.64 42.64
42,640,000 shares of Rs, 10 each (March 31, 2020 : 42, 640 000 shares of Rs. 10 each)
GMR_Bajoli. Holl. Hydropower Brivate Limited. 108.33 10833
Toul 108,333,334 shares of Rs. 10 each (March 31, 2020 108 333,334 share of Rs. 10 each)
Dethi Duty Free Services Private Limited ooy Rr P 39,92 3292
- 30,920,000 shares of Rs. 10 each (March 31, 2020 : 9 920 000 shares ofRs 10 each}
. 288.07 288.07
238,07 288,07

Aggregute book value of d non-current in

6.2 Other Non Corrent Investments

Carried at fair value through profit and loss

Bast Delhi Waste Processing Company Private Limited.

7,839 shares of Rs. 10 each ( March 31, 2020 : 7,839 shares of Ry 10 cach) . : . 0.01 Q.01
0,04 0,01

February 11, 2020 Pursuant to this, the Board of Directors of Delhi Aerotropolis Private Limited, in its

... *The Company has approved to strike offits Subsxdlmy Compa.ny in its board meeting dated
ROC) for strike off. The application has been filed with the ROC on August 11, 2020, However,

o meeting held on June 05, 2020 have approved the filing of ar ion with the Registear of Comp
the approval from ROC is awaited,

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




Delhi International Airport Limited
CIN. U63033DLZI)06PLC146936
Notes to the standal as at March 31,2021

_ {(All amounts in Rupees Crore, except otherwise stated)

- 6.3 Current Investments

Current
March 31, 2021 Mareh 31, 2020

Yavestments carried at fair value through profit or loss
Tuvestment in mouteal fund
nquoted investments
1CICT Prudential Liquid Regular Plan Growth
[Nil-units (March 31, 2020 : 20,82,812. 13) of Rs. 100 each]
Axis Liquid Fund Growth
{Nil units (March 31, 2020 : 6,43,108.54) of Rs, 1000 each]
Sundaram Money Fund Regular — Growth
[Nil units (March 31, 2020 : 1,97,782.78) of Rs. 10 cnsh]
SBI Premier Liquid Fond - Regular Plan -Growth
[Nl units (March 31, 2020 : 3,95,838.13) of Rs. 1000 eack]
L&T Ovemiglt Fund-Growth
[8,02,024.16 units (March 31, 2020: NU) of Rs. 1000 aach]
UTE- Liguid Fund-Cash Plan-INST Growth.
[Nil units (March 31, 2020 1,23,075.70) of Rs. 1000 each]
Tata Liquid Fund Plan A - Growth
[Nil units (Mareh 31, 2020 : 84,522.49) of Rs. 1000 each]
ICICY Pradential Ovarmght Fund-Growth o 43.05 360
[38,79,454.78 units (March 31, 2020 : 3,34,162.. 24) ufRs 100 each §

- 61.19

- 14111

- 12431

» 40.02.

- 2632

SBI Overnight Fund-Growth 83.36 7.88
[2,65,129.15 units (March 31, 2020 : 24,207.14) ufRs 1000 each |
Aditya Birla Ovesnight Fund-Growih 1mean 140.43 .
112,61,799.83 units (March 31, 2020 : Nil) of Rs. 1000 each ]
UTI Overnight Fuad-Growth 73,30 .
[2,60,128.63 units (March 31, 2020 : Nil} of Rs. 1000 each 1
Axis Overdight Fond- Grawth 120.19 -
[11,04,803.07 units (March 31, 2020 : Nil) of Rs. 1000 each]
" Tata Overnight Fund- Growth : 53.01 .
[4,88,140.73 units (March 31, 2020 : Mif) of Rs. 1000 each 1
Kolak Overnight fund 220 .
[6,57,652.84 units (March 31, 2020 : Nit) of Rs. 1000 mh 1
NIPPON Overnight Fund-Direct-Growth 24,83 .
[22,51,862.11 units (March 31, 2020 ; Nil) of Rs. IOOeach]
TInvesiments carried at amortised cost
Investment in Commerciat Papers
SREI Infrastructure Finance Limited - 20675
[Nl units (March 31, 2020 : 4,500) of Rs. 5,00,000 each]
SREL Equipment Finance Limited e - 183.86
[Nit units (March 31, 2020 : 4,000) of Rs. 5,00, 000 each]
Piramal Enterpreises 240,61 189.11
15,000 (March 31, 2020 ; 3,800) of Rs. 5,00,000 eaeh]
JM Financial Products Limited - . 20030
[ units (March 31, 2020 : 4,400) of Rs. 5,00,000 ench]
Rdelweiss Asset Reconstruction Limited . 225.12 48.93
[4,800 units (March 31, 2020 ; 1,000) of Rs. 5,00, 000 each]
) 1,210.57 1,234.20
1,210.57 1,234.20

Aggregatc ook valne of unguoted investments. .

(This space has been inientionaily left biank)




Delhi buternational Airport Limited
CIN. U63033DL2006PLC146936

Notes to the dalone finauclal as at March 31, 2021
(ANl amonuts in Rupees Crore, except otherwise state:

S e 7. Loans
: S o Non current Current
.. Uusecured, considered good e, e Manrch 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
Carried at amortised cast
Security deposits
__ Unsecured; considared good -~ o I 407.99 858 3.78 135
- ek L . L ) 497,99 8.58 3.78 135
Loan r bies which have signil increase in credit risk
Advances fo others st 2.82 282 - v
Less: Allowances for bad and doubtful debts 2.8} (2.82) - -
) T ) T ®) N - P 3
o Total (A+B) ... e _— 407.99 858 3.78 135
8, Other financial assets
~ B Non current Current
Mareh 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Derivative Instrantent carried a¢ fnir value throngh OCI#
_ Cahflowke i 633,79 1,009,04 238,62 -
fa: PRI A) 633.79 1,009.04 238,62 -
Carried at amortised cost
Other recoverables from related parties jrefer nate 35(b)) e -
Unsecured, considered good - EEb B - - 42,03 97.75
Recoverables which have significant increase in credit risk
Advanceto AATpddunderprotest S = - 44521 hd
. : s - - 488.24 87.76
_Loss: provision against advance to AAT paid unider profe . - (#4621) -
= ) ®) - - 42,03 8716
Carrled at amortised cost
Others
Tnterest acoraed on fixed deposits and others roat = - - 1126 60.58
Non-irade receivable [refer note 41(b)] . - - 127.64 11145 5749 77.00
[et of provision of doubtful debts Rs, 0,81 crores (March 31, 2020 Rs. 0.82 crores)]
Unbilled receivables (S S : 12,01 12.33 43691 464.51
Margin money deposit* (refer note 13) . . 028 0.26 - -
Otherseceivable : . S - - - 15.41
= [ ‘ © 13993 124.04 553,66 617.50
) ___'[ml other financial assets (A+B+C) 713,72 1,133.08 83631 J15.26

.. #Financial- assets at fair value reflect the change in fair value of call spread options and coupan only hedge, designated as cash flow hedges to hedge the future cash outflow in USD on setlement of
- foreign exchange borrowings of USD.1,311.35 million Rs. 9,587.28 Crore) [March 31, 2020; USD 1,311.35 million (Rs. 9,922.33 Crore)] on senior secured foreign cutrency notes and coupon payment
in USD on borrowing of USD 438.75 million.

* R30.28 Crore (March 31, 2020: Rs 0,26 Crore) against License fes to Sonth Delhi Muricipal Corporation.

9, Other asseis

Non current Current
. . March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Capital advances : 853.11 1,044,76 - .
- ) §53.11 1,044.76 - -
Adgvances othex than capital advance
.. _ Advance to suppliers - - 73.06 100.90
: ' ® - - 73.06 100.90
Others
Prepaid axpenses e S 15,55 16.41 11.46 8.18
Depasit with govemnment authorities including paid under protest frefer note 34 I (2)] . - - 9,64 8.13
Other borrowing cost to the extent not amertised - 822 - 3.73 -
Lease equilisation assets frefer note 3(aj] 1,i48.08 412.87 - -
Good & service tax rofund recetvable : i : - - 9.08 0.08
vernment authorities H 47762 : 836 306.96
. . ©) 1,64947 T 429.28 33.77 323.35
Total otfier assets (A+BC) . P - 2,502.58 1,474.04 106.83 424.25

(This space has heen intenlianally Teft bank).
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Delhi International Airport Limited
CIN, U63033DL2006PLC146936
Notes to the standalone as at March 31, 2021

(Aquunf»in Rupees »Crgfe}, undess uﬂxerwise st?ted)

10, Income tax

LT March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Current income tix: ) - -
Deferred tax:
Relating to origivation and rwersﬂ of temporary di (165.73) (11,79)
Income tax credit reported in the statement o o (165.73) (11.79)
OC] Section
Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during in Vthf year:
e L . ___ March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
Re-measurement gains (losses) on defined benefit plans~: 0.32) 0.69
Cash flow Hedge Reserve o i : (69.54) (6.75)
Income tax charged to OCL ) s o ’ . (69.86) (6.06)
- Reconciliation of tax exp and the jng profit multiplied by India’s d ic tax xate for March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020:
T . March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Acconnting profit before tax - o e {483.14) 1.36
Tax at the applicable tax rate of 34.94% (March 31, 2020: 34.94%) {168.81) 0.48
Exempt incoms not included in calculation of tax - (26.06)
Adjusnnents on which deferred tax is not created: - i {11.39) (1.16)
Donation paid disallowed L 210 13.35
Interest on delayed payment of income tax At . - (0.01)
Other adj . . ) 12.37 1.61
Total tax expense o : {165.73) (11.79)
Total tax expense reported in the statement of pmﬁ and loss T (165.73) (11.79)
Defrred tax:
el Brergai e s e - Balanee sheet 8 of profit or loss
e eREL IR —March 3%, 2021 Masch 31, 2020 _March31,2028 _ Merch31,2020
Deferred tax liahility
.o - Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes N (851.59) (884.30) nmn 40.75
= . On account of upfront fees being amortized using EIR method (50.24) (30.29) 19.95) (14.13)
Fair value of investment in mutual fond : : 131 0.52) .79 (0.15)
. - Right to use assed (6.30) (5.69) @.22) (5.09)
... Rent Equalization reserve B (401,18) (144.27) (256.91) (144.27)
_ Cash flow hedgoreserve (seemoto Ibelow) - . . L (02.36) (105.61) 13.28 (25.08)
- R ) (1,402.98) (1,170.08) 232.90) (148.17)
Deferred tax asset .
Unabsorbed depreciation - 782,26 790.14 {7.88) 19.18
Others. Disallowances. (see note 2 below). . . 162.82 13.57 156,31 0.52
" Unrealised forex loss on borrowings -~ . 78.40 104,18 . (25.78) 65.69
I ibles (Airport € ton rights}) ) 54,94 58.86 3.92) {3.93)
Advance from custarmer . ) - 0.62 ’ 0.62) (1.25)
Lease Ligbility - ) 629 493 137 4.93
Interest income creddzd in capital work in prcgress . 69.73 027 69.46 0.27
Nou trade teceivable defarment. - s 1013 8.82 131 (2.09)
: Unpaid labity of AALrevenue shate _— : R 184.56 66.35 18,15 . 66.35
Other't bmrowmg cost to the extent not amorh.scd o 46.34 26.47 20.37 ) 13.23
- ) — 1,402.98 107421 328.77 153.90
Net deferved fax asser/ (labilitles)* e : (95.87) (95387 G.73)
*The. Ci -has signifi bsorbed:d iation as:per-the:tax laws, In view of the ab of virtual inty of realization of uabsorbed depreciation in the ft ible firture,

deferrod tax assets has besn recognized only to the extent of deferred tax liability during the year.
1. Includes Ra69:54 crore-deferred $ax liability (March 31, 2020 ; deferred tax lability for Rs. 6. 75 crors) on cash flow hedge reserve charged / (redited) to OCL

~2: InaludesRs. 0.32 crore-deferred:tax Liability: (Mach 31, 2020 : deferred tax assets for Rs. 0.69 arore) on remeasuroment (gain)/ loss on defined benefit plans charged to OCI

Reconeiliations of net deferred tax labilities

Wiarch 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Opeing balance as at boginning of the year 95.87 101.60
Tax income during the period recognised in profit or loss {4) (165.73) (11,79)
Tax income during the period recognised in OCI 8) 69.36 6.06
Movement during the year (A+B) (95.87) (5.73)
Closing halance - 93.87

The Coropany offsets tax asscts and lizbilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
linbilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.




Dethi Internatipnal Airport Limnited
CIN. U63033DL2006PLC146936
Netes to the datone {i ag at Mareh 31, 2021

(All amounts in Rupess Crore, except otherwise stated)

i, Inventories .

(valued ai lower of cost or net reaiizable vnlue) PR i March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
Stores and spares ERT o i 6.27 6.55
T e 6,27 6.55
12, Trade receivables
Current
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
‘Trade reccivables -
Refated parties (refer note 35(b)) : 20.64 20.48
Others S 74.20 56.05
. _ — 94,84 76.53
Break up for security details:
Trade receivables
Secured, considered good** 41.50 38.59
Unsecuted, considered good (refer note 41(b)) o 53.34 37.94
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit Risk 3,15 3.14
o S ) 9799 79.67
Tmupairnrent Aowsance (allowance for credit lon)
Less: Unsecured, consideredgood - B N (3.15) (3.14)
e s - . 94.34 76.53
%% Trade receivable to the extent covered by seouri
Trade receivables includes:-

Ea . i . Current

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Trnes from entities in which the Cbmpany s non-execuﬁvc director is a director

Airports Authority of India i 2 8,08 0.02
GMR Watora Energy Limited e < : 531 412
GMR. Infrastructure Limited - - .32 083
GMR. Aviation Private Limited 0.01 0.18
GMR Bajoli Holi Hydropower Private Limited - - 2.30 231
GMR Airports Limited aE <o . .75 0,19
GMR Kamalanga Energy Limited : .00 225
TIM Dethi Airport Advertising Private Limited .. - 0.23 -
GMR Air Cargo and Acrospace Engineering anted 0.01 -
GMR Airport Dovelopers Limited 0.01 -
GMR Hydorabad International Airport Limited ... . EO 0.13 0,02
3:Cash and Cash Equivalenis Cermmi Non-carrent Current
ot tinm LT :_March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Balances with Banks
-On current accountsi = X - - 387.67 63.00
-Depoits with original maturity of less vhan thr:z menths* - - 2,946.26 1,986.23
Cheques / drafis on hand - - 0.19 0.60
Cash on hand - - 0.08 0.07
{A) - -~ 3&.20 2,042_.;2_
Other bank balances
- Margin money deposit 08.23 026 - -
Atnount disclosed under offier non-current financial assets (refer note 8] 0.28) 0.26) - -
®) - - - .
Total (A+B) . .- . - - 3,334.20 2,049.30

- # Cashiand:cash equivalents inchudes balatice on current account with banks for Rs. 1.77 crore (March 31, 2020: Rs 5.17 crore) in respect of Marketing Fund.

_.*Deposit with bartks eams interest at {loating: ratesbased on daily bank deposit rates. Shoet-tarm depusxts are made for varying periods of between one day and three months, depending on the

immediate cash requirements of the Company, and eam interest at the respective shori-ferm deposit rates.

- At March 31; 2021, the Company has-available Rs. 87.35 crore (March 31, 2020: Rs. 222.40 crore} of dt t ing facilities for future operating activities.




Delhi International Airport Limited
CIN. U63033DL2006PL.C146536
Notes to the dal ial uts a5 at Marzh 31, 2021

(A1l amounts in Rupees ise stated)

Current

T March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Balances with banks:
— Deposits with original maturity of more than three: mom.hs but less than 12 months# 449,80 827.09
S - Aﬁﬂ.ﬂéi 827.09
; smmczime ==
o # Deposits with bank includes Rs. 55,16 crore (March 31, 2020; Rs. 65.50 crore) il respect of Marketing Fund.
Loy e _Break up of financials assets earried at amortised cost and at fair value through profit and loss and at fair vatae through OCE
. L R Non ewrrent Curreat
I T T March 31, 2021 March 3], 2020 Mareh 31, 2021 March 31,2020
""" 7 Finaacial assets carried at amortised cos o
Investment in commercial papers (refer note 6.3) - - 463.73 828.95
Trade Receivables (refer note 12) : - - 94,84 76.53
Cash and cash equivalents (refer note 13 _-- - - - 3,334.28 2,049.30
Bank balance other than cash and cash equwalents (rafer note 14) . - - 449,30 827.09
Loans (refernote 7) ~ © 40799 858 3,78 135
- - chg ji_nymal assets (refer note 8) ) 139.93 124.04 597.69 715.26
7;77 ) e 547.92 132.62 4,946,04 449848
Financial assets carried st Fair value through OCE
. Cash Fflow hedge- Call sprcad option (refer note 8) <= R 633,79 1,009. 238.62 -
N ’ 63379 1,009.04 238,62 -
Financial ussets cavried at Fair value through profit or loss
Investment inmumal funds (refer note 6,3). 150 - - 744,84, 40595
o _Investments in F,quigisharies greﬁr yg&&Z) .01 0.01 - -
JR— Lol LEL .01 0,01 744.84 405.25
Tofal finsicial assels (A+BHC) LA 114167 _Sms TR

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




Delhi International Airport Limited

CiN, U63033DL2006PLC146936
- Notes to the standalong financial-statements as-at- March 31; 2621
amounts in e5 Crov ¢ otherwise siate
18 Equity S!ure Capi!al
- B Margh 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Authorised shaves T .
300 (March 31, 2020; 300) equily- shm’m of Rs lU mch - 3,000 3,000
o 3,000 3,000
I L e
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares (No. in Crores) .
245 (March 3 l, 2020: 245) equily sl;q:s of R.s. IO u\ch fu!ly paidup 2,450 2,450
: 2450 2350
e a. Recongiliation of Shares Omxtandmg at the bcgmnlng and end of the reporting year
e T T . Eqmtyshar& " March 31, 2021 Mareh 31, 2020
: o . } No. in crore {Rs. In Crores} No, in crore {Rs. Ja Crores)
- - Atlhnbegummg of the year - T o £45 2450 245 2,450
Jesued doring the year - - . -
" *Ottstaicing ot o ofhoyear [~ ) %5 2450 245 2430

b. Terms/Rights Attached to equity Shares
The Company has uly one olass of equity shaves huvmgagnrvaluc of Rs, 10/- per share. Each holder of equity sharz is catitled to one vote per share, The dividend proposed by the Board of Direotors is

" subject to the approval of the sharcholders in the ensutng Amyal General Mesting.
s the cvent, of Hiquidation of the Company. the hiolders of equity shares would be entitled to reoeive temaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in

propartion to the pumber of equily shares held by the Further the tders have entered dnte share holders agreement whereby special sights have heen assigned to the Airports Authoriy
_ i 1} in respest of appomntment of fhe ne x in the Board of Direstors, nppmva!ofmsﬁvedshimhnlduxmﬂhudmuu:byaﬂimnmavmoﬂhcm Further in cass if any
: . the transfer it shares subject to resiriction of lock in perind in Operaticn, M and Devel holders, nther sharcholders will bave first tight of

refusal i recordsmace with the tarms of s sharcholders agreement,

¢. Shares held by helding/ intermediate holding compzny and its subsidlary

Outnf:qultysharcswsundhyth:Cmmany,shareshcldbyus""” diate holding company ard its subsidi as below:
““Name of Sharchiolder =i Miarch 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
GMR Infrastructure ed, fterme holding company
100 (March 31, 2620: 100) eqnily ehare of Rs.10 each fudly paid up 0.60 0,00
GMR Energy Limiled, Subsidiary of the intermediate holding company
100 (March 31, 2020: 100) equity share of Rs. 10 cach fully paid up 0.00 0.00
GMR Airports Limited along with M, Sriivas Bonmidala ’ 0.06 000
| (March 31, 2020; 1) equity shate of Rs.10 each fully paid up
GMR Adrports Limited along with My Grandhi Kivan Kunar, 0,00 0.00
1 (March 31, 2020: 1) equity shars of Rs. 10 cach fully paid up
GMR Airports Limited, the bolding company
156,80 cxore (March 31, 2020: 156.80 crore) equity share of Rs, 10 each fully paid up 1,368 1,568
d. Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% of equity shares in the Company
T e T Rl - March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Nurumbers % holding in Class Nurtimbers % Holding iz Class
Eqmtysbms of Rs. xllearhfullypud . .
Airporls Authority of India 637,000,600 26% 637,000,000 26%
GMR Afrposts Limited . R . 1,567,999,798 64% 1,567,999,798 4%
Fraport AG Frankiurt Alrpm Sﬂ'viaes Worldwide 245,000,000 18% 245,000,000 10%
_ —e- 2,449.999.798 100% 2,449, 999,798 100%
Aspcrrecmdsuftha(krmpawmcmdmgltsmgnmafshsm fmembers and oiher declarations received from share bolders regarding beneficial interest, the above share holding represents legat and
bensficial ownership of shares as at the balangs sheet date.
{This.space has been.intentionalty laft blank).
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Delhi International Airport Limited
CIN, U63033DL2096FLC146936
‘Notes to the staudalone financial statements a8 at March 31, 2021

. (All amoupts in Rm Crore, excent uthervwise stated)

16 Other Equity

Retained earnings . I
Bulunce as per last financial statements

Net (loss) profit for the year ;-
Re-measurcment gain/” (foss) on defined benefit plans
Closing balance 777777 T ST

Other items of Comprehensive Income
Cash flow hedge reserve

Balance as per last financial statements- .
Net Movement during the year

(s space has been Intentionally left blank}

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
29435 282438
(317.41) 13.13

050 (.28
@247 394,35

(189 (14.44)

12918 12.55

127.29 (1.39)

10482 30746




Peihi International Alrport Limited

CIN, U63033DL2006PLC146936

Netes to the standalone financial stateaents a5 at March 31, 2621
(!

se stated).

17 Borrowings

BRonds

6.125% (2022) senior secwred foreign currency notes (Note-1)
6.125% (2026) senipr secured foreign currency notes Mote-2)
6.45% (2029) senlor securcel foreign currency wotes (Note=3)
10.964% (2025) Non Convertible Debentures (NCD)

Amount disclosed under the head “other cun\:nlﬁmndnl linkilities™ (refer note 18)

Net amount

- .. 6.125% Senlor Secured Foreiga Currency Notes (Note-1) of USD
from Intemnationat capital market carrying a fixed intezest rate of 6.12

- ...105.422 miltion { Rs.. 770,74 rore) to existing USD 288.75 million bondhol

lenders agresments, to the extent permissible wader OMDA.

b, 6:125% Senior Secured Foreign Currency Notes (MNole-2)
from Intemational capital maskct carrying 1 fixe
- atall, e fture revenues; rocolvables, Trust

ctent

Non - Current

March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
2,027 2,167.04
3,800.96 3,932.07
3,688.81 3,821.718
3,183.63 -
12,776.57 9!920.89
(2,10217) L
10,674.40 9,920.39

287 54 million (March 31, 2020; USD 286,40 miiltion), principal ovistanding of USD 288.75 million (March 31, 2020: USD 288.75 miltion)

9% p.a. plus applicable withholding tax. The Note-1 are duo for repayment in Febnuary, 2022 boweever I April 2021, DIAL has paid USD

rofect 45 detailed in the lenders nenis, to the

ldusnspcrmuizram:planmmtnfpmmdsefm.Thhnn&mmnndbyﬁxstnnkpaﬁ-msmdwgennau(h:mmremvmuus,
receivables, Trust and Retention sccount, any other reserve, other baok accounis and insurance proceeds of the Company and it the rights, tiiles, interests, ponmits in respect of the project documents as detuiled in

of USD 520,03 miltion (March 31, 2020; USD 519,67 million), principal outsianding of USD 522,60 million (March 31, 2020: USD 522.60 miltion)
rate of 6.125% p.o. plus applicable withholding trx. The Note-2 asc duz for mpayment it October 2026, The Ioan Is secured by fivst rauk pari-passu charge
tention accounl, aty ofber tesceve, ollior burk accounis and insimince procesds of the Company and il the rights, ditles, inlerests, pennits in respeot of the
issible under OMDA.

issued USD 500.00 million 6.45% Scnior Secured Forelgn Cumency notes in two different tranches for USD 350 miilion and USD 156 million, The Company

xeceived npfvont premium of USD 12,00 million on iss
{ii). 6.45% Senior Secured: Forsign.

.. 4.0 During the omrent yeas; the Camapany has.

capital market: carrying:a-fixed:Interest rate of 6,45% pa. plus applicabl
TOVETIIES, md\(ah_tm,—'rm;t and Retention account, any other reserve, otlier
detailed in the Tenders agreements, to the exient pernissible ander OMDA.

sssued MonsConvertible Debentures (NCDs) of Rs, 3257.10 crore on March 30,202 1, NCDs were issued onan upfront discount of 1.33% Proceeds from NCDs
J £ Phased A i 1
g

1oy the-cnlire 2022

yassu charge onall:the fatuxe revemmes, secpivabics,

18 Other Finaniial Liabilities

Security Deposits from trade concessionaites- others
Securily Denosils from commercial property developers
Barnest monsy. deposits

Capitat Croditars #

Retention motiey

Annuol fees payable to AAT frefer note 350

Curvent maturities of long term bomowings (refer note 17)*
Tnperest accruied but sot dis on borrowings

Employos henefitexpenses pryable

T otal finaneial Tiabilices at ed cost

Total other financial Labilities

*Subsequently in April 2021, DIAL has paid USD 105.422 million (Rs. 770.74 erore) to axisting USD 288.75 milli

1)10.964% Non Cotvertible Debeatures of Rs; 3183.63 crore (March 31, 2020: Nil), principal outstagding of Rs.

of the project documents as detailed in the lenders agreements, to the extent permissible under OMDA.
.., With respect to Note-1, Nate-2, Note-3 and NCD above; the Company hos to follow Fixed Chanse Coverage Ratio.as provided under the Indenture for any atditionat indebtedness and other limitations, The
Company has complied with {he financial covenants prescribed in the finanting documents and the Indenture.

Non

() Diring the previons year; the Company has issued US
g of USD 150 miition tranche on soconnt of difference beéween prevailing market inferest rate and intevest saic ot Notes,

Curreacy-Notes (Note~3) of USD 504.56 miltion (March 31, 2020: 505.11), prinsipal outstanding of USD 500 miflion (March 31, 2020: USD 500 muillion} from International
e willsholding tax. The Note-3 are duo for repayment in Junc 2029, The loan is securcd by first xank par-passt chazge on all the fupore
bank acconats and insurance preceeds of tie Company and all the rghts, titles, inferests, permits in respect of the profect documents as

3257.10 crar (Marcit 31, 2020: Nil) issued to Cliffton Limited (2 Forcign Portfotio Investor
tax). The NCD

repaymest in October 20625. MCDs aro secured by firet vank pad-

registered with SER) carrying » fixed intercst rate of 10.964% p.a. payable semi-amuslly (plus h
“Trust aud Reteation account, any ofher rasarve, othurbank gccounts and insurncs proconda of tha Compary and all the righta, title, intorcts, peemits n recgroot.

it

Lorren Carrent
Marck 31,2021 ____March 31,2020 March 31, 2021 ____March 31, 2020

382.87 394.23 244,41 194,94
1539 143 - -
- - 166 196

- - 54,27 308,91
646 66.85 45.39 4000
528.00 189,88 - -
- - 210217 -

- » 20141 20197

= - 23,88 e d38
93332 66539 2,683.09 75036
23332 §63.39 2683.89 75036

iders as per tender of proceeds of NCD.

#Tncludes bills payable of R, 392 csote towards goods-and serviees', whickare initialy paid'by bavks where dhere is oo moourse onthe Comparny.

1% Deferred Revenue

Pederred
Uneasned revene (refernote bbelow)

At Aprl 1
Deferted durug the yenr -

(&) Uneawied reven

At April 1
Defetred during the yeae
Relensed to the statement of profit anid loss

Note: i

on financist liabilities catried at amnttized cost {refer notc a below)

(s)Deferred fneome on finaneiai Habilittes carried at amortized cost

New Current Current

March 31,2021 March 31, 2020 Diareh 31,2021 March 31, 7020
1,750.83 1.847.29 ) 90.30 95.04
6.69 441 245 841
1.757.52 1.851.70 9328 103.45

e

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
1,54233 198242
213 55.86

102,83 5.9:

{that.

1, Tntereat free security deposit recsived frol

propedy

and
anwrtised yaius and transaction vatue of the seeurily deposits received bas beca recognised a5 defened reverue.

b, Uneamed reyene as at March 31, 2021 represents ‘contract labilities” due to adoption of modified

1,841.63 194233

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
12.82

1972

328.70 359.50

£332.38) (366.40)
9,14 12,82

its tenm) are canvied at amortised cost. Diffetence between the

ith Ind AS 115,




Delbi Teternational Aivport Limited
CIN. U63033BL206PLC146Y36
Notes to the standatone financial statements as at March 31. 2021

| amoyi TOre, exce) thcmnnu e e it
20 Ogher Lisbilides
e - Non Current Current
. R LoTTTTe e S . L March 33, 2021 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Advances from comanercial property developets | 46.15 46.59 19.27 33.13
Advancs from customer ‘ . 1,58 153 25,28 73.16
Marketing fand lisbility - - 5L72 5713
Tax deducted at souree/Tax Collected at soures payabl: - - 48,33 40.26
Goos & Service tax payable - - 3836 3344
Orher statutory ducs . - - - 227 223
.  Qthuer lubilities . . - - 2127 2.2
- _ - . 47.70 48.14 213.80 261.57
Notes: .
1. Advances fi al property ypersand Advances: 1 as at March 31, 202 represenis ‘contract Babilitics’ due to adoption of modificd retrospective approach of transition in

T T accontace with In AS 115,

_-2;-Applying fhe practical expedicnt ag given mlndAs 115, the Company kas niot disclosed the fesuaining performancs obligation related disclosuses for contracts ‘where the revenue recognized conesponds
diveotly with the value to the csiomer of the eniity's perfomtmes completed to date, typicatly thiso contracts where invoioing is on time and material basis.

- 3. Cuniract fiabilitles fnclude transaction price, uther than thuse meeting Insion criferia mentoned abave, related bligath be satisfied within ouc year for Rs. 44.55 crores and after
one year for R, 47.70 crores.
21 Short Torm Borvowings
T March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Short Term Loans:™
Working capital demand lamﬂnﬂgbgmk (eaured)* - 26475 - -
B 26478 =

-.;'Th:Compn:\ylnlsml@dWoﬂdngmpkdﬁa’hUﬁnm}dClbmﬂgwhidlispaynbhbdwmlzﬂml&ﬂﬂm th insingle i and cartied an intertst rate of 7.5% per
anmom (March 31, 2020: Mil), The caereat working capital fhcility fs valid i March 03, 20222, The working capital facility is secured with:

d liguidated dy issibl the OMDA and the Escrow Account

{§).A first mking pori passu charge/ assignaent of all insurance polictes,
Agreement,

sl s et (u)Aﬁrumhngmﬂpasunhmgdas:gmmn[aumenghm,dua pmmtx.uppnwalsandhnnmsofucBmmuum,mmﬂmmpednﬂﬁerijocnmm,mmdawmﬂ:mmmmnmnm
c:nnntpmuod wirder the OMDA and the Escrow Accotnt Agreement;
les of thc Botrower iug dues to the Autharity) subject to the provisions of the Escrow Account Agreement and the OMDA.

e oo {H1) A fivst ranking pari passa cliacge onall the revemes /

22 Trade payubles” e Currem
R . wmeeen o DB March 31, 2621 March 31, 2020

Totat dues of micro ises and smafl ises (Inctuding i

dues of related party of Rs, 3,67 crorc) 17.77 13.00

Total outstanding dues of creditors ether than micr :nmpnsas and swall enterprises

«Related partics [refer note 35)] 7883 89.03

= Others E 268,70 199.89
- 36530 301,92

*Tuchudes bills payable of Rs. 21,85 crore (March 31, 2020; Nil) towards goods and servicos , which ar initially paid by barks where there is 1o recourso on tlie Copary.

Digclosure a8 per Section 22 uf"l'ke Micro, Smalt and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006”.
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

‘The principal amount and the ntmestduﬂkemnn mmMMngunpsul to

aty supplies: .
~ Pringipel amonnt E : wn 13.00
«Tnterest thereon . - -

The amount of interest paid by tha buyer ia terms of section 16, along with the amourts of the payment made ta the.

supplier beyond the appointed day.

I S The amuust of Interest duc and payable for the period of defay In making payment (which have breen paid but beyond .
: the appointed day during thie year) but without adding the interest specified under this Act - -

“The arvount of interest acoraed and remeining vepatd

“The amoant of firihar interest remaining dne and payable even in the snccecding years, until such date when the
interest dues thova are actually paid to the smatl investor - .

Tetms and conditions of the sbove fnancial lisbilities:
Tumds payables are non-lmerest bearing and are normatly settled on 60-day torms.
Related parties payable are paysble on demand onre they get due.

For explanations on the Company’s credit risk management processes, refer (o Note 39,




Delhi International Airgort Limited

CIN. U63033DL2006PLC146936
Notes fa the standalong finaueia] statements as at March 31, 2021
& athesyvise s . AR e e i e i L
23 Provisions
: Nop Current Current
- b 2 ch 31,2021 31
for emplog
Provision for leave beneits {refer note 33(a)] LT - B 29.52 28.52
Provision for Gratuity {refer note 33(¢)) - 3.33 1.62 - -
Provision for superanmation v e - - 032 9.32
Others o - - 119.73 119.73
L . T 353 162 sea J49:57 14957
Break up of financial liabilities
o S, Non Cyrrent, Current
. PRI e R March 31,2024 March 31, 2020 Morch 31,2621 March 31, 2020
Financial lizbility envried at amortised cost
Borrowings (refer note 17) - 10.574.40 9.920.89 - -
Shost Term Borrowings (sefer rots 21)° . 264.75
Trade Payables (efer note 22) . - - 36530 49080
Lease tisbilities : 1448 1180 3.61 2.7
Qther finencisl Hebiliti - 93332 475.51 2,683,029 750.36
oL T 11,622.12 1040820 3316.75 124493

(This space has been intentionally left dlank)




_ A amounts in Rupees Croxe, except otherwite stated)

Detti International Aivport Liméfed

CIN. U63033DL2006PLC146936
Notes to the dalone fi ial s at March 31,2021

.24 Revenuo From Qnexations

Revenue from confract with enstomers
Acronautical (A) ol
Non ~ Acronautical

Dty free S
Relail .
Advertisement .
Food & Beverages

Cargo

Groud Handling

Paking
Land & Space — Rentals =+
Others

Tatal Non -Acionautical (B)

Other operating revenus
Revenue from conmercinl property development (C)

TOTAL (A+B+C) i

25, Otherimcome

Taterest income on financial asse
Bark deposits and ofhers
Security deposits given

" Dividend Incomte on non-curvent bavestments carvied at cost: -

Other non-opevating income

Gain on sale of financiaf asset carred at Fair vatue through profit and loss
Current investmenis-Mutual fund;

Fair value gain on finmcial instruments et fair value through proi

Profit e sale of property, plant & equiproent

Itrcome from Dty credit scrips Jrefer note 41(m)}

Exoess provision written back

Miscelianeous income

# Fair value gain on financial instrument at fair value tluvugh proﬁ{ & loss relates to current investment in mutul funds,

(This space has been intentlonaily lefi blank)

March 31, 2020

Warch 31, 2021
399.99 949.16
89,43 46938
4433 167.61
50.53 157,31
4752 16141
29948 26073
6645 11417
19.59 3435
51590 53769
14497 292.99
1,278.20 2,204.64
745.28 755.62
242347 3.900.42
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020

5338 140.49
020 036
27.38 74,58
12.06 35.64
372 148

0.16 -

. 37,95

» 4141
169 229
93.60 334.20




Delhi Interuationat Atrport Limited
CIN. U63033DL2006PLC146936
WNotes to the o as at March 31,2021

(A) amounts in Rupees Crore, excent ollierwige stated)
lﬁ..Emphyse.BeneﬁlsExpm;e e

Salaries, wages and boms
Contribution to provident and offter fimds
Gratuity expenses [refer note 33(c)],
Stafi welfare expeanses

27, Depreciation and amortization espense

Depreciation on pmpen.y plant and equipiment (ref note’ 4)
Amoriization of intangible assets (rafer note 5)
Depresiation on Right to use tho Asset [refer nofe 41(s)] _

28. Finance Costs

Interest on borrowings

Call spread option premium -

Inferest expenses on financizl habihty caricd at amortised cost -
Other fnterest 5 -
Other borrowing cosis

29, Other expenses

Utllity expenses™
Repairs md maintenance
Plant and mzchinery

Others .
‘Manpower hire charges i nat oz
Airpott Operator fees -
Security reketed expenses
Insurance
Cousmnables e A
P and
Provision against advance loAAI paid under protest {refer note 34(1)(1-1)]
Travelling and conveyance .

Rates and taxes
Rent (including Jease xentals)
Advertising and sales promotion
Communication costs
Printing and stationery
Directors” sitting fees
Payraent to axditors (refer note Aheluw)
Provision for bad debts / bad debty written off
Exchange difference {net)
Corporate cost allocation
Collection charges (net)
Donations
CSR expenditure (refer note B below)
Less of- salenf prepmy plant &eqmpmem

| property devel

Ivhscellanaous expenses

A. Payment to Auditors (Included in ofker expenm mlmve)
(Excluding Gonds aod service mx) B

As Auditor
Audit fee coel s
Teax audit fee R e

Other services
- Othar services (including ccrhﬁcaﬂuu fus)*#
-Reimbursement of expenses - -

*Exeludes audit fees capnzhsnd for Rs. 0,32 erore ot 10.964% (2025) Non Convertible Debentures issued during the year. (Mard-sl 2020; 2,00 crore on 45% (2029) (2029) senior secured foreign cunenny

rotes isstied during previeus yesr).

March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
19167 187.14
12.93 13.80
2.38 216
5385 628
213.33 200.38
20038,
Maxch 31,2021 ‘March 31, 2020
255,68 61385
.44 622
B 318
568.85 626.25
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
304,11 334,99
201.26 199.25
T3 88.97
243 3.13
145 232
029 -
1541
696.09 678.66
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
19.60 60,70
102,70 115,38
wn 2453
9.2 3333
2077 19,77
12472 14149
10821 103.80
19.18 2748
177 10.97
1672 1627
6228 99,08
44621 .
2739 35.88
1143 1224
124 429
455 14.59
279 268
104 157
826 022
672 075
. 010
139 27
4995 7245
112 7.34
0.97 28.20
505 10,00
- 2,25
1430 15.43
284 625
11582 §79.30
Mareh 31,2021 March 31, 2020
a.60 .60
0.6, 0.06
001 0.0
205 0.08
_um 075,

# Excludes mdit fees of Rs 0,56 Crote adjsted as upfrout fess with borrowing cost and amortised over the life of 10.964% (2025) Non Convertible Debentures issued during the year.




Delhi Interpational Alrport Limited

CIN. U63033DL2006PLLC146936
Notes ta the dal & at March 31, 2021
__{All gmoynts in Runees Crore, except othervise
- B, Details of CSR sxpenditure; —— . o L
T . Mareh 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
1) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company duritig the year - 9.50
()] Ammmtmwt during the year ended on March 31, 2021: I cask Yet 1o be paid in eash Total
i)  Construction/acquisitions of any asset - - -
,,,,, ii) On purposes other than (i) above. .. 492 013 503
= :6) Amouné spent diging the year endei ont March 31,2020: Incash Vet to be paid fn cash Totat
) Construction/acquisition of any asset 0.02 6.13 8,15
i) On purposes other than (i} above .- 9.60 0.25 9.85
30, Componenis of OCI
The disaggregation of changes to OCI by aach type of reserve in pquily is shawa below:
During the peviod cuded March 31,2021 Marsch 31, 2021
Cash Flow Hedge Reserve {net) (131.22)
Less; reclagsified to statement of profit and 33594
198.72
During the period exded March 31, 2020 March 31, 2020
Cash Flow Hedge Reserve (nef) 825.85
Less: reclassified to statement of profit and loss {406.55)
I JRNS—— -
31 Earnings. Per Share (EPS).
s The falk .
- B “es March 31, 2021 March 31, 2620
(Loss) profit attributable to equity lrolders of the company (B1741) 1315
S ‘Welghted average number of equity: shares used for Computing Earning Per Share (Basic & Diluted) 245.00 245,00
; — e » 24500 24500
Eaming Per Share (Basio) Rs) =~ - (1.30) 0.05
Earning Per Share (Diluted) (Rs) -, . (1.30) 0.05
- - 10400 10.00

Face value per share (Rs)

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




Delhi International Airport Limited
CIN. U63033DL2006P1L.C146936
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(All amounts in Rupees crore, except otherwise stated)
32. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

. The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and

o omon-assumptions-that affect the reported-amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying
.. _disclosures, and the disclosure.of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in

future periods.

32.1 Judgements

.- . -Inthe process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements,
. which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

Discounting rate

—The Company-has considered incremental borrowing rate of Airport sector as at transition date, for measuring
... deposits-being financial assets and financial liabilities, at amortised cost. The incremental borrowing rate have
_been revised for period starting from April 1, 2020 for all the deposits taken/received post March 31, 2020. The
-.-impact has, accordingly, been duly accounted in the Financial Statements.

Consideration of significant financing component in 2 contract

. = The Company sells pouring rights at airport for which contract period is for more than one year. The Comparny
. -concluded that there is a significant financing component for those contracts where the customer elects to pay in

... advance considering the length of time between the customer’s payment and rendering services, as well as the

prevailing interest rates in the market. ' .

- - +In determining the interest to be applied to the amount of consideration, the Company concluded that the interest

- rate implicit in the contract (i.e., the interest rate that discounts the cash selling price of the equipment to the

- amount paid in-advance) is-appropriate because this is commensurate with the rate that would be reflected in a

--vseparate financing transaction between the entity and its customer at contract inception.

Non applicability of Service Concession Arrangement (SCA)

- DIAL-had entered into Opetation, Management and Development Agreement (*OMDA”) with. Airports

. - Authority of India (* AAF"), which gives DIAL an exclusive right to operate, matntain, develop, modernize and

- manage the Delhi Airport on a revenue sharing model for an initial term of 30 years, which can be extended by

another 30 years on satisfaction of certain terms and conditions pursuant to the provisions of the OMDA. Under

the agreement, AAI has granted exclusive right and autherity to undertake some of the functions of the AAI

- being the functions of operation, maintenance, development, design, construction, upgradation, modernization,

s woowiees - finance’ and management of the Airport and to perform services and activities at the airport constituting

. “Aeronautical Services’ and “Non-Aeronautical Services’. For prices, aeronautical services are regulated, while

the regulator has no control over determination of prices for Non-Aeronautical Services. The management of the

. Company conducted detailed analysis to determine applicability of Appendix D of Ind AS 115 and concluded

.. that the same does not apply to DIAL. Company concession arrangement has significant non-regulated revenues,

- which are apparently not ancillary in nature, as these are important from DIAL, AAI and users/passengets

perspectiverFurther;-the regulated and non-regulated services are substantially interdependent and cannot be

“offered in isolation.The airport prefise is being used both for providing regulated services (Aeronautical

. Services) and for providing non-regulated services (N on-aeronautical Services). Accordingly, the management
has concluded that SCA does not apply in its entirety to the Conmpany.




Delhi International Airport Limited
CIN. U63033DL2006PLC146936
Nutes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

ek I : (Al amounts in Rupees crore, except otherwise stated)
Annnal Fee to AAL
fome mne o7 oA per the Concession Agreement (OMDA) entered into with AAI in April 2006, the Company is required to
2. pay-t0 -AAT annual fee (AF) each year at 45.99% on its projected revenue and same shall be payable in twelve
- s - gqual monthly instalments (MAF), to-be paid in each calendar month. As per Article 1.1 of Chapter I of OMDA,
Revenue” is defined to mean all pre-tax gross revenue of DIAL with certain specified exclusions.

. Manageiment of the-Company is of the view that the certain income / credits arising on adoption of Ind-AS was

~ not in contemplation of parties in April 2006 when this Concession Agreement was signed / entered. Further,

_ these income/credits in Statement of Profit and Loss do not represent actual receipts from business operations,

. from any external sources and therefore, these incomes/ credits should not be treated as “Revenue” for
- calculation of MAF to- AAI-Accordingly, the Company, basis above and Legal Opinion, has provided the
_-monthly annual fee:to -AAI-based on Revenue as per the Ind AS financial statements after adjusting such

incomes/credits [refer note 34(T)(h) and 41(1)].
Impairment of non-financial assets

..+ Impairment exists when the: carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount,

- . which is'the higher of ifs fair value less costs.of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal

- calcitlation-is based: on-gvailable- data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar

- assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use caleulation

- is'based on a discounting cash flow (DCF) model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the pext five

-+ years: and: do-not-include restructuring activities that the Company is not yet committed to or significant future

.. _investments that will enhance: the asset’s performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is
.. - - sensitive to the discount rate used-for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth

rate used for extrapolation purposes.

32.2 ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

" .~Thekey assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date

. that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

* within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on

L : parameters available when the standalone financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and

C e e o - gggumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising
that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will

- be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine
the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upen the likely timing and the level of future
taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

Defined benefit plans

e The cost of the defined benefit plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of the gratuity
- obligation are--determined ::using -actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions that may- differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the
discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and
its long-term nature, 2 defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All
assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.




Delhi International Airport Limited
CIN. U63033D1.2006PL.C146936
. Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(AN amounts in Rupees crore, except otherwise stated)

“The parameter most subject tochange is the discount rate. In determining the approprlate d.tscount rate for plans

opera;ted, the management considers. the interest rates of government bonds. in currencies consistent with the
currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation.

The mortality rateisbased on publicly available mortality tables for the specific countries. Those mortality tables

- tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases

.- are based on expected future inflation rates for the respective countries.

Further details about gratuity obligations are given in Note 33 (c).

Provision for Leave encashment

- -The present value of leave encashment is determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves
- making vatious assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the

determination of discount rate, future salary increases, and withdrawal rates. Due to complexities involved in
the: valuation -and-its.-long term. nature, provision for leave encashment is semsitive to changes inthese
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

Contingencies
- - ~Contingent liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against the Company,
including legal, contractor and other claims. By their nature, contingencies will be resolved only when one or
+“‘more uncertain future events occur or fail to occur. The assessment of the existence, and potential quantum, of
- contingencies inherently involves: the exercise of 51gmﬁcant judgement and the use of estimates regarding the
outcome of future events.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

© . When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured

—et obased on-quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques. The inputs to

- these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of

-~ judgement is required in establishing fair values, Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity

.- risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of
financial instraments. See Note 37, 38 and 39 for further disclosures.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




Delhi International Airport Limited
CIN. U63033DL2006PLC146936

- - Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31 2021
(AN amonnts in Rupees crore, except otherwise stated) .

33. Retirement and other employee Benefit:-

Employee Benefit:-
a) Leave Obligation

. .-The leave. obligation: cover-the Company’s Hability for earned leave and sick leave. The entire amount of the
- provision of Rs.-29.52 crore (March 31, 2020: Rs. 29.52 crore) is presented as current in financial statements,

since the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the obligation.

b) Defined benefit plans
During the year ended March:31, 2021, the Company has recognised Rs. 12.93 crore (March 31, 2020: Rs. 14.18

crore) as an expenses-and included in Employee benefits expense as under the following defined contribution

plans.

For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

'| Employer’s contribution to

| Present value of benefit obligation at year end

Provident and-other fund# | 933 | - 9.90 |
Superannuatmn fund* 3.60 3.90
Total - 12.93 13.80

. #Net of amount. transfexred to Capital work-in-progress (“CWIP’) & CPD Rs. 0.64 Crore (March 31, 2020: Rs.

0.36 Crore)
*Net of amount ttansferred to CWIP & CPD Rs, 0.23 Crore (March 31, 2020: Rs. 0.20 Crore).

- .The Company makes contribution towards provident fund which is administered by the trustees. The rules of the
- ~Company's provident. fund.administered by a trust, require that if the board of the trustees are unable to pay
« . -iterest at the rate declared by the government under para 60 of the Employees provident fund scheme, 1972 for
.- -the reason that the return on investment is less for any other reason, then the deficiency shall be made good by
. the Company making interest shortfall a defined benefit plan. Accordingly, the Company has obtained actuarial

valuation and based on_the below provided assumption there is no cumulative deficiency at the balance sheet

_ date. Hence, the liability is restricted towards monthly contributions only.

As per the requirement of Ind AS 19, Employee Benefits of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India,
benefits involving employer established provident funds, which require interest shortfalls to be re-compensated,
are o be considered as defined benefit plans. Based on the actuarial valuation and on the assumptions provided

_.below there is no cumulatlve short-fall which has been provided in the standalone financial statements.

Particalars .~ = : Marech 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Plan assets at the year end, at fair value 192.99 179.23
182.70 169.24

[ Net (liability) recognized in the batance sheet | -

RY
ﬁuona/
71 p
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_ (All amounts in Rupees crore, except otherwise stated) .

- .. 7.2 Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31,2021

T Assumptions used in determining the present value obligation of the interest rate guarantee under the

deterministic Approach:
[ Particalars .| - - March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Discount rate 6.80% | 6.80%
| Fund rate 8.50% 8.50%
PFO rate 8.50% 8.50%
Withdrawal rate 5.00% 5.00%
- Indian Assured Lives Indian Assured Lives
Murtality Martality (2006-08) Ult * Mortality (2006-08) Ult *

— - .. *Agpublished by IRDA and adopted as Standard Mortality Table as recommtended by Iustitute of Actuaries of
India effective April 1, 2013.

(¢) Gratuity expense

Cmeme o non o Gratbity-lisbility ish defined benefit obligation (DBO) which is funded through policy taken from Life Insurance
- Corporation: of India and Liability (net of fair value of investment in LIC) is provided for on the basis of an
.actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method made at the end of each financial year. Every employee who
- has completed-five-years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days’ salary (based on last drawn
basic salary) for each completed year of service.

-.—=The-following tables summarise-the components of net benefit expense recognised in the standalone statement
.+ of profit and loss and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for defined benefit plans/obligations:

Net employee benefit expense:

3 NS e For the year ended For the year ended
- Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
‘[ Current Service Cost 2.78 2.33
‘| Past Service Cost - -
Net Interest Cost 0.10 0.17)
Total 2.88 2.16
Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income: .
For the year ended | For the year ended
. L .. Particulars . March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
.| -Actuarial gain due to DBO experience (1.06) {0.16)
Actuarial loss due to DBO financial assumptions - 1.33
~ | changes
) | Actuarial (gain)/ loss arising during period (1.06) 1.17
| Return on plan assets less than discount rate 0.15 0.80
- - ["Actuarial (gains)/ loss recognized in OCI (0.91) 1.97 |
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Balance Sheet
| Particwlars - ' March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
) " | Defined benefit obligation (24.44) (22.55)
Fair value of plan assets 20.91 20.93
B 77| Benefit Liability (3.53) (1.62)
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
. Opening defined benef t obligation 22.55 19.18
I - Interest cost 1.48 1.40
T ~ | Current service cost 2.78 2.33
Acquisition cost 0.17 . 0.06
i o : | Benefits paid (including transfer) (1.48) (1.59)
T " | Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligation- (1.06) 117
experience
| Closing defined benefit: obhgatlon 24.44 22.55
- 7 Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:
* Particulars . - March 31,2021 | March 31, 2020
24+ | Opening fair value of plan assets 20.93 21.14
| Acquisition Adjustment - 0.07
T | Interest income on plan assets 1.38 1.57
Contributions by employer 0.23 0.54
I . | Benefits paid (including transfer) (1.48) (1.59)
. Return on plan assets greater/ (lesser) than discount rate (0.15) (0.80)
-z~ Closing fair value of plan:assets 20.91 20.93

= The Company expects to contribute Rs. 0.23 crore to gratuity fund during the year ended on March 31, 2022

(March 31, 2021: Rs. 2.22 crore).

Themajor category of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets is as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
: . (%) %),
| Investments with insurer managed funds 100 100

- - +‘Theprincipal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligation for the Company's plans are shown below:

] e o " Particulars Mareh 31,2021 | March 31,2020
- * ' Discount rate (in %) - 6.86%% 6.80%
. [Salary Escalation (in %) 6.00% 6.00%

T .| Expected rate of return on assets 8.00% 8.00%
- | Atirition rate (in %) - - 5.00% 5.00%
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_ (Al amounts in Rupees crore, except otherwise stated) :
- A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at March 31, 2021 is as shown below:

e March 31,2021 | March 31, 2020
Discount rate
T Sensitivity Level 1% 1%
_ | Impact on defined benefit obligation due to increase 1.73) (1.65)
| Impact on defined benefit obligation due to decrease 1.99 1.90
o - A'ssﬁlilpfi.(‘msi Future Salary Increase
- | Sensitivity Level 1% 1%
Impact on defined benefit obligation due to increase 1.36 172
e | Impact on defined benefit obligation due to decrease (1.64) (1.57
- o f&;uﬁatlons Attrition rate
- | Sensitivity Level. _ 1% 1%
Impact on defined benefit obligation dug to increase 0.09 0.08
i T Impa(_:t on deﬁned beneﬁt;obhgatmn due to decrease 0.10) (0.10)

: ... The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 10 years (March

period.

31, 2020:10 years).

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

== The sensitivity:analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined
i+ benefit obligation as:a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting
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34. Commitments and Contingencies

1. Contingent liabilities not provided for:

e e LT <~ Particulars March 31,2021 | March 31,2020
v Tt i AT (i) | Inrespect of Income tax matters * 64.29 64.29
: ;f ST e L7 () 7| In respect of Indirect tax matters [refer note (6), 190.42 190.42

(f) & (g) below and other matters* ]

T i) | Tnrespect of other matters frefer note (a) below] 38.41 38.41

T lilu] ()| Intespect of Annual fee payable to AAI [refer note (h) below]

*pertaifiing to various cases fiot included below

- During, the year ended March 31,2017, the Dethi Cantonment Board (DCB) had raised provisional invoice
demanding. property tax of Rs..9.01 crore in respect of vacant land at IGI Airport for the Financial Year
2016-17 The airport area maj jorly consists of vacant land area which cannot be commercially let out by the
ause of operational safety, aircraft landing & take off and navigational requirements as per
standards. laid dowm. by_International Civil Aviation Organization (ICAO). However, based on same
computation method as used for payment of property tax to South Delhi Municipal Corporation (‘SDMC”),
..management has made payment of Rs. 1.15 crore towards property tax for financial year 2016~17 and

requested DCB to withdraw its demand.

. Company bas paid Rs. 1.15 crore, Rs. 1.12 crore, Rs. 1.10 crores and Rs. 1.10 crores each for financial year
- 2017-18, financial year 2018 19 financial year 2019-20 and financial year 2020-21 respectively based on
same computahon as of financiat year 2016-17.

... - --DCB.has.raised provisional invoice on April 29, 2019 demanding property tax of Rs. 10.73 crore for the
) FY 2019-20 along with -arrears of Rs. 28.78 crore for FY 2016-17, FY 2017-18 and FY 2018-19,
Accordmgly, the Company has disclosed remaining amount of Rs. 38.41 crore in respect of FY 2016-17,
FY 2017-18, FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20 as contingent [iability.

__The Company has obtained a legal opinion; wherein it has been opined that lability w.r.t. earlier years

- cannot be ruled out. As DCB has not raised any demand for earlier years, and the Company has submitted

. its application for adopting the same computation method as considered by SDMC, while atriving at the

demand for the financial year 2016-17, the amount of liability for earlier years is unascertainable, and
therefore no provision has been considered.

Thereafter on November 1, 2019, DCB issued a notice seeking payment of Property Tax for the amount Rs.
-.-38.41 crores from DIAL and threatened recovery through issue of warrant of distress upon failure to make
payment within 30 days. DIAL filed a writ petition before the Hon’ble Delhi High court against DCB to set
. agide the, impugned demand notices. The Hon’ble Delhi High court heard the matter on December 2, 2019
...~ and directed to-be keep in abeyance the impugned demand notices and directed DCB to grant a detailed
,.:;7hearmg to. DIAL, upon DIAL’s filing a representation before the DCB and also explain the basis of
--calculation arrived at by DCB, subject to deposit a sum of Rs. 8.00 crore with DCB within three weeks as
liability is to be determined and accordingly the writ petition was disposed off. In compliance of High Court

order DIAL had deposited a sum of Rs.8.00 crore under protest on December 20, 2019.
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:DIAL-had ‘made representations durmg personal hearmgs granted by DCB. However, despite many
e L vrepresentatlons made by DIAL and ignoring all contentions of DIAL, DCB has passed an assessment order
T - -~ dated June 15,2020 levying the propetty tax of Rs. 867.21 crores per annum from financial year 2016-17
- .. .onwards against its earlier assessment of tax of Rs. 9.13 crores per anmuim DCB has raised the total demand
~of Rs..2,601.63:crores for .three years ie. 2016-17 to 2018-19 and DIAL has been directed to pay Rs.
. 2,589.11 erores afier making due adjustments of amount already deposited within 30 days.

- .- As per the legal opinion taken by DIAL, the order dated June 15, 2020 is in violation of the earlier order

dated December 2, 2019 passed by the Defhi High Court, also is in breach of the provisions of the

- Cantonments -Act -and -is- per se arbitrary and illegal, deserves to be set aside/quashed. Accordingly,

DIAL filed a-Writ Petition on Jaly 20, 2020 before the High Court of Delhi challenging the assessment order

_ dated June 15, 2020, The writ petition was heard on various dates in which Honourable Dethi High Court
+._directed DCB not to take any coercive action against the Company till next hearing.

e Tt el co :Now;: AAT-DCB.and-Ministry-of Defence have filed their counter reply. Pending writ petition, DCB has
B ralsed additional-demand of property tax for Rs. 1733.32 crore for the FY 2019-20 and FY 2020-21 after
- ,A,_,ﬂcgn,s;gex;_i_ng amount paid by DIAL, which have also been objected by Company in view of directions of the
High courtto. DCB net-to take-any coercive action. Accordiugly, the Company has filed its additional
.affidavit for consideration for EY 2019-2020 and FY 2020-2021 in present writ petition. The matter is now

 listed for further hearing on July 08, 2021.

o * b) . The Ministry .of Civil-Aviation (MoCA) issued a Circular No. AV 13028/001/2009-AS dated January 8,
e ez 2010 giving fresh guidelings regarding the expenditure which could be met out of the PSF (SC) and
T T - . subsequently clarified by MoCA. vide order dated April 16, 2010. Based on the said circular, the Company
I - is not-debiting such security expenditure to PSF (SC) escrow account. Further, vide circular no. AV
DR e : 13024/43/2003-SS . (AD). dated. May 17, 2012, it was further directed that any such expenditure already

R deb1ted was.required to, be.credited back to PSF(SC) account. However, security expenditure amounting to
- Rs, 2448 crore was already incurred pnor to April 16,2010 and was debtted to PSF (8C) account.

- The Company- had challenged the said circulars issued by MoCA before the Hon’ble High Court of Delhi
by way of a Writ Petition. The Hon’ble Court, vide its order dated December 21, 2012, had restrained MoCA
from taking any coercive measures in the form of initiation of criminal proceedings against the Company
and the matter is now listed for hearing on June 2, 2021. Based on an internal assessment and aforesaid order
of the Hon’ble High Court of Delhi, the management is confident that no liability in this regard would be

- payable and as such no provision has been made in these financial statements.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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-¢) ' MoCA issued an order no. AV 13024 /03/2011-AS (Pt. ) dated February 18, 2014 requiring the Airport
oS to expenditure incurred, since inception to till date, towards procurement and

' systems/equipment and on creation of fixed assets out of PSF (SC) escrow account

by DIAL (the Airport Operator) in a fiduciary capacity. The Company had incurred

297 25 crore towards capital expenditure (excluding related maintenance expense and interest thereon)

R UL il March 31, 2021 (March 31, 2020 Rs. 297.25 crore) oitt of PSF (SC) escrow account as per Standard
UL . ...~Operating Procedure (SOPs), guidelines and clarification issued by MoCA from time to time on the subject
o " of utilization of PSF (SC) funds.
_ . In the opinion of the management of the Company, the above order is conirary to and inconsistent with
SOPs, guidetines and  clarification issued by MoCA from time to time i this regard and as such had
) challenged the said order before Hon’ble High court of Delhi. The Hon’ble High Court of Delhi, vide its
. order dated March 14, 2014, stayed recovery of amount already utilized by the Company from PSF (SC)
. Escrow Account till date. The matter is now listed for hearing on July 28,2021 for arguments.

Further, MoCA has.issued an. order dated September 18, 2017, which is supplementary to the order dated

18, 2014 stating the approximate amount of reversal to be made by the Company towards capital

.. expenditure and interest thereon amounting to Rs. 295.58 crores and Rs. 368.19 crores respectively, subject
" to the order of the Hon’ble High court of Delhi. .

. . Based on an internal assessment, the management of the Company is of the view that no adjustments are
. required to-be made in the books of accounts. Further, as directed by the Hon’ble High Court of Delhi and
ending further orders, the Company has charged Rs. 110.41 crore from April 1, 2014 till Match 3 1, 2021

o Viarch 31, 20 .102.81 crore) towards the expenditure incurred on repair and maintenance of security
5 L. equipment to the Statement of profit and loss which includes Rs. 7.60 crore during the year ended March

" '31,2021 (March 31, 2020: Rs 6.42 crore).

... However, during the financial year 2018-19, pursuant to AERA order No. 30/ 2018~19 dated November 19,
2018 with respect to Company’s entitlement to collect X-ray baggage charges from airlines, the Company
. _has remitted Rs. 119.66 crore to PSF (SC) account against the transfer of screening assets to the Company
from PSF (SC) to the Company with an undertaking to MoCA by the Company that in case the matter
pending before the Hon’ble High Court is decided in its DIAL’s favour, DIAL will not claim this amount

back from MoCA.

d) The Company was, entitled to custom duty credit scrip under Served from India Scheme (SFIS). of Foreign

Trade Policy issued by Government of India. Under the terms of SFIS, service providers are entitled to

custom duty credit scrip as a percentage of foreign exchange earned by the Company that can be utilized for

~ payment of import duty. Till March 31, 2014, the Company had cumulatively utilized custom duty credit

Uil L. 7 iscrip amounting fo Rs. 89.60 crore in lieu of payment of import duty in respect of import of fixed asssts

Co 7T 7 (including capital work in progress) and thus, recorded fixed assets (including capital work in progress,
- .. .. imported, at net amount) after excluding the amount of custom duty paid by using these scrips.

The Expert Advisory Committee (‘EAC’) of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, pursuant to a
., specific application by the Company in this regard, has clarified vide its opinion viz. TD/EAC/1484/13 dated
November 19, 2013 that such scrips should be recognised and accounted as grant related to revenue under
erstwhile Accounting Standard 12 — Accounting for Govetnment Grants,
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- a7 Accordingly, as allowed under para 15 of erstwhile Accounting Standard 12, the Company had adjusted
: : e (netted off)-Rs. 80.39-crore, [being the difference between the value of duty credit scrips amounting to Rs.
- 89.60 crore and the depreciation amounting to Rs. 9.21 crore that ought to have been charged on such assets)
sies. oieeeioo. oo against certain expenditure, which in its view are related to obtaining such custom duty credit scrip
i Heees 2o ~entitiements-and had disclosed the same as prior period items (net) in the financial statements for the year
' ended March 31, 2014.

et e - mon oo However; Airport-Authority of India (‘AAD) has expressed different view on this and argued that amount
.. . utilized under SFIS should be treated as revenue and accordingly annual fee on amount of Rs 89.60 crore is
___-payable to AAL Enforcing their view, AAT has written letter to ICICI bank on July 06,2015 instructing bank

" to remit Rs. 41.2} erore-from Receivable Escrow Account of the Company as anmmal fee to AAD's bank

account as per terms of the escrow agreement.

- . ~The Company had filéd a writ petition against the AAT’s letter in Hon’ble High Court of Delhi on July 10,
. ~-~2045 disputing the demand and the letter unilaterally issued by AAI and prayed for quashing of demand by

-- - =AAI Hon’ble High Court-has granted the interim relief and disposed the writ petition with a direction to
. - --Company-to seek remedy under. the provisions of Arbitration law. Accordingly Company filed a petition
.-~ under section 9 of the-Arbitfation-and Conciliation Act seeking interim restraint to AAI from enforcing its
T demand which was granted by the court in favour of the Company.

f TeFansl weni -2 The atter-was-contested:in-arbitration before Arbitral Tribunal and arbitration award was pronounced in

- - favour of-the Company on:December 27, 2018, mentloning that the income earned by way of SFIS Scrip

. - doesnot fall under the definition of Revenue as per OMDA as it is not related with any Aeronautical or Non-

- ---Aeronautical activities and it is of the nature of capital receipt. Accordingly, no annual fee is payable to

AAI by the Company on SFIS revenue and demand of AAI for annual fee stands rejected. However, AAI

- has filed an appeal challenging the order of Arbitral Tribunal before the High Court of Delhi on April 25,

7Tt 2019 for setting aside the arbitration award dated December 27, 2018. The matter is now listed for July 6,
- 72021 for issuing notice/ preliminary arguments on the maintainability of the petition.

- -e) - The Director General-of Central Excise Intelligence, New Delhi had issued a Show Cause Notice F.'NO.
- v 574/CE/41/2014/fnv./PT11/11327 dated October 10, 2014 on the Company, proposing a demand of service
- tax of Rs. 59.91 crore (excluding interest and penalty) considering Advance Development Costs (‘ADC’)

- collected by Company from the Commercial Property Developers under the service tax category ‘Renting

of Immovable Property’.

~ The Company has replied to the show cause notice as referred to above with appropriate authority on Aprit
17, 2015.

Subsequently, Additional Director General (Adjudication), DGCET has passed Order No. 10/2016-ST dated
<o o= - May 02; 2016 confirming demand of service tax of Rs. 54.31 crore and imposed equivalent penalty in respect
of this matter.

However, based on an internal assessment by the Company in this regard, the Management is of the view

, that service tax is not leviable on ADC, as these are collected for development of certain infrastructure

-+ - - facilities for the comman use and nat for the exclusive use of any developer. Service tax liability on ADC,

- if any :arises, shall be adjusted from Advance Development Costs collected by Company from the
Commercial Property Developers. ) ‘

*The Company has filed appeal before CESTAT, New Delhi on August 02, 2016 by depositing Rs. 4.07 crore

against the order dated May 02, 2016. The matter was concluded in final hearing held on December 20, 2018
and the decision is pronounced on February 8, 2019 in favour of DIAL setting aside the order of the Director
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L :Agijjdi§§fi§;i_i_ifé_i§i_ﬁg’iﬁiﬁéﬁiéjjd of service tax of Rs. 54.31 crore and the amount deposited Rs. 4.07 crore has
been refunded back with interest by the department.

i oo oo i3 The department has filed SLP before Supreme Court, against the Order dated February 8, 2019 passed by
5.+ ..~ CESTATn-favour of DIAL, DIAL has filed counter affidavit on September 9, 2020 and the next date of

hearing is yet to be notified.
.. .. Accordingly, the-amount of Rs.54.31 crore disclosed as contingent liability as at March 31, 2021. Further,

I . the management of the Company is of the view that no adjustments are required to be made to these financial
statements. ‘

- .. _f)- TheCommissioner of Service Tax, New Delhi had issued six Show Cause Notices (SCN) and one addendum

R o SCN-on the Company, proposing a demand of service tax aggregating to Rs. 275.53 crore (excluding
" interest and penalty) on the collection of Development Fee (“DF”) from passengers in airport for the period
... from March; 2009 to. September, 2013. Out of total demand of service tax of Rs 275.53 crore, service tax
- amounting to Rs 130.17 crote has already been paid by Company undet protest.

.+ The Company replied to the show cause notice referred to above with appropriate authority and the issue
was heard on merits on February 17, 2016.

.. Subsequently, the Commissiones of Service Tax, has passed Order No. CNo D T/ST/AV/16/Hgrs/Adjn/
... DIAL/153/2015/1862-ST -dated. July 12, 2016 confirming the demand of service tax of Rs. 262.06 crore
wvires o (after giving cum duty effect) and out of the said demand has appropriated amount of Rs 130.17 crore already
.- deposited by, Company under. protest towards service tax, and further imposed a penalty of Rs 131.89 crore
in respect of this matter.
. :However, based on an internal assessment by Company in this regard, the management is of the view that
- service tax is-ot leviable on DF; as the DF is a statutory levy and is meant to bridge financing gap funding
for the airport project.. The. collection of DF from passengets is not in lieu of provision of any service to
‘them.-Further; there is no service provider and service recipient relationship between the Company and the
.. _passengers paying DF. Service tax liability, if any arises on DF, shall be decided by AERA, keeping in view
the final pronouncement of the matter.
The Company had filed an appeal against the order before CESTAT, New Delhi on October 10, 2016. The
__matter was concluded in final hearing held on December 04, 2018 and the decision is pronounced on January
18,2019 in favour of DIAL setting aside the order of the Commissioner levying service tax on ADF and
penalty amounting to Rs. 262.06 crore.

- The department has ﬁled SLP before Supreme Court, against the Order dated January 18, 2019 passed by
. CESTAT in favout of DIAL. DIAL has filed counter affidavit on August 14, 2020 and the next date of

hearing is yet to be notified.

o Accordingly, the amount of Rs.131.89 crore has been disclosed as contingent liability as at March 31, 2021.
Further; the management of the Company is of the view that no adjustments are required to be made to these

financial statements.
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- __g) In-certain matters before Hon’ble Delhi High Court or Hon’ble Supreme Court yet to be decided, wherein
... DIAL has been made: respondent and the petitions filed by the UQI, others/concessionaires which are relating
- to the applicability of service tax (under pre-GST regime) on services provided by DIAL and the issues
.. nunder consideration.are related to-licensing of space in Airport, Service tax on supply of electricity, ranning
. of duty free shops to be regarded as Airport Services. DIAL initially charged service tax against the services
prowded -however levy and the applicability was contested by the such parties and accordingly they filed
- .. petitions. before judicial authorities making DIAL as a party/respondent in the matters. The management is
- of the view that these matters will not result in any additional obligation on DIAL in case of adverse decisions
- and in case of any demand or liability arising on account of adjudication of the issues, the same are
recoverable from the service recipients.

o 1), In-the month of March 2020, DIAL in its various communications issued inter-alia under Article 16 (Force
Majeure), informed AAI that consequent to outbreak of Covid-19 pandemic, the entire aviation industry,
partm\ﬂaﬂy the IGI Airport has been adversely affected. It was specifically communicated that the said
. --crigis:-has.-materially and. .adversely affected the business of DIAL which in turn directly impacts the -
. ,per,formance of DIAL’s obligations under the OMDA (including obligation to pay Annual Fee/Monthly
. ... Annual Fee) while it is continuing to perform its obligation to operate, maintain and manage the IGI Airport.
. .DIAL thereby invoked Force Majeure as provided under Article 16 of OMDA and claimed that it would
-.-not in a position to'perform its obligation to prepare Business Plan and pay Annual Fee/ Monthly Annual
- ..fee to AAL The said event(s) of Force Majeure has also been admitted by AAY in its communication to
- .DIAL. Consequently, DIAL is entitled to suspend or excuse the performance of its said obligations ag
e e e notified to AATL However, AAlhas not agreed to such entitlement of DIAL under OMDA. This has resulted
SR e, -in. dispute and for the settlement of which, DIAL has invoked on September 18, 2020 dispute resolution
3 mechamsm interms.of Article 15:0f OMDA. Further, on December 02, 2020, DIAL again requested to AAI
.-to direct the Escrow Bank to-not transfet the amounts from Proceeds Accounts to AAI Fee Account, seeking
. similar treatment as granted by Hon’ble Figh Court of Dethi to Mumbai Internationat Airport Etd.

... In.the absence of response from AAI, DIAL approached Delhi High Court secking certain interim reliefs by
filing a petition u/s 9 of Arbitration & Conciliation Act on December 5, 2020 due to the occurrence of Force
Majeure event due to outbreak of COVID 19 and its consequential impact on business of DIAL, against AAI
and ICICI Bank (Escrow Bank). The Hon’ble High Court of Delhi vide its order dated January 5, 2021 has
granted ad-interim reliefs with following directions:

o TheICICE Bank is directed to transfer back, into the Proceeds Account, any amount which may have
) been transferred from the Proceeds Account to the AAI Fee Account, after 9th December, 2020,

e - Transfer of moneys from the Proceeds Account to the AAI Fee Account, pending further orders, shall
- stand stayed and DIAL can use money in Proceeds Account to meet its operational expenses.

Meanwhile with the nomination of arbitrators by DIAL and AAI and appointment of presiding arbitrator,
-the arbitration tribunal has been constituted on January 13, 2021. The first preliminary hearing was held on

. January.29, 2021, Parties have to complete their pleadings by June 19, 2021 and DIAL has ﬂled its statement
of claim on March 25, 2021.

s i 'AéBefore—DIAL:—’—s;abeQ petition could be ﬁﬁaﬂy dispos_ed off and while the issue is now pending before the
- Arbitral Tribunal, -AAI has preferred an appeal against the ad-interim order under section 37 of the
"~ Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996 before division bench of Delhi High Court.




Delhi International Airport Limited
CIN. U63033DL2006PLC146936
___ Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

. {Allamounts in Rupees crore, except otherwise stated) D
. Though AAI has preferred an appeal, but it has not issued any certificate or instructions to the Escrow Batk
20 onwards regarding the amount of AAI Fee payable by DIAL to AAL as
Agreement and the OMDA. Resultantly both pursuant to the ad-interim
urt and in the absence of any certificate or instruction from AAL, the Escrow
ount pertaining to AAT Fee from Proceeds Account to AAI Fee Account of

" the Bsctow Account from Decermber 09, 2020 onwards.

Basis the legal opinion obtained, the Company is entitled to not to pay the Monthly Annual fee under article

. _11.12 of OMDA fo AAT being an obligation it is not in a position to perform or render on account of
. _occurrence of Force Majeure Event, in terms of the provisions of Article 16.1 of OMDA till such time the

... Company achieves level of activity prevailing before occurrence of Force majeure. Further, the Company
has also_sought relief for fefund of MAF of an amount of Rs. 465.77 crore appropriated by AAI for the

" period starting from March 19, 2020 till December 2020.

- In view of the above, the management of the Company has decided not to provide the Monthly Annual Fee
. _to AAT for i ended March 31, 2021 amounting to Rs. 768.69 crores on “Revenue” as defined in

"OMDA [refér note 41()];

- ./As AAlL had already. appropriated the Monthly Annual Fee amounting to Rs. 446,21 crores from Aprit 01,
» 2020 t 020, which the company has already protested. Accordingly, the same has been
7 shovm as ] aid under protest. However, since the recovery of this amount is sub-judice
fare th igh Court and the arbitral tribunal, as a matter of prudence, the Company has

against above advance and shown the same in other expenses under Note 29,

i ﬁr'?;iiiéci}iéd_torc;ééfg’ii)fg}a

.. 1)  There are numerous interpretative issues till now relating to the Hon’ble Supreme Court (SC) judgement on

: s s - Provident Fund dafed February 28, 2019. The Company has paid the liability on a prospective basis from

o1 pany has not made any provision related to the period before the order due

Il Financial guarantees- The Company has not provided any financial guarantee other than performance
guarantee on its own behalf, to any party.

Performance guarantees given by the Company on its own behalf are not considered as contingent liability.

II. Capital and Other Commitments:

i. Capital Commitments:
.. At March 31, 2021, the Company has estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital
. account not provided for [net ‘of advances of Rs.681.38 crore {excluding GST) (March 31, 2020: Rs.
T 88743 crore)] Rs. 5,148.34 crore (excluding GST) (March 31, 2020: Rs. 6,268.85 crore).




Delhi International Airport Limited
CIN. U63033DL2006PLC146936
* ... Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All amounts in Rupees crore, except otherwise stated)
ii. Other Commitments:
od-AS per the terms of OMDA, the Company is required to pay annual fees to AAI at 45.99% of the
~ revenue (as defined in OMDA) of the Company for an initial term of 30 years starting from May 2006
. and which can be extended by another 30 years on satisfaction of certain terms and conditions pursuant
to the provisions of OMDA. [Refer note 34(I)(h)].

. i-In respect. of its equity investment in East Delhi Waste Processing Company Private Limited, the

Company along with SEL.CO International Limited has to maintain minimum 51% shareholding for a

e - ... period of 2 years from the commissioning of the project and thereafter minimum 26% sharcholding
. .~ . . _ .. fornext 10 years. The project has been commissioned with effect from April 01, 2017.

ii. As per the terms of Airport Operator Agreement, the Company is required to pay every year 3% of
- - previous year’s gross.revenue as operator fee to Fraport AG Frankfurt Airport Services Worldwide.

iv.In.ferms of Section :115]B of Income Tax Act, 1961, certain Ind AS adjustments at the Ind AS
transition date to-be mcluded in book profits equally over a period of five years starting from the year
- of first time adoption of Ind AS i.e. Financial Year 2016-17. Pursuant to above, the Company had
-nrade Ind AS adjustments amounting to Rs. 184.79 crore as on March 31, 2016 and included 1/5th of
~ the same i.¢, Rs. 36:96 crore while computing book profit for Financial Year 2016-17, 2017-18, 2018-
19, 2019-20 and 2020-2021

—i Ve During previous: years, the Company had, entered into “Call spread Option™ with various banks for
. - hedging the repayment of 6.125% Senior secured notes (2022) of USD 288.75 million, 6.125% Senior
- secuted notes (2026). of USD 522.60 million and 6.45% Senior secured notes (2029) for USD 500

- million.which are repayable in Fi ebruary 2022, October 2026 and June 2029 respectively.
o Call spread Total Premium paid Premium outstanding as at
range Preminm till
. (ANR/USD) Payable
From R I | Mareh 31, March 31, March 31,
' : 2021 2021 2020
T v 52260 | December 6, | October 22, | 66,85 - 101.86 1,241.30 519.07 722.23 849.03
2016 2026
80.00*% | February 8, | January 25, | 68.00~ 85.00 94.33 75.35 1898 - 38.01
2017 2022
T1T208.75% | January 25, | Januwary 25, | 63.80- 85.00 198.34 14895 49.39 99.09
2018 2022 :
350.00 | Junc24,2019 | May 30, | 69.25-102.25 742.79 122,50 620.29 695.21
150.00 | February 27, | May 30, | 71.75-102.25 . 307.17 32.87 27430 307.17
2020 2029 . .

-During the previous year, the Company has also entered into “Coupon only hedge” and “Call Spread
optlon” with bank for hedging the payment of interest liability on 6.45% Senior secured notes (2029)
~for USD 150 million and 6.125% Senior secured notes (2022) for USD 288.75 million borrowings

respectwely

coine 22 meens mmoee o i #Bubsequently, the Company has cancelled Call spread Options of USD 105.422 million (USD 80
e -~ million of February 8, 2017 options & USD 25.422 million out of January 25, 2018 options) and Call
: spread option on interest liability of USD 105.422 million in April 2021 due to prepayment of USD

105.422 milfion to USD 288.75 million notes holders as per tender acceptance.




Delhi International Airport Limited
CIN. U63033DL2006PLC146936
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(All amounts in Rupees crore; except otherwise stated)
vi. DIAL entered. mtq_tnparhte Master Servwe Agreement (MSA) with- WAISL anted (Formerly

.4 lenidum number 17, dated April 5, 2018, in which Antariksh Sofitech Private
. Limited has also,become the party to the agreement. As perthe agreement, DIAL is committed to pay
.. -annually, premium fees.to: WAISL ot receive from WAISL a concession fee, determined and mutually
_-agreed on the basis of estimated receivable and subsistence level (as defined in the said MSA further
amended vide.addendum number 21 dated October 31, 2019). The said agreement has expired on 28%

- July 2020. Durmg the peried, April 1, 2020 to July 28, 2020, the Company accounted Rs. Nil towards

_ such concession fee from WAISL (March 31, 2020: Rs. 21.57 crore) and this is included in revenue

from operations.

- fimd deﬂcxt on: a temporary basis tili the time WAISL collects the dues from such customers. Til?
March 31,2021 the Company had funded net of recovery Rs. 19.98 crore (March 31, 2020: Rs, 24.16
crore) towards shortfall in collection from customers.

‘With respect to Subsidiary, Joint ventures and associates:

_-vii. The.Company.has committed to provide financial support to Delhi Aerotropolis Private Limited
. _(100% Subsidiary Company) to meet the liabilities of Delhi Aerotropolis Private Limited (Subsidiary

" “Company), as and when required.

- The- Subsidiary Company has not undertaken any commercial activities during the year or preceding
.- previouns.year. The accumulated losses as at March 31, 2020 exceed fifty percent of the net worth and
. the company- incurred.cash losses during the financial year and in the immediately preceding financial
- year. The Company has.approved to strike off the Subsidiary Company in its board meeting dated
February 11, 2020. Pursuant to this, the Board of Directors of DAPL, in its meeting held on June 05,
- 2020 have approved the filing of application with the Registrar of Companies (ROC) for strike off.
The apphcahon has been filed with the ROC on August 11, 2020. However, the approval from ROC
is awaited.

. viii.The following investments have been pledged by the Company towards borrowings by these

companies:
 Company Name - -~~~ ] As at March 31, 2021 ] As at March 31, 2020
No. of Shares Ameount No. of Shates Amount
Rs.) RBs))

Delhi Airport Parking Services Private Limited |* 18,853,703 | 188,537,030 18,853,703 | 188,537,030

o Prlvate Lmntsd

.| Travel :Food - Services: (Dclhl Terminal 3) 1,680,000 16,800,000 16,80,000 | 16,800,000 |

othc; JV/ gssgg@t§ pgrmngs have the first rlght of reﬁlsal in case, any of the JV/ associate partners
intend to sell its stake subject to other terms and conditions of respective JV/ associate agreements.

- x. -In-respect of its equity-investment in GMR Bajoli Holi Hydropower Private Limited (‘Bajoli Holi’),
- the Company has to maintain minimum 17.33% of equity shareholding until the expiry of or early
termination of power purchase agreement dated September 11, 2017 entered between the Company

and the Bajoli Holi, expiring on May 03, 2036. The Company had invested Rs. 108.33 crore as equity

share capital.
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ez o2z Notes to.the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Al-amounts in Rupees crore; except otherwise stated) - :
- - ..xi.The Company had invested in DIGI Yatra foundation, a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) formed as
-central platform: to- identity management of passengers, as Joint Venture (JV) of private airport
perators and AAT under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 (Not for Profit Organization). Further,
it hiad been decided by AAI that initially for incorporation AAI DIAL and Bangalore International
- - Airport Limited (BIAL) will form this company with sharcholding 0f26:37:37 respectively. Currently,
. _ DIGI Yatra foumdation is having paid up capital of Rs. 10,000 and DIAL has invested Rs. 2,220 only
"z(March 31,2020 : Rs: 2,220). In future, 26% of equity share of Digi Yatra Foundation will be held by
v s e AAT and remaining 74% will be equally divided amongst the Private Airport Operators viz. BIAL,
~ ... _ Cochin_ International Airport Limited, DIAL, GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited
.+ = (GHIAL), Mumbai International Airport Limited (MIAL) i.e. 14.8% each.

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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(ANl amounts in Rupees Crore, except atherwise stated)

35. liehted ?arty 'I‘;-ansactions

Name of the related parties

Uliimate holding oompany

GMR Enterprises Private Limited

Tntermediate holding company 'GMR, Infrastructure Limited
Holding company GMR Airports Limited
Subsidiary company - - Delhi Aerotropolis Private Limited®
A A Delhi Aimport Parking Services Private Limited
- Trave! Food Services (Delhi Terminal 3) Private Limited
| Associate company | Celebi Dethi Cargo Terminal Management India Private Limited

'TIM Delhi Airport Advertising Privaie Limited
D) ion!

DIGI Yatrg Foundafion
GMR Hyderabad fnternational Airport Limited

GMR Male Interrational Airport Private Limited
GMR Airport Developers Limited
GMR. Aviation Private Limited

Raxa Security Services Limited
GMR Krishnagiri SEZ Lisnited
Kakinada SEZ Limited (formerly known as Kakinada SEZ Private Limited)

GMR Pochanpalli Expressways Limited
GMR Tambaram Tindivanam Expressways Limited
GMR Goa International Airport Limited

GMR Air Cargo and Aesospace Engineering (Formerly known as GMR Aero Technic Limited®)
GMR Hospitality & Retail Limited

GMR. Tini- Anakapalli Expressy Limited
| GMR, League Gamnes. Private Limited.

Delhi Aviation Services Private Limited
Delhi Aviation Fuel Facility Private Limited
Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited
'WAISL Limited (Formerly known as Wipro Airport IT Services Limited?)
GMR Bajoli Holi Hydropower Private Limited

. | Enterprises in respect of which the company is a joint venture - -~ - - -

irports Authority of India
Fraport AG Franidfurt Airport Services Wordwid

GMR Megawide Ceb Aicport Corparation

" [Associate of member of a Group of which DIAL isa miember

GMR Chbattisgarh Energy Limited®
GMR Kamalangs Energy Limited
GMR Warora Energy Limited
MR Consuiting Services Private Eimited’
GMR Vemagiri Power Gengration Limited

infh of Key ¢ Personnel or their relatives exists

GMR Varataksmi Foundation

Key Management personnel

Mr, G.M. Rao ~ E: Cheirman
Mr, ,B.S Raju- Managing Director
Mz, Srinivas Bomntidala ~ Nos Executive Director
Mr. Grandhi Kitan Kumar — Non Executive Director
Mr. K. Narayana Rao ~ Whole Time Director
Mt. Indana Prabhakara Rao- Executive Director
M, G. Subba Rao ~Director

[Mr. R 8.5.L.N. Bhaskarudu - Independeat Director
[Mr. M. Ramachandran - Independent Director
Ms.Siva Kameswari Vissa - Independent Director
Mr. N.C. Sarabeswaran - Todependent Director
M. A Aggarwal- Director (Al Nomineg)’

[Mr. Rubina Al - Director (AAI Nominee)*

Mr, Anil Kumar Pathak - Director (AAI Nonsinee)*

i sharsholdi

1. The Company had invested in DIGI Yatra foundation, a Special Purpose Vehicle {SPV) formed as cen
operators and AAT - under Section 8-of the: Companies Act, 2013. (Not for Profit Organization). Purther, it has been decided by AAI that initially for incorporation AAT, DIAL and Bangalore

of 26:37:37

1 b

as Joint Venture (FV) of prvate airport

for identity of

ively. During the previous year DIAL has transferred 148 shares to Cochin International Ajrport

with

Intetnational Airport Limited (BIAL) will form this

Limited (CIAL) on August 18, 2019;Currently DIGI Yatra foundation is having peid up capital of Rs. 10,000 and DIAL has invested Rs. 2,220 only {March 31, 2020 : Rs. 2,220). In futurs, the equity

- - " share of Joint Venture Company (JVC) will be 26% of AAYand remaining 74% will be equally divided amongst the Private Airport Of
... .- - DIAL, GMRt Hyderabad Internationat Airport Eimited (GHFAL), Mumbai Internationa Arport Eimited MEALY 0. 14.8% each,

- -2, .‘The Compaty has-sold its entitre investment in WAISL Limited of Rs 130 or. (1,300,000 shares of Rs: 10 each) at face to Antatiksh Softtech Private Limited on June 26, 2019,
+ 3, Batire stike in' GMR Chattisgarh Energy Limited held by its Holding Company, GMR Generation Assets Limited has been sold off to Adani Power Limited on June 29, 2019.
: & Airport Authority of India (AAI) has appointed its nominee directors M. Rubina Ali and Mr Anil Kumu_} Pathak with effect from June 06, 2019 and January 29, 2019 respectively.

1 Airport Limited (CTAL),

viz, BIAL, Cochin 1

_ 5..The Company has approved o strike off its Subsidiary Company in its board meeting dated Februsry 11, 2020.. Pursuant 1o this, the Board of Direstors of DAPL, in its mecting held on June 05,

with the R of G

.- 2020 have approved the filing of appli
is awaited.

(ROC) for siike off. The application has been filled with the ROC on Augst 11, 2020, However, the approval from ROC

6. GMR. Aero Techric Limited has demerged the Maintenance, Repalr and Overhaul (MRO) division and merged info GMR Air Cargo and Aerospace Engineering Limited. Therefore, the MRO
business is now operated under the new name “GMR Air cargo and Acrospace Engineering Limited”.

7, Subsequently, Mr. Anuj Aggarwal cease to be director due to his demise on April 22, 2021,
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Notes to the dal for the yenr ended March 31, 2021

. (All amoums in Rnpeu-Cror—e, except otherwize stated)-

1_132 Snmmag of bnlances with the above related Earhes are as follows:

At an_e March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Tivestments in subsidiary, agsociates and Joint Ventures
Investm in Usiguate: uity Share
Subsidiary Compdny
Deihi Aeratropolis Private Limited 0.10 0.10
Associate Companies
Celebi Delhi:Cargo Terminal Management Indna Private Limited 29.12 29.12
Travel Food services (Dethi Terminat 3) Private Limited 5.60 5.60
TIM Dethi Airport Advertising Private Limited 9.22 922
Delhi Airport:Parking Services Private Limited 40.64 40.64
Digi Yatra Foundation 0.00 0.00
Joipt Ventures .
[Delhi Aviation Services Private Limnted:-- - - 1250 12:.56 |
Deihi Duty Free Services Private Limited: 39.92 3092
Delhi Aviation Fuel Facility Private Limited 42.64 42.64
GMR qu}g&q& Hydropower Private Lisited 10833 108.33
ragde Receiv les (including marketing ﬁmd
Tt halding en :
GMR Infrastryctuse Limited FEH 032 0.83
| Holding Compaty,
GMR Airports Eimited s 0.75 0.19
mterprises {n respect of which the compan joint venture
Airports Authority of India : - 0.02
Asgociate Compariies !
'TIM Dethi Airport Adveriising Private leltcd 0.23 -
Celebi Delhi Cargo Terminal Management India Private Limited 0,01 -
Jolnt Ventures
GMR Bajoli Holi Hydropower Private Limited 230 231
Delhi Aviation Services Private Limited :: - 0.53
GMR Aviation Private Lirmited 1w 0.01 0.18
GMR Hydetabad Tnternational Airport Limited 013 0.02
GMR Air Cargo.and Aerospace Engineering (Formerly known as GMR. Acro Technic Limited) 0,01 0.06
'GMR Tambaram Tindivanam Esq:reasways Litaited 4.7z 4.82
GMR Energy Trading Limited 0.18 231
GMR Pochanpalli Expressways L:mned_ 3.82 -
GMR Airport Developers Limited 0.01 -
Joint Venturs of member of 3 Group of which DIAL, is a member.
(GMR Warora Energy Limited 531 4,12
GMR Vemagiri. Power Generation Limited 2.83 2.84
GMR Kamalanga Energy Limited - 2.25
her Financial Asgets - Current
Unbilled yeceivables
Intermediate holding company A
GMR Infrastructurs Limited - 0,01
Enterprises n respect of which the comnany is a joint venture
Airports Autherty of India 112 1.93
Associate Companies
Delhi Airport Parking Services Private Limited 2385 2.05
'TIM Delhi Airport: Advertising Private Limited 18.82 2347
Celebi Delhi Cargo Terminal Management India Private Limited 18.05 13.54
Travel Food Secvices (Delhi Terminal 3) Private Limited 1.8% 1.73
Join! td
Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited: 1591 14.72
Delhi Aviation Services Private Limited: = © 148 1.09
1] idiariey {inctuding subsidi: my f the ul te/ Intermediate. olding
GMR Aviation anaﬁe Limited i : 0.01 0.01
GMR Air Cargo and Acrospace E(xgmeemxg (Fonnu-ly lomovn ns GMR Aero Teuhmu Limited) 0.02 0.05
GMR Energy Trading Limited : 201 -
Jaint re of memher of a Gronp of which D] i mber.
GMR Warora Energy Limited - Q.01
GMR Kamal Energy Limited 0.01 -
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Notes tb the standalone fi ial stat for the yesr ended March 31, 2021

(Al! nmounu in ] Rnpees Crore, except otherwise siated)

35 (b) Snmma of balmces with the ebo've refated parties are as follows;
- |Balances as at Date March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

bther recoverables

| Joint Ventnres

Dethi Aviation Services Private Limited .~ 0.05 0.02

Dethi Duty Free Services Private Limited 0.12 “

Associate Companies

Delhi Airpert Parking Services Private Limited 0.15 0.24

Travel Food Services (Delhi Terminal 3) Private Limited ‘0.08 -

Celebi Dethi Cargo Terminal Management India Private Limited 0.18 0.06

TIM Dethi Airport Advertising Private Limited 0.63 -

DIGI Yatra Foundation . 015 0.14

Enferprises in res f which the com; is a foint ure

Airportz Authority of India (including advance to AAT paid under protest) 436,35 96.74

subsidiaries (iacluding subsid mpanies of the ultimate/ Intermediate holding eompe

Kakinada SEZ Limited a o1 011

GMR Airport Developers Limited - Q.01

GMR. Goa International Aitport Limited . 627 0.30

GMR Pochanpalli Expressways Limited - . 0.0 0.02

Assoriate of 3 member of a group of which DIAY, is a mether

GMR Megawide Cebu Airport Corporation - 0.67 0.01
-aylyion against p dyans aid n;ier atest

Taterprises in respect of whick the Campany s a joint venture

Airports Authority _nf Tndia [refer note 34()()] 44621 -

Non- Trade Receivables (including marketing fund)

Intermediate holding company

GMR. Infrastructure Limited B - 0.04

Enterprises im respect of which the company is a joint venture

Airports Authority ‘of India ‘s 227 435
el bsidiaries (iecluding subsidiary companies of the pltimate/ Intermediate holdin,

| GMR Erergy: Trading Limited s 0.01 025
int e of £a Group of which DIAL is a mem I

GMR Warora Euergy Limited 0.72 0.61

GMR Kamalanga Energy Limited SR - 0.25

GMR Vemagiri Power Generation Limited 0.57 0.57
sch ompanies

‘Travel Food Services (Dethi Tetminal 3) Private Limited 0.05 -

Celebi Delhi Cargo Terminal Management India Private Limited 1.42 0.52

TIM Delhi Airport Advertising Private Limited 025 -

| Joint Ventures

GMR Bajoli Holi Hydropower Private Limited 021 0.18

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank}




35 (b) Summary of balances with the above related parties are as follows:

Delhi International Airport Limited

CIN, U63033DL2006PLC146936
Notes ta the dal fal for the year ended March 31, 2021

(All amounts in Rupees- Crore, excopt-otherwise stated)-

-|Balances.as:at Date : H March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Trade payable (including morketing fund}-Current

Intermediate holding company

GMR Infrastrusture Limited i 1.64 2.57
Holding company,

GMR Airports Limited PR, 11.27 13.06
Assaciate Companies .

TIM Delbii Airport Advertising Private Limited - 0.06
Travel Food Services (Dethi Terminal 3) Private Limited - 0.02
Joint Ventures

Deihi Duty Free Services Private Limited - 4,19
GMR Bajoli Holi Hydropower Private Limited 597 7.98
Enterprises where significant influence of key. M ent onsuel oF their relative exi

GMR Varalakshmi Foundation : - 0.01
Enterprises of which the company is a joint yentar:

Fraport AG Frankfurt Afrport Services:Worldwide 59.11 57.53
Fellow subsidiaries (including subsidiary companies of the witimate/ Intermediate holding company)

Raxa Security“Services Limited = 567 220
GMR Airport Dsvélopers Limited 0.19 -
GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited - 1.37
GMR Hospitality & Retail Limited =2 0.04 0.04
Joint Venture of mem| {1 Gronp of which DIAL & ember

|GMR. Vernagiri Power Generation. Limited.. - 0.02.}
Other fingneial liabitifles « Non Current

B i f. it

Airports Authority of India L 528.00 189.88
Remuseration payable to kev managerial personael

Mr. G. M. Rao " 1.63 -
Mr. K. Narayana Rao 0.38 -
'Mr. G.B.S Raju - 175 -
Mz, Indana Prabhiakara Rao - 0.60 -

her Financial Lighiliti i . Curren
ceuril e, coj r

Celebi Dethi Cargo Terminal Management India Private Limited 7.04 0.01
Delhi Airport Parking Services Private Limited 0.01 0.42
TIM Delhi Airport Advertising Private Limited 0.73 0.74
'fravel Food Services (Delhi Terminal 3) Private Limited 0.63 -
Joint Ventares -

Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited 0,40 0.40
Delhi Avistion Services Private Limited 14.64 14.60

ellow subsidisries. (ineluding su i
GMR Aviation Private Limited 011 13§
GMR Air Cargo and Aerospace Engineering (Formerly known as GMR Aero Technic Limited) 0.23 0.22
heyr Financial Liabili t amortised eost- Non Current

Secprity Deposits from trade concessionaires

Holding comps

GMR Airports Limited .01 -
Joint Ventures -

Delhi Aviation Fuel Facility Private Limited 38.82 4520
Delhi Duty:Free Services Private Limited: 16134 146.51
FAssociate Companies . 1 i
Celebi Delhi Cargo Terminal Management India Private Limited 45.12 3937
Dethi Airport Patking Services Private Limited 0.57 0.51
TIM Delhi Airport Advertising Private Limited 11.68 10.61
{Travel Food Services (Delhi Terminal 3) Private Limited 341 3.60

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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35 (b! Summary of balances with the above related parties are as follows:

(All amounts. in Rupees Crore, except otherwise stated) . .

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

Balanas ‘avat Date T
" |Unearned Revenne )

s :!l'l‘e!l!

Associate Companies
TIM Delhi Airport Advertising Private: Limited
‘Travel Food Services (Delhi Terminal 3) Private Limited

Joint Venture:
Delli Duty Free Services Private Limited
Deli Aviation Services Private Limited -

GMR Tambaram Tindivanam Expressways Limited
GMR Pochanpalli Fxpressways Limited
GMR Aviation Private Limited

Unearped Revenne

on-Carrpnt

Assaciate Cgmgsnig

'TIM Dethi Airport Advertising Private Limited
Travel Food Services (Delli Terminal 3) Private Limited

Joint Ventures
Delhi Duty Free. Semces Private Limited -

Deferred Revenue

Associate Companies
Dethi Airport Parking Services Private lened

'TIM Delhi Aitport Advertising Private Limited
Travel Food Services (Delhi Terminal 3) Private Limited

Joint Ventures
Dethi Aviation Fuel Facility Private Limited

. {Dethi Duty Free Services Private Limited

Delhi Aviation Services Private Limited. -

Deferred Revenue

Associate Companies
Delbi Airport Parking Services Private Limited

'TIM Delhi Airport Advertising Private Limited

“Travel Food Services (Delhi Terminal 3) Private Limited
Joint Ventures .

Dethi Aviation Fuel Pacility Private Limited

Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited

Qther liabilities- Current
Advances firom customer

Asgoclate Comnanies
TIM Delhi Airport Advertising Private Limited
Travel Food Services {Dethi Terminal 3) Private Limited

Joint Ventures

Celebi Delhi Cargo Terminal Management India Private Limited

fellow snbsidiaries (including subsidiary companies of the ultimate/ Intermediate holding compam

GMR Air Cago-nnd A Engingering (Pormerly kows: as GMR Aero Technio Linrited)

Celebi Delhi Cargo Terminal Management Indxa Private Limited

Deferred Income on financial linbilities carried at amortised cost» Curr: nt

Celebi Delki Cargo Terminal Management India Private Limited

GMR Air Cargo and Aerospace Engxncenng (Formerly known as GMR Aeto Technic Limited)

Deferred Ingome on financtal liabilities carrigﬂ at amortised cost - Nou-Carrent

Celebi Delhi Cargo Terminal Management India Private Limited

0.16
032
9.40

012
0.95
0.97

00|

.11
8.08
161
0.43

631

13.55 |

0.51

0.02

1.51
94.11

1304 |

1.69

72.12
32,00

033
0.41
0.39

020
0.01

0.01

0.01
0.01

0.02
0.05

0.03 |

012
736
1.63
0.48

8.67
13.64 |
0.35

0.03

1.62
9151
1453 |

213

112.61
43.72

493
0.70

2825

_ |Delhi Dyty Free Services Private Limited

(This space has been intentionally Ieft blank)
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March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

Nouw-current iuvestments
Sale of Invesiment made in Equity Share

Joint Ventures
'WAISL Limited
DIGI Yaira Foundation

epa’

ni of Inter cor
holding

rate lo:

Inter

1.30
0.00;

GMR Infrastructure Limited e e 400.00

Security Depasits from trade rongessionaires
}&mnw
Helding Company

GMR Airports Limited , . . 0.0t
A e Comy

Celebi Delhi Cargo Terminal Management India Private Limited 19.09 7.10
: - 0.12

Secority Deposits from frads concessionaires

Secuirity Deposits Refanded ™ -
Joint Yentures :

Delli Aviation Fuet Facility Private Limited I 46.79

Associgte Companies

[Delhi Airport Patking Services Private Limited 042} -f
Marketing Fund Billed
 Associate Companies E
Dethi Airport Parking Services Private Limited ) - 0.02]
Travel Food Services (Delhi Terminal 3) Private Limited 048 1.34

Joint Yeutureg
Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited ra o

Marketing Fund Utilised
| Associate Companies .
TIM Dethi Airport Advertising Private Limited - - 0.19 0.30
Travel Food Servides (Delhi Terminal 3) Private Limited 351 0.01

2.66 14.63

Joint Ventures :
Dethii Duty Free Services Private Limited 421 7.17
Utilization of advance from commercial property developers
Fellow snbsidiaries (including subsidiary companies of the pltimate/ Intermediate holding company)

0.67 1.21

GMR Airport Developers Limited
Capital Work in

| Associate Conrpaniey

Travel Food Services (Delhi Terminal 3) Private Limitod - -

0.03

GMR Airport Developers Limited 8.14 6.98

Holding com . .
GMR Airports Limited 0.43'

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Delhi International Airport Limited
CIN. U63033DL2006PLC146936 .
Notes to the dal, ial for the year ended Maxrch 31, 2021

(AlLamounts in Rupees Crore, excent otherwiss stated)

o 35 (c) Summary of transactions with the above related parties is as follows:

Transactions duying the year March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Non-neronantieal revenue
lutermediate holding company :
GMR Infrastructure Limited - 042 2.m
Holding compamny '
GMR Airporis Limited i 131 1.97,
Joint tur
Delhi Aviation Fuel Facility Private Limited 38.60 38.66
Dollsi Aviation Services Private Limited s 847
Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited o 90.40 456.82
'WAISL Lirnited ($ifl June 26, 2019) - 21.64;
|GMR Bajoli Holi Hydropower Private Limited - 1.96|
Associate 1
TIM Delhi Airport Advertising Private Limited 49.58 159.36
Celebi Delhi Cargo Terminal Management India Private Limited 27176 24515
Travel Food Services (Dethi Terminal 3) Private Limited 1226 327
Delhi Airport Parking Services Private Limited - . .- 19.66 34.42|
Fellpw subgidiaries {includin; jdiary companies of the ultimate Holding contpa
GMR Aviation Private Limited 0.08] 0.07
GMR Energy Troding Limited: . 1.05 1.96
GMR Tambaram Tindi Exp s Limited. : e - 3.01

oz - GMR. Air Cargo and Aerospace Engincering (Formerly known as GMR Aero Technic Limited) 075 0.71
GMR Pochanpalli Expresaways Limited 3.24 -

B Joint Venture of member of a Gronp of which DIAF is a member, . i i 3
- GMR Warora Energy Limited: ks 1.01 1.96
GMR Kamalanga Frergy Limited 287 1.96
Aeronantical Revenue
Gom s Fellow subsidiaries jincludin'g subsidiary comganies of the ultimate/ Intermediate holding company}
GMR Aviation Private Limited 0.07 o.10
Enterprises in respect of which th any is # joint yentuor:
 Airports Authority of India. .~ : 0.02 0.01
|Other Income
| Bividend Income on Non-current Invesiments.
doint Ventures -
Deltii Aviation Fuel Fucility Private Limited 2.77 3.41
Delhi Duty Free Setvices Private Litnited - 43.91
Dolhi Aviation Services Private Limited 500 3.13
TIM Delhi Airport Advertising Private Limited 3.23 ’ 9.22
Delhi Airport Parking Services Private Limited - 14.63
"Travel Food Services (Delhi Terminal 3) Private Limited - 0.28
Celebi Dethi Cargo Terminal Management India Private Limited 16.38 -
Non-Aeronautical » Income on Security deposiis
Ltk it
Delhi Airport Parking Services Private Limited 0.13 0.14
TIM Delhi Airport Advertising Private Limited 1.55 L10
Celebi Delhi Cargo Terminal Management India Private Limited 827 147
Travel Food Services (Delhi Terminal 3) Privats Limited 249} . 0.43
Delhi Aviation Fusl Facility Private Limited - 6.30 12.50]
Dethi Duty Free Services Private Limited -12.81 19.10
Delhi Aviation Services Private Limited 1.41 1.02
B Fell idiavies, (incindin; sidiary compani he ultimate Holding compa:
- . GMR Air Cargo and Aerospace Engineering (Formerly known as GMR Aero Technic Limited) 0.03 0.03
H Interest Income-Oth:

Associate Companis .o . : -
Deltii Airport Parking Services Private Limited — 0.02 -
Travel Food Services (Delhi Terminal 3) Private Limited 0.04 N
 Other Revenie
Interest on Entey. Cgl_ngaliy Deposits
Intermedi ding col
GMR Infrastructure Limited - 40,16/




Delhi Internationat Airport Limited

CIN, U63033DL2006PLC146936
Notes ta the Jalone fi ial for the year ended March 31, 2021

(Al amounts in Rapees Crore, except otherwisestated) .

S5 (¢) Summary of trausactions with the above related parties is as follows:

Transactions.during the year

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

Excess provision writt: ck

Enterpriseg in respect of which the Company is a joint yeninre

Airports Authority of India

[Other expenses

Agvances written off

Subsidiary Company

Delhi Aerotropolis Private Limited

[whole.

Key managerial Remumeration paid/pavable

Short-term enmployee benefits*
M. G.M. Rao

Mr. K. Narayana Rao
Mr, G.B.S Raju -
M, Indana Prabhakara Rao

Annual Fee

‘| Enterprises in respest of: which the Company is a joint venture

Airports Authority of India{refer note 34}z

Adz;mce 10 AAT paid under p‘ rotest

Enterprises in respect of which the Company is a jolnt venture
[Adrports Authority of lindia frefermote 34D}

Proyision against advance 0 AAY paid under protest

[Enterprises in respect of which the Company is a joint veniure
Airports Authority of India [refer note 34(T)(h))

inance Cogt~ I £, n financial liabli yried at amortis

v Adsociate Companies

Dethi Airport Parking Setvices Private Limited

TIM Dethi Airport Advertising Private Limited

Celebi Delbi Cargo Terminal Management India Private Limited

'Travet Food Services (Defhi Terminal 3) Private Limited

Joi ¥

Delhi Aviation Fuel Facility Private Limited

Delhi Duty Free Setvices Private Limited

Dolhi Aviation Services Private Limited

Fellow subsidiaries (including subsidiary companieg of the ultimate/ Intermediate holding co;

GMR Air Cargo and Aerospace Engineering (Formesly known as GMR Aero Technic Limited)

Dorations! CSR Expeuditure

[Enterpriges where significant influence of ey Management persammel or theiv relative etists

GMR Varalakshmi Foundation

Manpower hire charges

Fell idigries (including subsidi ani the ultimate/ Intermediate holding cor
GMR Airport Developers Limited

|Airgort Operator fees

Enterprises in respeet of which thie Company is a joint venture
Fraport AG Frankfort Airport Services Worldwide :

Profesgion: d congultancy expens:
Enterprises in respect of which the Company is a joint venture

5.07
1.46
4.32
227

338.12

446.21

0.09
1.22
5§26
D.44
444

15.83
1.61

003

1.59

52.29

10821

6.07

1337

0.05

528
1.66
4.51
2.48

1,848.67

0.08
0.72)
4.16
0.39

8.80
25.95

1.57

0.08

5.81

55.57

103.80,

0.28;

Fraport AG Frankfurt Airport Services Worldwid

ial remuneration éxcludes provision for gratuity and compensated absences, since these are provided on the basis of an actnarial valuation for the Company as a}

(This space has been inientionally left blank)




Delhi International Airport Limited
CIN. UGBMSDLZMSPLCMSBSB .
Notes to the fal for the year ended March 31,2021

(Al amounts ip Rupees Crore, excet otherwise stated),

35 gr,z Summsl_'z of transactions with the ahove related parties is as follows:

Transacbons during the year

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

rporate Cost Allocation -
In iate ing eonpa)
GMR, Infrastructure Limited
Holdin; an
GMR Airports Limited =~ -

§5ﬁige§ Received
Travelling & Conyeyance- Chartering Cost

Tellow subsidiaries (including subsidiary companies of the altimate/ Intermediate holdi
GMR Aviation Private Limited

ecuri enses . .
Fellow subsidiaries (including subsidiary ¢ nies of the ultimate/ In ediate holdi 21
Raa Seourity Semves Bitrited S
En iseg in which the company is 3 joint re

Airports Authority of Indaa ==

- IHire Charges-Foquipmen

Felk idiaries (including subsidi OIDAM i nte; fate holding compan
Raxa Security Services Limited — R

Unhu Expenses

Electricity Clinrges

Joint Ven:

GMR. Bajoli Holi Hydropower Private Limited -

Fellow subsidiaries (including subsidiary companies of the uliimate/ Intermediate holding cor

GMR Bnergy Trading Limited

Electricity char: LCOVEr
Intermediate holding cowmpany
GMR Infrastructure Llrmted
Jdoint Ventures
Delhi Aviation Setvices Private Limited
Dothi Duty Free Services Private Limited
GMR Bajoli Holi Hydropower Private Limited
iate
'Dethi Airport Parking Services Private Limited
Celebi Delhi Cargo Terminal Management India Private Limited
'TIM Delhi Airport Advertising Private Limited
Travel Food Services (Delhi- Terminal 3) Private Limited
Fellow subsidigries (including subsidi: anies of the alfimate/ Intermediate holdi
GMR Aviation Private Limited . .

GMR Tamt Tindivanam Bxpre; Limited
GMR Energy Trading Limited
GMR. Adr Cargo-and Asrospace Engineeting: (F dy knows.as GMR Aoro Technic Limitad)-

GMR Pochanpalli Expressways Limited

Enternrises in respect of which the Company is a joint venture
Airports Anthority of India

Yoint Venture of member of 3 Group of whivh DIAY. is a member:
GMR Warora Energy Limited T

GMR Vemagiri Power Goneration Limited

GMR Kamalanga Energy Limited

Water charges yecovered

Joint .

IDelhi Aviation Services Private Limited.
Delhi Duty Free SarvicesPrivate Limited
GMR Bajoli Holi Hydropower Private Limited -

| Asociate Companies 3 . H
Delhi Airport Parking Servwes Private Limited .

Travel Food Services (Delhi Terminal 3) Private Limited

Celebi Delhi Cargo Termmal Managemem India anato Lxmltcd

GMREnergy Tradmg lented
int Venture of member of a Group of which D! ig a membe:

14.34

35.61

21,77

241

117.11

0.18

0.06

0.05
0.01
0.0l

0.64
0.41
3

0.01

0.0}

14.14

58.31

375

2573

0.01

46.58

30.98,

012

14.21
7.14{
0.12

2.14
10.76|
3.35
7.51

0.01

0.05
0621
0.0t}

19.45

0.23
0.02
0.17

.03
0.03

1.24,
115
3.18

a.0t

GMR Warora Energy Limited




Dethi International Alrport Limited
CIN. U63033])L2006PLC146936
Notes to the al X for the year ended March 31,2021

(Al amonnts. in Rupees Crore, except otherwise stated)

35 gez Summary of (rnnsaclmns with the above rehted parties is as follows:

Trunsacﬁons during the year March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
Enterprises in respect of which the Company is a jpint venture
Airports Authority of India- ‘ 0.96 3.54
Directors’ sitting fees
Key-management personnel
Mr, R.S.8.1.N, Bhaskarudu.. 0.08 0.05
Ms. Siva Kameswari Vissa 0.04 0.04]
Mr. Anil Kumar Pathak 0.02 0,01
Mr, N.C. Sarabeswaran 0.05 0.04
M. G. Subba Rao 0.03 .03,
Mz, Srinivas Bommidala 6,01 0.01]
Mr. Grandhi Kiran Kumar 8.01 -
Mr. Anuj Aggarwal 0.1 0.01
[Mr. M. Remachandran 0.65 0.04
incurred by Company on behalf ted parties

Intermediate Holding company
GMR. Infrastructure Limited...© 6.02 0.01
| Holding compony
GMR Airports Limited -7~ o 3.75 5.60
Joint Ventures
Deltii Aviation Services Private Limited 8.26 0:53
Deltii Duty Free Services Private Limited LT 0.52 0.48
‘WAISL Limited (tilt June 26, 2015) - 039
Asnocinte Compsnies
Celebi Dethi Cargo Terminal Management India Private Limited 2.73 0.68
TIM Delhi Airport Advertising Private Limited 0.76 0.71
Delhi Airport Parking Services Private Limmited 0.85 0.80)
Travet Food Serviges (Delhi Terminal 3) Private Limited 058 053
DIGI Yatra Foundation - - 0.14
Fellow subsidiaries (ineluding subsidiary companies of the ultimate/ Tutermediate holding co
GMR Airport Developers Limited ’ - 0.01
MR Tuni Anakapaiti Expressways Limited - 0.60]
GMR Pochanpalli Expressways Limited - 0.02]
Kakinada SEZ Limited - 0.02
GMR Hyderabed Irternational Airport Limited - 0.22
(MR Gor International Airport Limited - 0.04
Assogiate of 2 member of a group of which DIAL is s member.
GMR Megawide CEBU Airpert Corporation 0.07 6.07
Joint Venture of member of a Group of which DIAL is a member
GMR Warara Energy Limited: - 0.01

. [GMR Vemagiri Power Generation Limited 0.02 -

ges incurre: related parti ehnlf of Compan

MMJ.‘MM
GMR Infrastructure Lxmm-,d 0.02 0.01
Holding company
GMR Airports Limited 0.36 0.01
Associate Compani
Travel Food Services (Delhi Terminal 3) Private Limited 0.64 0.31
Joint Venture of member of 2 Group of which DIAL is 2 member
GMR. Vemagiri Power Genetation Limited - - 0.01
GMR Warora Energy Limited - 0.03
el sidiaries {in ng subsidi; ompanies of the yltimate/ Intermediate holdin P
| GMR Hyderabad Interoational Airpost Limited. 01 1.87
'GMR Airport Developers Eimited 8.03
GMR Hospitality & Retail Limited - 0.06
{GMR League Games Private Limited 0.02 |
Raxa Security Services Limited = 0.03, -

H
i




Delhi International Airport Limited
CIN. U63033DL2006P1.C146936

Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All amounts in Rupees crore, except otherwise stated)

- 35-(d) Interest-in significant investment in subsidiary, joint ventures and associates:

- - - Name . Relationship O?vnership ) Date uf_ ) Country 91‘
R 4 interest | incorporation | incorperation
R Dethi Aerotropohs Prlvate L1m1ted [refer Indi
| note 34 III (if)(vii) )] Subsidiary | 100.00% | May 22, 2007 12
Celebi Delhi Cargo Terminal Management ,
. | India Private Limited Associate 26.00% Jime 18,2009 India
: | Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited Joint Venture | 45.90% | July 07,2009 India
I Delhi Airport Parking Services Private February 11, .
: | Limited Associate 49.90% 2010 India
T T ] Travel Food-Services (Delltu Terminal 3) December 04, J
‘ | Private Limited - ] Associate 40.00% 2009 India
~ | TMDelhi Airport Advertising Private . )
. Lim ited : Associate 49.90% June 01, 2010 India
i B . o . . February 20 -
ZazoEm . 0, 3
o DIGI Yatra Fouudatlon ein Associate 22.20% 2019 India
o GMR Bajoli Hoh Hydropower anate . o September 11, .
B ) 7 7, N Limited T Joint Venture 20.14% 2017 Tndia
) L T s . .. . August 11, .
| Delhi Aviation Euel Facility Private Limited | Joint Venture | 26.00% 2009 India
T e Delhi Aviation Services Private Limited | Joint Venture | 50.00% | June 28, 2007 India

Terms and Condition of transaction with related pariies:

.. Outstanding balances.at the reporting date are secured/ unsecured and settlement occurs in cash. For the year
ended March 31,2021, the Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed
by related parties (March 31, 2020: Nil). This assessment is undertaken in each financial year through examining
:the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates. :

Commitments with related parties:

The commitments in respect of related parties are provided in note 34(11T) above, formmg part of these financial
statements,

Transaetions with key management personnel

The transactiorn with key management personnel includes the payment of directors sitting fees and managerial
‘remuneration which are provided in note 35(c) above. There are no other transactions with Key management

personnel.




Delhi International Airport Limited
CIN. U63033DL2006PLC146936
. Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

- (All amounts in Rupees crore, except otherwise stated)

36. Segment Information

- ..The: Conipany.has: only.one-reportable business segment, which is operation of airport and providing allied
- services.zand: opetates; in:.a. single .business segment. Accordingly, the amounts appearing in the financial
statements relate to the Company’s single business segment.

‘Major- custoniers: Revenue from one customer of the Company is approximately Rs. 271.76 crore of the
_Coimpany’s total revenues (March 31, 2020: Revenue from one customer of the Company is approximately Rs.
456.77 crore of the Company’s total revenues)

37. Fair Values

The carrying-amount-of all financial assets and liabilities (except for certain other financial assets and liabilities,
.e; “Instruments carried at fiir valug?) appearing in the financial statements is reasonable approximation of fair
values. Such investments carried at fair value are disclosed below:

Carrying value Fair value
1 Asat s As at As at - As at
08 ¢ Bdeeer AT - March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Financial Assets
i .| Investment in mutual fund N . 744.84 405.25 744.84 405.25
T 7| Cash flow hedges-Call spread option 872.41 | 1009.04 872.41 1009.04
T [ etal T 1 1617.25 141429 1617.25 141429
S Financial Liabilities -
(carried at amortised cost) _
Security Depos:ts from trade 627.28 | 589.17 » 638.11 601.00 |
| concessionaires :
Security Deposits from commermal F 15.99 14.43 16.74 15.73
property developers
Total - . ; 642.27 603.60 654,85 616.73

Assumption used in estimating the fair values:

The fair value of the financial assets and labilities. is included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in ‘a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The
following methods and assumption were used to estimate the fair values:

S azeeeoo oo oo The Company entefs into derivative. financial instruments with various counterparties, principally financial

i s o wch instifitions: with-investment grade credit ratings. Derivatives are valued using valuation techniques, which

. - ¢mploys the use of market observable inputs. The most frequently applied valuation techniques include forward

.- -pricing and swap models, using present value calculations. The models incorporate various inputs including the

. credit quality of counterparties; foreign exchange spot and forward rates, yield curves of the respective

:-cutrencies; currency-basis-spreads-between the respective currencies, interest rate curves and forward rate curves

== +of the undetlying ‘commodity: As at March 31, 2021, the marked-to-market value of derivative asset positions is
net of a credit valuation adjustment attributable to derivative counterparty default risk.




Delhi International Airport Limited
CIN. U63033D1.2006PLC146936
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(All amounts-in Rupees crore, except otherwise stated)

38. Fair value hierarchy

~ i The following table provides'the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s assets and liabilities.

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2021:

-_Fair value measurement using
B Date of Total | Market prices | Significant Significant
valuation in active observable | unobservable
markets inputs inputs
) (Level 1) ~ (Level 2) (Level 3)
Assets meésured at
fair value
= 2| Investment in mutual | March 31,2021 744,84 T44.84 - -
fund -
[ Cash flow hedges-
" Call spread option )
-I =i March 31, 2021 872.41 - 872.41 -
"Total . 1617.25 744.84 872.41 -

- % ~-'There have been no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the year.

Feenoos o Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2020:

L Fair value measurement using
x o._Date of Total | Market prices | Significant Significant
valuation in active observable | unobservable
markets inputs inpats
7 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
~ Assets measured at
-fair value
Investment in mutual | March 31, 2020 405.25 405.25 - -
fund
Cash flow hedges-
~Call spread option
S March 31,2020 | 1009.04 - 1009.04 -
Total 141429 405.25 1009.04 -




Delhi International Airport Limited

CIN. U63033DL2006PLC146936
.. Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(All amonnts-in Rupees crore, except otherwise stated)
39, Risk Management

Financial risk management objectives and policies

- The Company’s principal. financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comptise loans and borrowings, security
- deposits and trade and-otherpayables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s
.. operations and to-provide gnarantees to support its operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include
loans, trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations. The
Company also enters into derivative transactions.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management
oversees the management of these risks. The Company’s financial risk activities are governed by appropriate
- policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the
-..-Company’s policies:and risk objectives. All derivative activities for risk management purposes are carried out

-~ by senior managerment team-that-have the appropriate skills, experience and supervision. It is the Company’s

-rpolicy thatno trading in derivatives-for speculative purposes may be nndertaken. The Board of Directors reviews

- -’ and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below:

Market risk

= Market risk is the risk that-the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
.- ¢hanges-in market prices: Market risk comprises of interest rate risk and cwrrency risk. Financial instruments
- affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits and derivative financial instruments.

- Thesensitivity analysisin the following sections relate to the position as at March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020;

- The sensitivity analyses have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt, the ratio of fixed to floating
- -interest rates ofthe debt and derivatives and the proportion of financial instruments in foreign currencies are all

- constant and on the basis of hedge designations in place at March 31, 2021.

The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on: the carrying values of gratuity and other
post-retirement obligations; provisions; and the non-financial assefs and liabilities of foreign operations. The
analysis for the contingent cons1derat10n liability is provided in Note 34 (T).

The following assumptions have been made in calculating the sensitivity analyses:

o The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective
- miarket risks: This is based on the financial assets and financial labilities held at March 31, 2021 and

March 31, 2020.

Tnterest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or firture cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
-of changes in market interest rates. The Company is not exposed to risk of changes in market interest rates as
the borrowings of the Company are at fixed rate of interest.

Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of

-changes in foreigh exchange: rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates
relates primarily to the foreign currency borrowings taken from banks. However, the Company has hedged its

borrowing through call spread option.

Cash flow hedges




Delhi International Airpert Limited
CIN. U63033DL.20606PLC146936
. - Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2021

(Al amounts in Rupees erore; except otherwise stated) -

- Foreign-exchange call spread options. measured at fair value through OCI are designated as hedging instruments
in-cash. flow. hedges to hedge the USD INR conversion rate volatility with reference to the cash outflows on

settlement of its borrowings designated in USD.
. “The fair value of foreign. exchange. call spread option varies with the changes in foreign exchange rates and

repayment of firture premium.

: March 31, 2621 March 31, 2020
B : Particalars ) Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
| Cash flow hedges-Call spread option - 872.41 | - 1009.04 -

-As at March 31, 2021, the USD spot rate is above the USD call option strike price for all call spread options of
ISD. 131135, m:llhon Accordingly,-an amount of Rs. 335.94 crore has been released from Cash flow hedge
resetve to-statement of profit and loss to neutralize the impact of Foreign exchange gain included in standalone
statement of profit and loss.

=A% at-March-31; 2020; the USD spot rate is above the USD call option strike price for all call spread options of
JUSD- 131135 million, Accordingly;-an amount of Rs. 806.55 crore has been released from Cash flow hedge
reserve:to statement of profit:and Joss to neutralize the impact of foreign exchange loss mcluded in statement of
profit and loss.

Foreign currency seusitivity

.- :The following tables: demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in foreign currency exchange

-rates,:with: all other variables held constant. The impact on the Company’s profit/ (loss) before tax is due to
-changes it the fair value of liabilities including non-designated foreign currency detivatives. The impact on the
Company’s pre-tax equity is.due.to changes in the fair value of forward exchange contracts designated as cash
+ ~flow hedges and Interest rate swap. The Company’s exposure to foreign currency changes for all other currencies
~ is not material.

Mareh 31, 2021 t March 31, 2020
: i Impact on profit/ (loss) before tax
USD Sensitivity ;
| INR/USD- Increase by 5%. : (5.12) | (0.43). |
INR/USD- decrease by 5% 5.12 0.43
EURO Sensitivity
INR/EURO-Inctease by 5% - (0.20) (0.19)
| INR/EURO- decrease by 5% ) ©0.20 0.19
GBF Sensitivity _
L | INR/GBP Increase by 5% S - (6.02) 0.18)
B ~ { INR/GBP- decrease by 5% = f 0.02 0.18
SGD Sensitivity
INR/SGD Increase by 5% (0.01) -
INR/SGD- decrease by 5% 0.01 -




- Liquidity risk

- - ®For range of interest, repayment schedule and security details refer note 17.

Delhi International Airport Limited
CIN, U63033DL2006PLC146936
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(All amounts in Rupees erore, except otherwise stated)

... The Company monitors its risk of a shortage of fimds on a regular basis. The Company’s objective is to maintain
.. ..a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank overdrafts, bank loans and
--finance leases. Rs;-2,111:05-crore:of the Company’s debt will mature in less than one year at March 31, 2021

(March 31, 2020:-Nil) based-on the carrying value of borrowings reflected in the financial statements. The

Comipany assessed the concentration of risk with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low.

The table below summarises. the maturity profile of the Company’s financial Liabilities based on- contractual

undiscounted payments:
Less
Co ’.Pﬁl'j'tiﬂllﬁl‘ii:.“f dex?lzi}d than 3 1?1;‘:1:]125 . 1to S5 years > 5 years Total
: L months
As at March 31,
12021 :
L Bofrowings’*—i"_i_ Czim ) 770.74 | 1,340.31 3,257.10 7,476.23 12,844.38
Short Term :
Borrowings Zom o 4875 216.60 - - 264.75
Trade payables s 36530 - - - 365.30
Lease liability - 1.31 3.98 16.84 - 22.13
Other financial .
EE AT 32,05 . 281.55 279.54 350.52 2,323.83 3,267.49
ligbilities
‘Total 32.05 | 1,467.65 | 1,839.83 3,624.46 9,800.06 16,764.05
- As at March 31,
2020 :
| Borrowings®. :* < BT - - 2,184.83 7,737.50 9.922.33
Trade payables om0 301.92 - - - 301.92
Lease liability - 0.59 2.18 10.78 1.02 14,57
Other finznoial 4364 50200| 21682 436.74 2,375.26 3,574.46
liabilities
Total 43.64 | . 804.51 219,00 2,632.35 10,113.78 13,813.28

Credit Risk

... Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer
- contract, leading to'a financial loss: The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily
- trade receivables and other financial assets) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and
- financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments.

= ~Trade receivables- Customer credit risk is managed by Company subject to the Company’s established policy,

generally covered by bank guarantee or other forms of credit assurance.

procedures and. control relating to. customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a customer is assessed
-based on an extensive credit rating scorecard and individual credit limits are defined in accordance with this
: —assessment. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored and any services to major customers are
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Delhi International Airport Limited

CIN. U63033DL2006PL.C146936
.. Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(All amounts in Rupees crore; except-otherwise stated) -
. Financial instruments. and cash _deposits- Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions s
. managed:by the:CGompany’s: treasury- department in accordance with the Company’s policy. Investments, of
-+ surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counter party.

- . enloo o Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the Company’s senior management on regular basis, and may be
~ o= o= .~ updated throughout the year. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate
-~ ---- financial loss through counterparty’s potential failure to make payments,

~mmz - The Compatty’s maximum: exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at March 31, 2021
: and March 31, 2020 is the carrying amounts of Trade Receivables.

Collateral

.., As at March 31, 2021 the security provided to NCD'’s, hond holders, hedge providers and working capital
facilities is as below;

- (i)-A: first ranking pari-passu charge[ -assignment of all insurance policies, contractors’ guarantees and hquldated :
“damages to-the maximum: extent permissible under the OMDA and the Escrow Account Agreement;
= (H)=A firstranking pari passu-charge/assignment of all the rights; titles, permits, approvals and interests of the
iz -z Berrower=in; to and-in respect -of-the Project Documents, in accordancée with and to the maximum extent
= & permitted nader the OMDA and the Escrow Account Agreement;
sy (i) A-first ranking pari-passu-charge on all the revenues / receivables of the Borrower (excluding dues to the
s -Authority)-Subjeet to the provisions of the Escrow Account Agreement and the OMDA.

" (This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Delhi International Airpert Limited
CIN. U63033DL2006PL.C146936

. Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(Adl-amounts in Rupees crore, except otherwise stated)

40. Capital management
For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, and all other equity

v _reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital

management is to maximise the shareholder value.

" The Company manages its: capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions

and the requirements-of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company
monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is total net debt divided by total equity plus total net debt. The

. Company’s policy is to keep the gearing ratio below 80%, which is reviewed at end of each financial year.

R T March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
.| Long tert borrowings (including current maturities) 12,776.57 9,920.89
Short term botrowings - ) 264.75 -
| Total Borrowings () === : 13,041.32 9,920.89
) Less: .
3t - fiy Cash and cash equivalents:::: i 3,334.20 | 2,049.30 }
.{ii) Bank balance other thmcash and cash
“équivalents 449.80 827.09
(iii) :Current investments - . - 1,216.57 1,234.20
Total cash & investments (IT) - 4,994.57 4,110.59
R ﬁé? debts (A= T " 8,046.75 | 5,810.30
| Share Capital Lot 2,450.00 2,450.00
Other Equity = - 104.82 292.46
Total Equity ) 2,554.87 2,742.46
- |-Fotal équity and total net debts (C=A+B) : 10,601.58 8,552.76
Gearing ratio (%) (A/C) 75.90% - 67.93%

*the Company consider to use net debt instead of debt for computation of gearing ratio w.e.f. from current
financial year.

- In-order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongsf other things, aims to
- -ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital
- -structure requirements, There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and

borrowing in the current period.

+ - No- changes: were made.in the. objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended

March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020.




Delhi International Airport Limited
CIN. U63033DL2006PLC146936
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(Al amounts in Rupees crore, except otherwise stated)
~ 41. Other Disclosures

: a) AERA DF:Order:No. 28/2011-12, 30/2012-13 aud AERA tariff order No. 03/2012-13 and 57/2020-21
. on determination of Aeronautical Tariff; issued on November 14, 2011, December 28, 2012, April 24,

2012 and December 30, 2020 respectively

(i)  DIAL implemented the Tariff order No. 40/2015-16 dated December 08, 2015 issued by AERA for the
" .-gecond control period with effect from July 08, 2017 as per directions of Director General of Civil

Aviation dated July 07, 2017,

- -DIAL’s appeal no.-10/2012-with respect to first control period has been concluded at the TDSAT along
with the appeal of certain airlines. TDSAT vide its order dated April 23, 2018 has passed the order,
- which provides-clarity -on the issues which were pending for last six years and has laid down the
rinciplés to be followed by AERA in the third control period starting from April 1, 2019. The Company
xpects the uplifiimpact-ofthe TDSAT order to reflect in the tariff determination by AERA for the third
control period:i.e.:2019--2024. DIAL’s appeal against the second control period is pending before the
u - TDSAT:and the same is still o be heard which shall be heard in due course. Also, DIAL in respect of
«: 7. TDSAT order'dated April 23;:2018 has filed a limited appeal in the Hon’ble Supreme Court of India on
July 21, 2018 and same is stilt to be heard.

-zt -Purther; DIAL has filed:tariff proposal for the third control period starting April 1, 2019 to March 31,
=2024 with the regulator on November 27, 2018. AERA has time to time extended the prevailing tariff.
- AERA:has issued tariff order.no 57/2020-21 for third control period on December 30, 2020 allowing
-+=DIAL to-continue with BAC+10% tariff for the balance period of third control period plus compensatory
= tarifE inc liew:of Fuel Throughput Charges. DIAL had also filed an appeal against some of AERA’s
_. decision in third control period order on January 29, 2021 with TDSAT. .

: (n)._The Airport Economic Regulatory Authority of India (AERA) had passed an order vide Order No
. 30/2012-13 dated-December 28, 2012 in respect of levy of Development fee at Dethi Airport. As per the
said order, the rate of Airport Development Fee (ADF) has been reduced from Rs. 200 to Rs. 100 and

- from Rs. 1,300 to Rs. 600 per embarking domestic and international passenger respectively. Further, as
per the said order, such revised rates have come into force with effect from January 1, 2013 and estimated

DF co]lecmon period has been extended up to April 2016.

Further, AERA has issued order No.47/2015-16 dated January 25, 2016, restricting, cut-off date for

collection of ADF upto April 30, 2016. As per the order, AERA has granted AAI, six months’ time after

cut-off-date-i.e. April 30, 2016 to reconcile and close the account, and to arrive at the over recovery /

N _ under recovery of ADF. However, the same has not yet been finalized. This over / under recovery will

T . . be.accounted for on final reconciliation of ADF pending with AAI However, DIAL has collected the
. e DF receivable in full and settled the DF loan on May 28, 2016.

, b) The.Company has a receivable of Rs. 196. 31 crore as at March 31,2021 (March 31, 2020: Rs. 186.57 crores)
- "~ (including unbilled receivables) from Air India Limited and its subsidiaries namely Indian Airlines Limited,
=~~~ Airline Allied Services Limited and Air India Express Limited collectively referred as ‘Air India’. During
-~the year-ended: March-3 1, 2021; the Company has recognized receivable of Rs. Nil (Year ended March 31,
- 2020: Rs. 28.90-crore)- (including GST) and received Nil (¥ear ended March 31, 2020: Rs. 8.41 crore)

- (including GST) towards interest agreed to be paid by Air India Limited. In view of payment and continuous
reduction in the overdue quatier on quarter.and considering the fact that Air India being a government
enterprise/ undertaking, the Company considers its due from Air India as good and fully recoverable. As
agreed in 13" OMDA Implementation Over51ght Committee (OIOC) meeting, the Company has not paid
revenue share on Rs. Nil (March 31, 2020: Rs. 27.97 crore) recognised as interest income on delayed

payment by Air India.
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Delhi International Airport Limited

CIN. U63033DL2006PL.C146936
em . Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(All amounts in-Rupees crore; except otherwise stated)
“c) AParticulars of un-hedged and un-discounted foreign currency exposure as at the reporting date are as

undex:
T T March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
T . | Particulars Amount | Currency | Foreign | Amount | Currency | Foreign
| Rs. in Curreney [(Rs. In Currency in
Crores) in Crores | Crores) Crores
T | Trade Payables 4.00 EUR 0.05 3.73 EUR 0.0
o o R Y7 GBP 0.00 3.56 GBP 0.04
B N BN ¥ T SGD 0.00 0.04 SGD 0.00
: ) . 2435 USD 0.33 8.56 UsD 0.11
T h man N T X AUD 0.00 0.03 AUD 0.00
L I ST T eas AED 0.00 - - -
,,,,, " [ Other Current Financial |~ 75.04 USD 1.07 154.64 UsD 2.08
- - Liabilities
UL o S I . EUR - 0.08 EUR 0.00
Closing exchange rates in Rs:
" . [ Currency Mareh 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
o ) 85.750 82.770
_ | EUR
100.753 93.503
GBP
54.350 53.025
8GD
73.110 75.665
USD
55.763 46.075
. AUD
19.905 20.60
AED
d) Additional information :
_ ~‘{) Earnings in foreign currency (On accrual basis, excluding service tax/GST)
- [ Particulars - -~ - For the year ended For the year ended
) o sl March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Aeronzautical -Services (Revemue from | 748 4754
N airlines) :
ii) CIF value of imports (On accrnal basis) Kz’((’r’i T
,{} ~xiong,
ho$




Delhi International Airport Limited
CIN. U63033D1.2006PLC146936
- Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(All-ameounts-in Rupees-érore,- except otherwise stated)

= | Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
| Import of camtal goods 10.95 2.02
Import of stores.and spares 1.08 2.87
Total - 12.03 4.89

. ...ii) Expenditure in foreign currency charged to statement of profit & loss (On accrual basis)

. - For the year ended For the year ended
Partieulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Interest on borrowings. - 384.78 376.16
- - o | Professional and consultancy expenses 4,77 16.98
Finance costs ] : 15.53 0.05
Other expenses 9.25 9.12
. ".-| Travelling and Conveyance 0.60. 1.85
| Total ' 414.93 404.16

. iv) Expenditure in-foreign currency: eapitalised/ debited in borrowings/ debited in cther borrowing cost to the
extent not amortised (On accrual basis)

- Pa ruculars e e : For the year ended | For the year ended
TR March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
... | Interest on bortowmgs 252,21 156.83
[ Professional and consultancy expenses 4.07 17.50
’ Finance costs (Other borrowing costs including .
- | amount debited in.borrowings/ debited in other 38.68 22.66
_borrovmg cost to the extent not amortised)*
Total 294,96 196.99
*Inc]udes Rs. 12.14 crore deblted in other borrowing cost to the extent not amortised.
v) Consumption of stores and spares during the year:
: For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
) % Amount % Amount
' Tmported 9.56 1.73 5.08 1.08
o | Indigenous 90.44 16.36 94.92 20.18
- |- Total 106,00 18.09 100.00 21.26
vi) Consumption of capital spares during the year:
- S For the year ended For the year ended
Partlculars March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
% ‘Amount % Amount
Imported 60.25 1.17 60.00 2.13
Indigenous 39.75 0.77 40.00 1.42
" Total 106.00 1.94 100.00 3.55




Delhi International Airport Limited

CIN. U63033DL.2006PL.C146936
.. Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2021
IUEETIEE (All- amounts in Rupees crore, except otherwise stated) :
R ...€)... These financial statements of the Company do not include Accounts for Passenger Service Fee - Security
Compenent [PSF- (SC)] as-the same are maintained separately in the fiduciary capacity by the Company on
. -behalf of Government of India and are governed by Standard Operating Procedure issued vide letter number
.. AV/13024/047/2003-SS/AD dated January 19, 2009 issued by Ministry of Civil Aviation, Government of

India,

A8 perthe MOCA nonﬁcanon the PSF (SC) is replaced by Aviation Security Fee w.e.f. July 1, 2019 and
will be governed by National Aviation Security Fee trust.

~ f)° The Company has received Advance Development Costs (ADC) of Rs. 680.14 crore, including Rs. 6.93
- ==z~ grore-related to Phase T development (March 31, 2020: Rs. 680.14 crore, including Rs. 6.93 crore related to
- - -Phase II development) from various Developers at Commercial Property District towards facilitating the
-+ development of common infrastructure there in. As per the term of the agreement, the Company will
- facilitate the development .of cormmon infrastructure upon receipt of advance towards development cost in
ceordance with the instructions and specifications in the agreement. Further, the Company has no right to
-escalate the development cost anid in case any portion of the advance development cost is not utilized by the
-Cofnpany: towatds development of any infrastriscture facility, the same shall be returned to the Developers
apon earlier of the expiry of the initial term of agreement or upon termination of the development agreemert.
s at Mareh 31, 2021; the Company has incurred development expenditure of Rs. 582.11 crore (March 31,
.2 2020:Rs;:567.8  crore); which has been adjusted against the aforesaid ADC. Further, in case of Silver Resort
: Hotel India Private Limited, the Company had transferred Rs, 32.61 crore as unspent ADC in its proportion
efundableto Silver Resort Hotel India Private Limited to ‘Advances from customer’, basis the arbitration
sorder-which-is-now refunded during the previous financial year as per settlement agreement approved vide
“Hon’ble-High Court order dated November 7, 2019 [refer note 41(k) below]. Remaining ADC of amount
= Rs165.42 crore including Rs. 6.93 crore related to Phase II development (March 31, 2020: Rs. 79.72 crore,
.- including'Rs. 6.93 crore related to Phase 11 development) is disclosed under other liabilities.

) . The Company made an internal assessment on computation of Annual Fee payable to AAI and is of the view

~“that the Anoual Feé has been paid'to AAI on Gross Receipts credited to the statement of proﬁt and loss (with

" certain exclusions) instead of on the “Revenue” as defined under OMDA. The legal opinion obtained in this

. regard made it clear that there were excess payments of Annual Fee by DIAL by mistake from time to time

to AAL Accordingly, as per the decision taken by the Board of Directors of the Company a claim for return

of excess Annual Fee paid to the AAT was raised on 26.12.2016. AAT has not agreed to the claim and insisted

DIAL to continue to.pay Annual Fee on the same basis, which DIAL is paying under protest and accounting

annual fee as expense till the matter is settled. Accordingly, the dispute arose under OMDA but same could

not be resolved amicably leading to the initiation of arbitration proceedings, which have commenced from

December, 2018, DIAL has submitted its statement of claim in respect of which, A AT has filled its Statement

-of Defence (SOD). Pleadings in the matter are completed and issues were framed by Arbitral Tribunal. At

the stage of oral evidence, DIAL had examined two of its witnesses. Despite opportunity being given no

. witness was examined by AAI-DIAL had completed its arguments/ submissions, AAI arguments have been

o ~partly heard and will further continue on the next date of hearing. However, due to current COVID -19

<em oo msituationy the matter was not takens up for hearing for AAT’s arguments and was simply adjourned, Next date

of -hearings-are 11.07.2021, 18.07.2021 and 01.08.2021 for AAD’s arguments and 07.08.2021 and
08.08.2021 for DIAL’s rejoinder arguiments.




Delhi International Airport Limited
CIN. U63033DL2006PLC146936
_Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 -

(A“' amounts in Rupees crore, except otherwise stated)

,_the ,agreement with respectwe concessionaires and to be utilized towards sales promotlonal activities as
_defined in such agreements in accordance with the Marketing Fund policy adopted by the Company. As at
o - _ March 31, 2021, the Company has accounted for Rs. 181.07 crore (March 31, 2020: Rs. Rs, 174.40 crore)
fvrmee oo - - - {gwwards such Martketing Fund and has incurred expenditure amounting to Rs. 129.34 crore (March 31, 2020:
_.Rs. 117.27 crore) (net of income on temporary investments) till March 31, 2021 from the amount so
. -collected. The balance amount of Rs. 51.72 crore pending utilization as at March 31, 2021 (March 31, 2020:
Rs. 57.13 crore) against such sales promotion activities is included under "Other current Habilities" as
specific fund to be used for the purposes to be approved by the Marketing fund committee constituted for

this purpose as per Marketing Fund Policy.

i) The Company is of the view that certain income/ credits arising on adoption ‘of Ind-AS were not in
== -= comtemplation of parties in: April 2006 when this Concession Agreement i.e. OMDA was signed / entered.
- Further,. these .income/credits -in: Statement of Profit and Loss do not represent receipts from business
--operdtions from any-external sources and therefore, these incomes/credits should not form part of “Revenue”
- - as defined in OMDA for the purpose of calculating monthly annual fee (MAF) payable to AAIL Accordingly,
--the Company; based on legal opifiion has provided the MAF to AAI based on Revenue as per the Ind AS
* financial stateinents after-adjusting such incomes/credits, Detail of such incomes / credits are as under:

e e Fies | rIimITin - For theyear | For the year
Formmre T G E Descﬁpﬁon senl T - Incomes forming part of lended March 31,) ended March
- 2021 31, 2020
i unwmies asssp Construction income from commercml property Other operating income
‘ developers 14.30 | 15.43
3 | Discounting on fair valuation of deposus taken from [Other operating income
commercial property developers - 31.80 31.89
%..| Discounting on faJr valuation of deposats taken from  [Sale of services — Non '
concessionaires - e Acronautical 7103 | 64.07
Discounting on fmr valuanon of depostts given Other income 0.20 0.36
-1 Significant financing component on: revenue ffom ale of services — Non 1.89 4,30
contract with customers eronautical

However, the Company has accrued revenue of Rs. 735.21 crores (March 31, 2020: Rs. 412.87 crores) on
straight line basis, in accordance with Ind AS 116. Annual fee of Rs. 338.12 crores (March-31, 2020:Rs.
189.88 crore) on this revenue is also provided whick is payable to AAT in future years ot actual realization
of revenue.

Further, the Company has also provided the “Airport Operator Fees” included in “Other expenses” based on
- -%Gross revenue” for the last financial year, after excluding the income/ credits from above transactions.

~j) ~As per the transfer pricing rules prescribed under the Income tax act, 1961, the Company is examining the
... - -domestic and international transactions and documentation in respect thereof to ensure compliance with the
- said miles.. The management does not anticipate any material adjustment with regard to the transactlons

during year ended March 31, 2021.




Delhi International Airport Limited
CIN. U63033DL2006PLC146936
_. Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All amennts in Rupees crore, except otherwise stated)
k) ..The Company had entered into ‘Development Agreement’ and the ‘Infrastructure Development and Service
—Agreément?.with Silver Resort Hotel India Private Limited (hereinafter referred as ‘Developer”) on February
) » .:26,:2010.for development and operation of commercial property area located in Aerocity for a period of 30
Cre el e aies yearsy further extendable to. another 30 years. As per term of agreements, Developer was required to pay the
o e e e 7o 7ot License Teé and-other charges.to the Company on annual basis. On July 16, 2015, the Comparny has issued
_ - ~termination notice on account of failure by the Developer to pay the License Fees and other charges, required
: . to-be paid under the agreements executed between the Company and the Developer. Consequently, the
-Developer has invoked-the arbitration process as per Infrastructure Development and Service Agreement.

_.The Arbitral Award was passed by the Hon’ble Arbitral Tribunal which was received by the Company on

September 08, 2017, The favorable award passed in majority by Tribunal granting Rs.115.89 crore award to

) ...~ » DIAL and directing it to settle the award against security deposits of Rs. 192.88 crores lying with the
ST s o Company and pay the balance Rs, 76.99 crores to the Developer. However, one of the arbitrators has passed

- -the'dissenting-ordeér granting award in favor of Developer amounting to Rs. 416.86 crores. Dissenting award

granted-by-one of the arbitrators is not enforceable / binding on the parties, being the minority order /

issenting- opinion.- Accordingly,: DIAL has deposited payment of Rs.76.13 crore (net of recovery of
7 -arbitration cost 0f:Rs.0.86 crore) in the Hon’ble High Court of Delhi as per arbitration award.

-, Further, Silver fesort-has filed an.appeal against the arbitration award before the Hon’ble High coutt. The
: =smatter-was-heard: for:arguments:on April 26, 2018 and the judgment was pronounced on May 8, 2018 in

favour of DIAL.

=4 S Purstiantito the-above order, ‘the Developer has preferred an appeal before Double Bench of Delhi High

Court which was heard on July 4, 2018.

‘Both-the parties agreed-for settlement and accordingly the matter has been settled vide Hon’ble High Court

order dated November-7; 2019 according to which DIAL has paid Rs. 54 crores to the developer as final

settlement including outstanding ADC of Rs. 32.61 crore.

~-= ——)* =A survey under section 133A-of the Income Tax Act, 1961 was carried out at the premises of the Company

by the Income Tax authorities on June 22 -23, 2016. The Income Tax department has sought information

vide its letter dated July 18, 2016. The management has provided all the information as asked by the

-department.- The management of the Company believes that it has complied with all the applicable provisions
of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and does not expect any additional tax liability on account of survey operations.

- m). The Government of India announced Services Export from India Scheme (SEIS) under Foreign Trade Policy

(FTP).2015-20 under which the service provider of notified services is entitled to Duty Credit Scrips as a

.- percentage of net foreign exchange (NFE) eamned. These Scrips either can be used for payment of basic
custom duty on imports or can be transferred/traded in the market.

onEmeem as TRIh e UTeroEm ==Pursuant to-above, during the year ended March 31, 2018, the Company had received SEIS scrips of Rs.
“ vt i oo oo 3119 crote of financial year 2015-16 having validity till September 30, 2019.

- Pursuant-to-above; during: the year ended March 31, 2019, the Company has received SEIS scrips of Rs.
- _55.82 crores for financial.year2016-17, having validity tifl October 21, 2020. During the year ended March
< 7022 31,°2020; $HE Compary Hias dlso feceived SEIS scrips of Rs. 24.32 crores and Rs. 15.87 crores for FY 2017-
_= 18 and FY 2018-19 respectively, having validity till June 20, 2021 and August 13, 2021 respectively.

As on March 31, 2021, The Company has entirely utilized / sold Rs. 127.20 crore (March 31, 2020: Rs.
111.11 crore) of the remaining scrips.
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Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(Al amounts-in Rupees-erore, except otherwise stated)

.. ...The Scrips received under SEIS are in nature of Government Grant and is similar to the Scrips received

- eartier under’ Ser:yg:_d_ﬁ'om India- Scheme (SFIS) of Foreign Trade Pohcy 2010-15. The company is of the

. view that as. per the latest Arbitral Order dated December 27, 2018 in case of SFIS Scrip, the Income from

... .SEIS Scrip is out of the purview of revenue definition as per OMDA. Accordingly, management believes
- -that, no Annual Fee is paydble-as-per the provisions of OMDA, and has not been provided in these financial

statements.

) : The Hon’ble Orissa High Court vide Judgement in W.P. N0.20463/2018, in the case of Safari Retreats Private
Limited, observed that the GST provisions w.r.t input tax credit allowability in respect of Civil work are not
- inline with the objective of the Act, and accordingly, held that if an assessee is required to discharge GST on
- the_rental income, it is eligible to- avail the Input Tax Credit (ITC) of GST w.r.t. civil work. DIAL (the
----company) is engaged in rendering cutput supplies which is in the nature of letting out space/ facilities to
.- various airline operators and other parties/concessionaires, in return for consideration, known by different
= nomenclatures and are leviable-to GST. Hence, the company has availed the GST ITC in respect of the costs
-for civil work.incutred as part of the Phase 3A expansion project and regular operations, upon application of
the said judicial proncincement.-Further, depattment has filed an appeal in Hon’ble Supreme Court of India
-against the judgément of Hon’ble Orissa High Coutt. Pending outcome of judgement of Hon’ble Supreme
Court of Tndia, considering thejudgement of Hon’ble Orissa High Court and based on the opinion obtained
;.7 by the.Company-in this regard, the- Management is of the view that GST ITC in respect of such civil work is
. eligible to be availed by the Company. Having regard to the same, GST ITC amounting to Rs.477.62 crores
--(March:31,2020:-Rs.-254.01 crores) has been claimed in GST return and disclosed under balance with

. statutory / Government authorities in financial statements (refer note 9).

-+ Further a Writ Petition has also been filed by the company in the matter before Dethi High Court on July 10,
2020, for ITC claim to be allowed of GST in respect of the civil works i.e. works contract service and goods
and services received by the company for construction of immoveable property used for providing output
- takable supplies. The writ was heard by the Hon’ble High Court on July 29, 2020 and issued notice to the
respondents Accordingly the matter was heard on September 15, 2020 and on November 20, 2020. Next date

of hearing has been fixed on July 09, 2021.

0) - AERA vide its letter dated January 15, 2020 advised to implement the directions given by the Ministry of
.Civil Aviation vide letter No. AV 13030/216/2016-ER (Pt. 2) dated January 8, 2020 wherein charging of
airport operator charge or fuel throughput charge in any manifestation should be discontinued with immediate

-+ . effect and asked AERA/ MoCA to consider the amount in this stream and duly compensate the Airport

" Operatats by recalibrating other tariffs during determinations of airport tariffs. AER A vide orderno. 57/2020-
21 dated December 30, 2020 has allowed compensatory tariff in lieu of Fuel Throughput Charges w.e.f.
February 01, 2021 for the balance period of third control period.
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Delhi International Airport Limited
CIN. U63033DL2006PLC146936

- Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(All amounts in Rupees crore, except otherwise stated)

p) Leases

Company as lessee

The -Company- has: taken-office-and residential space, mformatlon technology equipment under lease
... :arrahgements. Office premises are obtained on lease for terms ranging from 0-10 years and arc renewable upon
- agreement’ of both the Company and the lessor. There are no sub leases. The lease payment for the year

(exchuding taxes) is Rs. 6.94 crore (March 31, 2020 Rs. 7.68 crore).

Right of use assets:
T B Part:culars " March 31,2021 | March 31, 2020
o o = vz osTae (Rs. in crore) (Rs. in crore)
Openngiglat of use nssets 14.10 19.31
T T Additions : 11.31 0.95.
o | Deletions/ adjustment (3.64) (2.98)
T 7 | Depregiation during the year ;- 3.73) (3.18)
7 . | Closing Right of use assets Sis 18.04 14.10
Lease liability:
R o e g am culars —— March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
e ] : (Rs. in crore) (Rs. in crore)
. Openmg Lease llablhty 14.57 18.60
| Additions 35T 11.31 0.95
[ Deletions/ adjustment ol (3.64) (2.98)
T o Interest for the year e 1.59 1.59
‘| Repayment made during the year (5.82) (3.59)
'| Closing Lease liability .- 18.01 14,57
Maturity profile of Lease liability:
o Particulars.-. . | within 1 year | 1-3 years | 3-5 years | Abeve 5 years | Total
Year ended March 31, 2021
Lease payments | 3.61 8.36 6.04 - 18.01
Interest payments | 1.68 2.10 0.34 - 4.12
Year ended March 31, 2020
| Lease payments | 2.77 6.04 473 1.03 14.57
Interest payments | 1.38 1.82 [ 0.58 0.01 3.79
.. Following amount has been recugmsed in statement of proﬁt and loss account:
Particulars . SHaseh B3NS March 31,2021 | March 31, 2020
~ Depréciation on right of use asset 3.73 3.18
T Interest on lease liabilities 1.59 1.59
[ Expenses related to low value assets (included under other expenses) 0.22 1.15
Expenses related to short term leases (included under other expenses) 1.02 | 2.95
Total amount recognized in statement of profit & loss account 6.56 3.87

Operating lease: Company as lessor

The Company has sub-leased land and space to various parties under operating leases. The leases have varying

T
j/éL a\xona/%
/ o A \

terms, escalation clauses and renewal rights.




© Delhi International Airport Limited
CIN. U63033DL2006PLC146936
_ Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(A]l amounts in Rupees.crore, except otherwise stated)

¢ tentals received during the year (included in note 24) and future minimum rentals receivable under
n-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

- - “Particalais 77T i March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
— —I"Income Received durmg The. year B 305.66 661.87
. Receivables on non- cancelable Ieases
~ I"Not later than onie year ™ "% - 704.37 700,45
"t Later than one year but not Iater than ﬁve yea.r 3,044.42 3,012.31
8 T Later than five year R : 33,865.09 34,867.87
q) Revenue

-- For the-year ended March 31,2021, revenue from aperations includes Rs. 90.74 crore (March 31, 2020: Rs.
,,12 crore) from the contract habxhty balance at the beginning of the period.
_The Company’s revenue from operations disaggregated by primary geographical markets is as follows:

March 31, 2021

[ Particulars -=77'| ‘Aeronaiitical ~ Non-aeronautical Others Total

“Tndia == ; - 399,99 1,278.20 745.28 2,423.47
‘Outside'””“‘“"‘:‘ R - - -
Tut T 399,99 1,278.20 745.28 2,423.47
- I  March 31, 2020 '

- "‘Ke'ﬁﬁ'ﬁtical Non-aeronautical Qthers Total
R . 949, 16 2,204.64 755.62 3,909.42
ol 949.16 2,204.64 755.62 3,909.42

- ....The Company’s revenue from operations disaggregated by pattern of revenue recognition is as follows:

March 31, 2021
| Particalars Aeronautical Non-aeronautical | Others Total
Services rendered at a point in time 333.53 - - 333.53
i Semces transferred over txme : 66.46 1,278.20 745.28 2,089.94
Total ~ ] 399.99 1,278.20 745.28 2,423.47
, ' ' A March 31, 2020
| Patticulars “| Aeronautical Non-aeronautical | Others Total
Services rendered at apointintime { " §13.63 - - 813.63
o0 Semces transferred over tlme “ 13553 2,204.64 755.62 3,095,79
T Total - T T 94916 2,204.64 755.62 3,909.42

.. ... Reconciliation. of revenue. from operation recoguised in th_e statement of profit and loss with the contracted price:

T Particufars - - ;o) LT March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Revenue as per contracted prlce 2,421.58 3,904.62
| Adjustments:
~ Significant financing component 1.89 4.80
Tatal 2,423.47 3,909.42




Delhi International Airport Limited
CIN. U63033DL2006PLC146936
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

’(All amounts in Rupees crore, except otherwise stated)

) i) DIAL had
TSPV (“Developv
~for developmg 48"

lopment agreements with five developers collectively referred as Bharti Reality
v 8, 2019 (“Effective date”) granting the Developers the right during the term
fon square feet commercial space from the Effective Date, subject to the receipt of
. applicable permits and thereafter executed the sub lease of the asset area in Gateway and Downtown Districts.
~_ Asper the term t.agreements, DIAL is entitled to receive interest free refundable security
deposxt (“RSD?), advan development cost (“ADC”) and the annual lease rent (“ALR”) in certain manner
and at certain times as stated in the tespective development agreements. On the Effective Date as specified in

_the Development agl'eements DIAL has received the initial first tranche payment towards RSD amount from

~ " thie Developers.

S”)

At the initial planning phase of the project, DIAL was required to procure the Concept Master Plan (“CMP”)
approval from government authorities within 180 days from the Effective Date or with in a further additional
i iry of 270 days from the Effective Date, only the Developers can extend

nt agreement. The Developers have provided such extension up to June 30,

. b act.of COVID-19, aviation industry has been adversely affected. Further, the approval of
 EMP from G nment authorities, is finalty been received from Delhi Urban Art Commission (DUAC) in
March 2 2021. Considering the 51gx11ﬁcant delay in getting the CMP approval, DIAL is net in a position to seek
mpayment of A 1 pers for the financial year ended on March 31, 2021, As discussions are in
_process with Develo 1g final settlement of the issues with the Developers, the management of the
‘Company has decided not to. accrue ALR effective from April 01, 2020 till the final settlement with the
_ ,Developers and considered the financial year 2021 as Lease Hohday period. Accordingly, the Company has
. accrued reverue of Rs crores (March 31, 2020: Rs. 479.28 crores) on straight line basis considering
Financial Ye ease Hohday petiod, in accordance with recognition and measurement principles

" “under Ind AS116 “Leases”.

_ii) DIAL had entered a settlement agreement with Bamboo Hotel (“Developer”) on January 17, 2019 in reference

“to dlspute which aroused due to non- approval of concept plan by AAI and consequent loss of revenue and
" time to the Developer. The settlement agreement was entered with the background that AAT approval on the .
concept master plan will be arranged shortly by the DIAL and there will be no further loss of revenue and time
to the developer. As per Settlement agreement, the Developer shall pay the license fee for FY 2020-21 and FY

2021-22 in March 2022,

Further, Developer has informed via communication dated November 17, 2020 that since, the approval of AAT
on revised concept plan was received on September 4, 2020 and COVID 19 pandemie has resulted into delay
_in commencement of development work and funding of the project etc. resultmg loss of revenue and delay in

. project completion time by the developer. Developer has asked for waiver of applicable license fee for
. FY2020-21 and FY2021-22 due in March 2022. Considering the uncertainty in collection of license fees for
TFY 202021, DIAL management has assessed the possibility of developer agreeing to pay license fee for FY
. 2020-21 is remote and uncertam, Thence the management has decided not to accrue the income for FY 2020-
2L and ‘considered financial year 2021 as Lease Holiday period. Accordingly, the Company has accrued
: revenue of Rs ‘47.437 crores archr?:l 2020 Rs. 48. 49 crores) on straight line basw con:;ldenng FY 2020-21




Dellvi International Afrport Limited

CIN. U63033DL2006PLC146936
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(AR smounts in Rupees crove, except otherwise stated)

5)  During the year 2018-19, company had started the eonstruction activities for phase 3A airport expansion as
per Master Plan. The company his incurred Rs, 4,160,88 crores excluding GST (including capital advances
of Rs. 635.76 crores (excluding GST)) till Muarch 31,2021 {March 31, 2020: Ra. 2,813.45 crores (including
capital advances of Rs. 839.16 crores)] towards construction of phase 3A warks, whicl includes Interest
during construction of Rs. 418.08 crores (net of inlerest income Rs: 198.83 crore) as on March 31, 202)
(Murch 31, 2020: Rs, 117.15 crores [net of interest income of Rs, 115,80 erore]),

The Company has capitalized the following expenses during construction, included in above, being expenses
related to phase 3A airport expansion project. Consequently, expenses disclosed under the respective notes
are net of amounts capitalized by the company.

- Particulars As on Ason
. March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
Employee benelit expenses 28.78 16.67
Munpower hire charpes 18.08 8.84
_Professional consultancy 15.58 8.62
Travelling and conveyance 3.01 2.53
Others 3.90 1.04
Total , 65,35 37.70

(t)  Certain amounts (currency value or percentages) shown in the various tables and paragraphs included in these
Financial Statements have been rounded off or truncated as desmed appropriate by the management of the
Cormpany.
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